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TOOLS FOR
PROGRESS

The world is changing at a rapidly moving pace. Every aspect of life
is now governed with technology. The tools that are needed to
function eﬃciently are also changing - radically. But from the
modern education system to managing high-tech businesses, there
is still one aspect that is identical in all spaces: Stationery. The
excitement associated with the purchase, unboxing and usage of
stationery holds a particular and undeniable signiﬁcance for
children and adults alike.
A more divided population can be seen towards the utility of
stationary. While a large majority is more focused on its
functionality in a given space, others are more interested in its
color, shape, form and even creativity with which it can
complement and assist our lifestyle. Having the right stationery
tools is essential for day-to-day activities – at school and at work.
Some tools are good for composing a document and some of them
are good for enhancing its presentation, so everyone chooses these
items carefully in order to save time, manage priorities and deliver
work with ﬁnesse.
Drawing comparisons between choosing the right stationery
tools and making the right choices, this year’s theme traces
Central Depository Company’s progress through a perfect blend
of tools, consciously chosen over a period of two decades while
foreseeing business and market needs. The outcome is
overwhelming - CDC has not only established state-of-the-art
infrastructure for the Pakistan Capital Market stakeholders, but
also automated cumbersome and time consuming mechanisms.
CDC’s Journey of Success and Innovation continues while the
Tools for Progress keep adding up.

Measuring the

challenges
accurately

From the ﬁrst day at school till the last day at work, the one
stationary item that sticks around is - a Ruler. The mould might
change overtime, with simple wooden and plastic rulers of the
pencil box being replaced by more reﬁned and elegant looking
metal rulers in oﬃces, but the utility remains unaﬀected. The Ruler
rules the realm of stationary with its straight edges that help keep
things in line and the calibrations that create accurately measured
geometrical drawings.
Since its inception as a harbinger of electronic revolution in the
Pakistan Capital Market in the 1990s, CDC started with
measuring the scope of stock market’s problems and needs. We
chiseled oﬀ rudimentary market processes that required excess
time and labor, introducing electronic mechanisms with greater
eﬃciency and transparency. CDC continues to lead market
entities in accurately analyzing market needs & challenges for
both businesses & investors and oﬀering precise solutions to
bring the investing experience inline with international
standards.
Our identity has been established as the Infrastructure
Backbone of the Pakistan Capital Market.

ORGANIZING

THE SET OF
OPPORTUNITIES

Big things come in small packages - a Paper Clip receives its due
acclaim in a professional setup. Although treated as a small
stationary accessory, the light in weight paper clip helps bind
together bundles of sheets and becomes one of the most important
stationary items when documents of varied nature are to be
managed and organized neatly.
For Pakistan Capital Market stakeholders, CDC too acts as a
binding force. Through its Central Depository System (CDS), CDC
clips investors with issuers with other market entities and
creates a swift link between them. Also, upon identifying market
needs and the resulting opportunities, CDC continued to enhance
its technology infrastructure and built upon a diversiﬁed service
portfolio for stock market stakeholders, such as Trustee and
Custodial Services and Share Registrar Services, which not only
add up to an amazing capital market experience but are also
leading the competition in their respective sectors.
Our role has been proven as The Ultimate Custodian of the
Pakistan Capital Market.
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PRIORITIES

A relatively recent addition to the world of Stationary - Post-it-Notes
(Sticky Notes) are well suited for today's fast paced, multi-tasking
needs of academic and work settings. One doesn't have to refer to
the thick diary in the drawer or the small boxes on a calendar
anymore to manage daily tasks. Just jot down the to-do-list on these
easy to handle, brightly coloured, small pieces of paper and stick
them anywhere for quick revision in a glance of what's remaining
on the checklist.
From the day of its inception, CDC understands the needs of
investors and market alike. Therefore, continuous innovation
and enhancement of service standards are amongst CDC's
topmost priorities to ensure customer convenience. This priority
checklist also includes building investor conﬁdence in the Capital
Market mechanisms and creation of a trustworthy & secure
environment for investment. Investor Awareness sessions,
Investment Roadshows, Pakistan Capital Market Expos and
Financial Literacy Workshops are conducted regularly across the
country to spread awareness about investment processes and
asset protection measures introduced over the years.
Our contribution has been time-honored for Highlighting the
Opportunities available in the Pakistan Capital Market.

Putting the

lose ends
together

In childhood it's an object of fascination and in adulthood an
absolute necessity - Stapler is a stationary item that no oﬃce can
do without. Belonging to the elite group of the sophisticated
stationary tools, a Stapler helps hold together documents securely
by clutching together the bundle tightly with its staple pin. A few
staples across the edge and the bundle of loose sheets are pressed
together to form a booklet.
Similarly, CDC has diligently and consciously worked towards
making Capital Market processes more secure and stable by
introducing measures for investor asset protection and Risk
Management. It constantly strives to enhance its regulatory
framework & security infrastructure, thereby holding together all
the market stakeholders. By adopting international standards
for information security management, CDC minimizes market
risks, all the while empowering investors and fortifying their
investments.
Our character has been acknowledged as the Most Reliable
and Resilient Institution of the Pakistan Capital Market.

HIGHLighting

THE Future
Pathways

An advanced version of colour pencils - Highlighters add life to the
monochrome world of documentation. Be it for academic or work
purposes, reading long, dull books and documents becomes an
everyday chore, and only highlighters make the task of marking
important points fun and colourful. This tool not only helps in
marking the lines of text smoothly but the bright hues help in
locating the markings within nanoseconds when required.
CDC is working to make Capital Market mechanisms and
processes quicker, easier and more accessible for investors by
embracing digital technology. CDC's digitization drive is in full
swing, highlighting the future pathways for investment in
Pakistan Capital Market and aiming to create an investing
experience which is more convenient, transparent, secure and
engaging for the investors. Through its eServices portal, CDC is
launching online services and convenience facilities such as
Dividend Repository, eIPO, eVoting and many more are to follow
in coming days, months and years.
Our personality is recognized for our market shaping
technology that has turned around the workings of the
Pakistan Capital Market.
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Mission
Provide secure, reliable and innovative solutions that
systematically reduce risk, enable transparency and
bring eﬃciencies to Capital & Financial markets.
To be the centre of excellence by continuously employing
state of the art technology and best talent in the country
while maintaining good corporate governance.
Ensure to provide employees with an environment of
professional & personal growth and; to society, we
ﬁrmly believe in giving back to the community.

Vision
To be a world-class institution providing
innovative and reliable services primarily
to the capital and ﬁnancial markets,
stimulating business growth and maximizing
beneﬁts for all stakeholders.

Core

Values

Our corporate values represent the core priorities in the
organization’s culture. Adherence to these values makes
it possible for us to continue on the road to sustainable
development.
Dispensing with our corporate responsibility, we are able to
honour our commitments to clients, partners & shareholders
and; to our most valuable resource, our employees.

RELIABILITY
•
•

Reliable & trustworthy for all our stakeholders.
Ensure integrity and security of information.

INTEGRITY
•
•
•

Fair & honest in all our dealings.
Take responsibility for our actions.
Strive to perform to the best of our abilities.

TRANSPARENCY
•
•
•

Policies & procedures are clearly deﬁned, well communicated and
applied equally to all.
Make adequate disclosure of company information.
Strong adherences to the best practices of Corporate Governance.

Teamwork
•
•
•

Build strong relationships within and across functions.
Share ideas / best practices and value diversity
Communicate candidly and on an ongoing basis within team.

BOard of
Directors
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES
Moin
M. Fudda
Chairman &
Independent director
Mr. Moin M. Fudda has over 40 years of rich and unique blend of
professional experience which encompasses working for the
corporate sector and performing diplomatic duties. He holds an
MBA (Insurance & Risk Management) from St. Jones University,
New York, and a B.S. (Insurance & Economics) from R.C.D. College
of Insurance, Tehran.
In his former role as Managing Director of Karachi Stock
Exchange (now Pakistan Stock Exchange), he was elected as
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Task Force of Federation
of European and Asian Stock Exchanges (FEAS). He has helped in
creation of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG). He
is a Certiﬁed Corporate Governance Trainer by International
Finance Corporation (IFC) since 2010 and is a Member of Faculty
and has also served on the Board of PICG. He has contributed
signiﬁcantly towards development of Corporate Governance
Rules for Public sector Enterprises and Corporate Governance
Guide for Family Owned Businesses.
He is an Independent Director on the Boards of Pakistan Stock
Exchange and Central Depository Company and was recently
elected as Chairman of the Board of CDC. He also serves as an
Independent Director on the Board of Pak Suzuki Motor
Company and Al Meezan Investment Management as well as a
Country Representative for SCOR – A Global 1 Tier Reinsurer. He
is also a Member, Board of Karachi Council on Foreign Relations
and a Member, Executive Committee of English Speaking Union
of Pakistan. Moreover, since 2003, he continues to serve as a
Chairman/Member of Alternate Dispute Resolution Committees
(ADRC) of the Federal Board of Revenue.
Prior to joining KSE, he was Country Chief of New Zealand
Insurance and Commercial Union (CU now AVIVA) and founder
MD of CU Life (now Jubilee Life). Since 1990, he has been serving
as the Honorary Consul General of New Zealand for Pakistan and
being its sole representative, his responsibilities include, consular
aﬀairs, trade, education & facilitations of visas. Earlier he held
positions such as Country Director, Center for International
Private Enterprise, an aﬃliate of US Chamber, Chairman,
Islamabad Stock Exchange, President of Overseas Investors
Chamber of Commerce & Industry and Management Association
of Pakistan. He has also served on the Boards of Investment &
Privatization Commission, Pakistan Institute of Management and
Federation of Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry and
National Center for Dispute Resolution.
In 2006, Mr. Fudda was conferred Sitara-e-Imtiaz (S.I.) by the
President of Pakistan. In 2002, he was recognized as the
Honorary Oﬃcer of the New Zealand Order of Merit (ONZM) and
in 1990, NZ Commemoration Medal was conferred by the Queen
of New Zealand.
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Aftab
Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive
Officer
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan joined CDC in 1999 and is
currently serving as the Chief Executive Oﬃcer. He has
previously served as the Chief Operating Oﬃcer from
2004 to 2016 and Head of Operations from 1999 to 2004.
Mr. Diwan is a seasoned professional in the ﬁeld of
Securities Market. He started his career with Citibank in
1981. During his long tenure with the bank, he had varied
exposure in diﬀerent operational and business areas,
which also included oﬀshore assignments. He served
Citibank Romania as Securities Business Manager looking
after both business and operational activities and
Citibank, United Kingdom as part of the project team for
Securities related Cash Exception Project.
He has represented CDC and the Pakistan Capital Market
on various international forums. He currently serves as
the Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Asia-Paciﬁc Central Securities Depositories Group (ACG)
for a three year term. As Vice Chairman of ACG Executive
Committee, he also represents the Asia Paciﬁc Region on
the Executive Board of the World Forum of CSD’s (WFC),
the global body of ﬁve regional Securities Depositories
associations. Moreover, he also represents CDC on other
international forums such as Association of National
Numbering Agencies (ANNA) and International Securities
Services Association (ISSA).
Mr. Diwan also spearheaded the creation, design and
implementation of various projects to support Capital
Market of Pakistan including the National Clearing and
Settlement Services project. He is also serving as a
Director on the Board of Institute of Financial Market of
Pakistan (formerly Institute of Capital Markets), and
ITMinds Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of CDC). He
has also been a part of a number of committees related
to Capital Market development. Mr. Diwan also served as
the Chairman of the Consultative Group on Capital
Markets, formed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan from May 2009 to September
2010.
He is also a certiﬁed director from Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance.
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Aamir
Matin

Abid Ali
Habib

Director

Director

Dr. Aamir Matin has over 35 years of work experience in
the IT industry both in Pakistan as well as abroad. He is
currently the Head of Technology for HBL, prior to which
he was the Country Manager for Cisco Systems Inc. in
Pakistan for a number of years. Dr. Matin has also worked
at senior levels with the Government serving as the MD of
the Pakistan Software Export Board as well as Advisor on
IT to the Federal Minister for IT and Telecommunications,
Government of Pakistan during 2002-2006. His early
career was with the United Nations Development
Program, working with countries in the Asia Paciﬁc region
on the use of Information Technology to enhance
productivity in their public sectors.

Mr. Abid Ali Habib is a shareholder director on the Board
of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. He is the Chairman of
the Trading and Commercial Aﬀairs Committee of PSX. He
is also a member of the Human Resources and
Remuneration, Listing & Voluntary Delisting, Audit, and
Market Development & New Products Committees of PSX
board. As a member of the Listing Committee, he plays an
instrumental role in approving the listing applications and
prospectuses of various reputed companies.

Dr. Matin has a BS in Electronic Engineering, an MS in
Computer Engineering, and a PhD in Information
Technology. He has taught graduate level courses at some
of the leading universities of the country.

He has served on the board of the stock exchange for
various terms between the years 1995 and 2015. During
these terms, he has been a part of various Committees
constituted by the Board, as Chairman or member. He
played the central role in conceptualization, planning and
design of internet-based order routing system and also
supervised, implemented and tested Karachi Automated
Trading System.

He has previously served as the Chairman and Chief
Executive of Abid Ali Habib Securities (Private) Limited and
as the Director of Aba Ali Habib Securities (Private)
Limited.

As a member of Demutualization Committee of KSE
during the years 2005, 2006 and 2010, Mr. Habib was the
key ﬁgure in preparation of Preliminary Report on
proposed demutualization of KSE, identifying various
issues and recommendations thereon, in line with existing
models and international practices. Ultimately, the
objectives of corporatization and demutualization were
achieved in 2012. He was also actively involved in the
listing process of PSX and played a key role in the
roadshows conducted by the Consultant to the Issue for
sale of shares of PSX through book building.
Mr. Habib held the position of Chairman, Companies
Aﬀairs/Corporate Governance Committee of KSE for the
years 2010 and 2011. During this term, a number of tasks
were initiated and successfully completed, having positive
impact on overall regulatory environment of the
Exchange. Some of the major achievements included (i)
various amendments in Listing Regulations; (ii) action
against
delinquent/non-performing
companies
in
violation of Listing Regulations; (iii) revision of annual
listing fee; (iv) mechanism for veriﬁcation of rumor
mongering in the market pertaining to listed
companies/securities; (v) implementation of revised Code
of Corporate Governance; (vi) measures for disclosure of
information to market participants/investors pertaining to
sale/purchase of securities by any director, CEO or
executive or their spouses; and (vii) revision of criteria for
selection of Top Companies.
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Ahmed
Chinoy
Director

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy is the Managing Partner of Arch Sons
Group of Companies and is engaged in various businesses
including security investments, textiles, real estate and
poultry farming.
He is an elected Director on the Board of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX) and also a member of Audit
Committee, Human Resources & Remuneration
Committee and Listing & Voluntary De-Listing Committee
of PSX. He is nominated by PSX as a Director on the Board
of Directors of Central Depository Company and National
Clearing Company.
He has served the society in a variety of capacities in the
areas of business, education, health and crime
prevention. He has successfully served as the Chief of
Citizen Police Liaison Committee, Sindh (a citizens’ body
for prevention of crimes) from the year 2010 to 2015. He
has also been actively serving on the Boards of various
medical and educational institutions and as the President
of All Pakistan Memon Federation. Previously, he has
served on the Managing Committee of Federation of
Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FPCCI) and as
Chairman of Pakistan Cloth Merchants’ Association (the
apex body of textile exporters). For his services to the
people of Pakistan, he has been awarded the prestigious
national awards of Hilal-e-Imtiaz (H.I.) and Sitara-e-Imtiaz
(S.I.).
Mr. Chinoy is qualiﬁed from Institute of Cost &
Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) and holds a
graduate degree in Commerce from University of Karachi.
He is also a certiﬁed director from Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance.

Aqeel
Ahmed Nasir
Independent
Director
Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir is the Company Secretary & Chief
Legal Counsel of United Bank Limited (UBL). Mr. Nasir has
rich experience spread over 28 years in diversiﬁed ﬁelds of
Law Corporate and Regulatory Aﬀairs. Before joining UBL
in 2006, Mr. Nasir has been serving various public and
private sector reputed and large companies/corporations.
Being part of the senior management at UBL, Mr. Nasir is
a member of various Management Committees. He looks
after and supervises the legal and regulatory aﬀairs at
global level related to UBL. He is also spearheading the
Change Management Process being carried out at UBL.
Before joining UBL, Mr. Nasir worked as Company
Secretary and General Manager (Legal) with Sui Southern
Gas Company Limited (SSGC) from 2003 to 2006.
While serving for various companies, Mr. Nasir got
opportunities to work on various transactions related to
mergers/acquisitions. He also spearheaded the legal team
for the issuance of GDRs of UBL and their enlisting on
London Stock Exchange.
Mr. Nasir is a qualiﬁed Solicitor of Senior Courts of
England & Wales and has a practicing certiﬁcate under
Solicitor Act 1974, issued by Solicitor’s Regulation
Authority (SRA)
Mr. Nasir is a Master of Laws (LL.M.) from the University of
London, England. He also serves as a director on the
Boards of Kot Addu Power Co. Limited (KAPCO), Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG), Funds
Committee, LSE Financial Services Ltd. and United
Executor and Trustee Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary
of UBL).
Mr. Nasir was part of the Task Force, constituted under the
ambit of PICG, to review the Corporate Governance.
He is a Certiﬁed Director from Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance.
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Muhammad
ASHRAF
BAWANY

Muhammad
SIBGHATULLAH
KHALID

Director

Director

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany is nominated by Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) on the Board of Directors of
CDC where he is also serving as a member of Audit and I.T.
Steering Committees. He is also nominated by the CDC
Board on the Board of Directors of ITMinds Limited – a
wholly owned subsidiary of CDC.

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid has over two decades
of diversiﬁed experience and has worked on several
assignments for Microﬁnance institutions and Banks,
Commercial
Banks,
manufacturing
concerns;
administrative and operational assignments both in
Pakistan and abroad.

Besides CDC, he is serving as a Director on the Boards of
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, National Clearing
Company of Pakistan Limited, Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance, Pak German Business Forum,
German Pakistan Chamber of Commerce and Industry
and Emerging Indus Partners Limited.

Mr. Khalid has worked with organizations including
Khushhali Bank; Mobilink; FINCA Afghanistan; First
Microﬁnance Bank Afghanistan; and the Attieh Steel KSA.
During his various assignments, he has had extensive
exposure to Financial Controls and Regulatory
Compliance, Working Capital Management; ERP
development and implementation, cross border project
ﬁnancing facilities including export credit agencies and
multilateral lending agencies ﬁnancing facilities, due
diligence methodologies, portfolio management, ﬁnancial
analysis and Risk management practices.

Mr. Bawany remained Chief Executive and Managing
Director of Linde Pakistan Limited – a Member of Linde
AG, Germany from August 2013 to January 2018 and
thereafter served as Advisor to Chairman & Board of
Directors till March 2018. He served Linde Pakistan
Limited for more than 30 years in various leadership roles
including CFO & Company Secretary and was responsible
for successfully executing several local and regional
initiatives and strategies.
Mr. Bawany is also Chairman Pakistan German Business
Forum (PGBF), Trustee - Help International Welfare Trust
(HIWT) and Member Supreme Council, Jetpur Memon
Association. Mr. Bawany is also a Certiﬁed Director from
the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG),
and Chairman of the Board Audit Committee of PICG. In
addition, he has also served as Chairman Board Audit
Committee of NCCPL, Vice President of Bin Qasim
Association of Trade & Industry (BQATI) and
Vice-President Jetpur Memon Association (JMA) and
Chairman, Strategic Advisory Board (SAB) of Memon
Professional Forum.

Currently he is the Chief Executive Oﬃcer/ Managing
Director of LSE Financial Services Limited (formerly Lahore
Stock Exchange Limited). He also serves on the Board of
Directors of National Clearing Company of Pakistan
Limited.
Mr. Khalid is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan. He has also worked with Deloitte,
Grant Thornton and E&Y Chartered Accountants during
his career on diﬀerent roles.

He takes keen interest in the promotion of education,
trade and industry and strongly advocates these causes
through various professional, corporate and trade
platforms and also supports various social and welfare
activities. In this regard, he is associated with the Welfare
Committees of Tabba Heart Institute (THI), Tabba Kidney
Institute under Aziz Tabba Foundation (ATF). He is the
former President of Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) and Pakistan Institute of
Public Finance Accountants (PIPFA) and member
Education Board All Pakistan Memon Federation.
Mr. Bawany is a fellow member of ICMAP and ICSP. He is
also a Law graduate and has done various advanced
management courses from local and foreign institutions.
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Muhammad
Tariq Rafi
Director

Mr. Tariq Raﬁ is the Chairman of Siddiqsons Group and is
a recipient of the coveted Civil Award Sitara-e-Imtiaz. He
was awarded the prestigious Best Businessman award for
the year 1999 and best Export Trophies between years
1980 to 2005. He has recently been awarded the Privilege
Card by the Prime Minister of Islamic Republic of Pakistan
for being one of the top tax payers.
He is also the Honorary Consul General of Republic of
Serbia. He also serves on the Board of Directors at MCB
Bank Limited, Siddiqsons Limited, Siddiqsons Tin Plate
Limited, and Triple Tree (Pvt.) Limited (Ocean Tower).

Shahnawaz
Mahmood
Director

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood is currently the Deputy
Managing Director of the Pak China Investment Company
Limited. As an executive director, he is involved in devising
the strategic direction for the company’s business
objectives as well as organizational management. He has
been instrumental in developing new initiatives such as
advisory, private equity and infrastructure ﬁnancing. He
has also played a vital role in attracting Chinese
investments in initiatives such as acquisition of Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).
Mr. Mahmood has previously been a part of the Public
Private Partnership (PPP) initiative for infrastructure
development by the Government of Pakistan. In his role as
the Head of Projects at the Infrastructure Project
Development Facility (IPDF), Ministry of Finance, he had
been responsible for developing and facilitating national
PPP policy, sector initiatives and transactions portfolio for
private sector investment. He has done extensive
groundwork on corporate governance in Pakistan and has
played an important role in implementing United Nations
Development Program (UNDP) project on corporate
governance with the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP). He is also the recipient of Canadian
International Development Agency (CIDA)’s President
Award of Excellence awarded by the Canadian
government in recognition of his work as Development
Economist on Debt Swap. He started his career with PTCL
working as Financial Analyst in the Project Finance
department.
Besides being a director on CDC board, Mr. Mahmood is
also serving as member of Risk and Regulatory Aﬀairs
Committee & IT Steering Committee. In addition, he has
been nominated by PSX as Director on the Boards of
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
and Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX).
Mr. Mahmood is a Chartered Banker from Chartered
Banker Institute, UK and holds MBA, MSc Finance and
Economics degrees from UK. He has also attended
investment and risk management training courses at
Harvard Business School and INSEAD. He has also
attended Financial Derivatives course by Chartered
Institute of Securities and Investment (CISI) UK.
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Syed
Majid Ali
Independent
Director
Syed Majid Ali is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, presently working as
Chief Financial Oﬃcer at Faysal Bank Limited. Prior to this
position, he has served as Chief Financial Oﬃcer at Saudi
Pak Commercial Bank Limited (now Silk Bank Limited) and
Emirates Bank International PJSC (Pakistan operations).
He has also served as a Partner in KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,
Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Ali has rich experience in banking mergers and
acquisitions (M&A). He was the member of the core team
responsible for the sale of Emirates Bank International
PJSC (Pakistan Operations) and Saudi Pak Commercial
Bank Limited. He was also actively involved in the
acquisition of RBS Pakistan operations by Faysal Bank
Limited and its subsequent integration. In addition to
Accounting & Finance, he has gained rich experience in
the areas of Strategy, Human Resources and Technology.
He
has
supervised
Strategy,
Technology
and
Administration functions at Faysal Bank Limited.
He is a member of the Accounting and Taxation
Committees of the Pakistan Banks’ Association (PBA),
Overseas Investors’ Chamber of Commerce and Industry
(OICCI), and Pakistan Business Council. He is also a
member of the Income Tax Bar Association, Karachi.

Syed
Masoud
Ali Naqvi
Independent
Director
Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi is a senior accountant. He has
served as an Advisor to the Board of KPMG Taseer Hadi &
Co. until 31 December 2017 and was a former Senior
Partner of KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., for 28 years.
Mr. Naqvi is currently serving as a member of Tax Reforms
Implementation Committee of FBR and the Academic
Council of the Commecs Institute of Business & Emerging
Sciences.
Earlier, he has also served as the President of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) for the years
1994-1996, and has been a member of its Council,
Committee
on
Corporate
Governance,
and
Sub-Committee for revision of Code of Corporate
Governance 2002. He has also served on Pakistan Institute
of Corporate Governance - Committee for revision of the
Code of Corporate Governance in 2012 and has delivered
several keynote addresses on the Code of Corporate
Governance. For two consecutive terms from 2001-2003,
Mr. Naqvi was the President of Management Association
of Pakistan and has also served as the Chairman of the Tax
Reforms Commission of Pakistan formed in September
2014. Moreover, he served as a Director on the Board of
Karachi Stock Exchange for the year 1999-2000, President
of the Pakistan American Cultural Centre (PACC) in 1996,
President of the Rotary Club Karachi – Downtown from
1984-85 and District Secretary for Rotary District 327
(Pakistan) from 1986-87. He has also served on the Board
of Governors of National Centre for Dispute Resolution.
In honorary capacity, he also serves various NGOs and
welfare organizations, community projects and trusts
such as Baitul Sukoon and Talent Inducement &
Placement Society.
Mr. Naqvi is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.
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MANAGEMENT

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Oﬃcer

Abdul samad

Badiuddin akbar

Syed Asif Shah

Atiqur Rehman

Chief Operating Oﬃcer

Chief Information Oﬃcer
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Chief Compliance & Risk Oﬃcer

Head of Trustee & Custodial Services
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Junaid Shekha

shariq jafrani

Shariq Naseem

M. Anwar gopalani

Hammad Ali Faisal

Farooq Hussain

CEO - ITMinds Limited

Head of Product Development & Marketing

Chief Internal Auditor

CFO & Company Secretary

Chief Human Resource Oﬃcer

Head of Administration

29

Timeline OF ACHIEVEMENTS

1993
Experts from
PriceWaterhouseCoopers
conducted a study to develop a
conceptual framework for the
depository. The United States
Agency for International
Development (USAID) sponsors
the study and the report lays the
foundation for depository design.

1994
The Board of Directors at CDC
award a turnkey contract to an
IBM consortium for the
implementation of the depository
system in Pakistan. The IBM
consortium proposes a
comprehensive Master
Implementation Plan to the CDC
Board after a detailed analysis of
National requirements, Company
& Banking laws, Regulations &
Procedures and Financial
Organizational aspects of the
project.

1995
Master Implementation
Plan approved.

1997

2000

Promulgation of
Central Depositories
Ordinance & Central
Depositories Act.

Development of CDC
Contingency Site.

Central Depository
Company of Pakistan
Limited Regulations
developed and
approved by the
Corporate Law
Authority (Securities
and Exchange
Commission of
Pakistan).
September 3 – Central
Depository System
launched.

1999
Launches Investor
Account Services for
individual and
corporate investors
enabling them to
directly open and
maintain accounts with
CDC in Central
Depository System for
electronic settlement
of securities.
Induction of Term
Finance Certiﬁcates
(TFCs) into CDS.
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Introduction of
Electronic Merger of
Securities Facility in
CDS.

2002
Launches Trustee &
Custodial Services for
Mutual Funds, initially
with two open-ended
mutual funds with
net assets value of
Rs. 500 million.
Introduction of
Consolidation /
Sub-division of
Securities.

2003
Introduction of
Element Training
Program for CDS
users
Inducts WAPDA
bonds into CDS.

2004
Implementation
of National
Clearing &
Settlement
System (NCSS).
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2005
Series of Investment
Road Shows in major
cities of Pakistan.
Deployment of
Re-engineered
Central Depository
System.
Inducts Open-end
Mutual Funds in CDS.

2006
Hosts 10th Annual
General Meeting of
Asia-Paciﬁc Central
Securities
Depositories Group
(ACG) in Karachi.
Holds ‘Investment
Road Shows’ in
Dubai and Abu
Dhabi
An independent
brand-recall survey
published in ‘Money’
magazine rates CDC
as one of the top
four brands in the
country’s Investment
Sector.

2007
Completed a decade of CDS operations.
Holds ‘Capital Market Days’ in London and
New York.
Introduces Secure ID Token for further
security of CDS Terminalst

2008
Launches Share Registrar Services for issuers
and their shareholders.
Introduces Fund Management System.
CDC conducts Customer Satisfaction & Brand
Awareness Survey through Gallop. According
to survey results, CDC is rated Pakistan’s most
recognized and prominent ﬁnancial brand.

2009
Becomes ISO/IEC 27001:2005 certiﬁed for
overall despository operations including
functional, technical and legal aspects.
Implements Induction of Unpaid Rights in
Central Depository
CDC’s Trustee & Custodial Services (T&C)
acquires 100 funds.

Launches CDC
access IVR and Web.
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Timeline OF ACHIEVEMENTS (CONT.)

2010

2012

Exponentially Reduces Services Tariﬀ.

Becomes Custodian of over One
Hundred Billion Securities worth
over 21 billion dollars.

Inducts National Savings Bonds in CDS.
Holds 3rd Pakistan Day Conference in New York.
Elected as Executive Committee Member of Asia
Paciﬁc Depositories Group.
Becomes ACCA Approved Employer.
Introduces new Automated Mechanism of
Securities Transfer in CDS.

2011
Integration of Standard Chartered (Pakistan)
Bank’s Straight 2 Bank with CDC’s Fund
Management System.
Government of Punjab appoints CDC as trustee
for Punjab Pension Fund.
ITMinds becomes a subsidiary of CDC [IT
Consultancy & Implementation Services].
Introduces Free of Cost eStatement and eAlert
facilities for CDS Account Holders.
Receives CPD Approved Employer status from
ACCA Pakistan.

Becomes First Company in
Pakistan to get BS 25999
Certiﬁcation - the British
Standard for Business Continuity
Management.
Completes 15 years of successful
operations.

2013
Celebrates 15 years of successful
operations through a series of
events.
Teams up with CFA Institute for
Employee Development.
Extends Scope of ISO 27001
Certiﬁcation.
Signs MoU with Life Insurance
companies for Centralized
Information Sharing Solution.
CDC becomes Secretariat of
Asia-Paciﬁc Central Securities
Depositories Group (ACG) for
2014-16.
Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura,
CEO-CDC elected as the
Executive Committee Chairman
of ACG.
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2014
Initiates settlement services for Government Securities traded on PSX.
Conducts Investor Road Shows in 6 major cities of Punjab.
CDC Employees conduct Disaster Relief activities for Thar Drought aﬀectees.

2015
Launches Online Transactions service through Web.
CDC becomes Trustee of Dolmen City REIT.
CDC Trusteeship exceeds Rs. 500 Billion.
Acquires ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Certiﬁcation.
Introduces Direct Settlement Services.

2016
Acquires International Standards for Assurance Engagement (ISAE) Certiﬁcation.
Launches Urdu Website.
Organizes Pakistan Investor Days in Dubai
Discretionary / Non-Discretionary Portfolios under custody hit the 100 mark

2017
Launches CDC Access Mobile App.
Launches Centralized eIPO System (CES).
Acquires ISO 22301 Certiﬁcation for Business Continuity Management Program

2018
Launches eDividend Repository
Launches eLoR Service
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Company Information
CFO & Company Secretary

LEGAL ADVISORS

Shariq Jafrani
M/s. Orr, Dignam & Co.
Registered Oﬃce
CDC House
99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S.,
Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400
Auditors
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

BANKERS

Advocates
M/s. A. K. Brohi & Co.
Legal Consultants & Advocates
M/s. Bawaney & Partners
Advocates & Investment & Corporate Advisers
M/s. Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultant / Barristers
& Advocate High Courts & Supreme Court

Bank Alfalah Limited

M/s. Ijaz Ahmed & Associates

Bank Al Habib Limited

Advocates & Legal Consultants

Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

M/s. Mandviwala & Zafar

MCB Bank Limited

Advocates

National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
United Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

M/s. Hassan Kaunain Nafees
Legal Practitioners & Advisors
M/s. Shah & Michael Law Firm
Advocates
M/s. Ahmed & Qazi
Advocates & Legal Consultants
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List of Shareholders
S.no Shareholders

Total No.of
Shares Held

% of
Shareholding

1.

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

42,232,307

39.81

2.

MCB Bank Limited *

15,913,500

15.00

3.

Habib Bank Limited *

12,036,972

11.35

4.

LSE Financial Services Limited *

10,608,998

10.00

5.

National Investment Trust Limited

6,732,472

6.35

6.

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,304,500

5.00

7.

Pak China Investment Company Limited*

5,304,500

5.00

8.

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

2,917,474

2.75

9.

ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited

2,652,250

2.50

10.

Allied Bank Limited

1,060,900

1.00

11.

IGI Investments (Private) Limited

689,583

0.65

12.

Innovative Investment Bank Limited

530,450

0.50

13.

Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Limited

106,090

0.10

14.

Others **

4

-

106,090,000

100%

TOTAL

* The ﬁgures include number of shares allotted in the names of nominee directors representing their institutions.
** Independent Directors

Audit Committee
S.no Name

Designation

1

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi

Chairman

2

Syed Majid Ali

Member

3

Mr. Muhammad Sshraf Bawany *

Member

4

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy

Member

5

Mr. Muhammad Sibghtullah Khalid *

Member

*Appointed subsequent to the year end

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
S.no Name

Designation

1

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Chairman

2

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Member

4

Syed Majid Ali

Member

5

Mr. Muhammad Sibghtullah Khalid *

Member

*Appointed subsequent to the year end
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Risk & Regulatory Aﬀairs Committee
S.no Name

Designation

1

Syed Majid Ali

Chairman

2

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Member

4

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

5

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

Member

Investment Committee *
S.no Name

Designation

1

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Raﬁ

Chairman

2

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Member

4

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Member

5

Dr. Aamir Matin

Member

* The Investment Committee is also authorized by the Board to approve donations in accordance with the approved CSR policy
of the Company

Nomination & Compensation Committee
S.no Name

Designation

1

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Chairman

2

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

3

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi

Member

4

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

Member

5

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Raﬁ

Member

I.T. Steering Committee
S.no Name
1

Dr. Aamir Matin

Chairman

2

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany *

Member

3

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy

Member

4

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

5

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

* Appointed Subsequent to the year end
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Designation
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Management Committee
S.no Name

Designation

1

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Chairman

2

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Member

3

Mr. Hammad Ali Faisal

Member

4

Mr. M. Anwar Gopalani

Member

5

Mr. Farooq Hussain

Member

6

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Member

7

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Member

8

Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman

Member

9

Mr. Abdul Samad

Member

10

Syed Asif Shah

Member

11

Mr. Junaid Shekha

Member

Executive Steering Committee
S.no Name

Designation

1

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Chairman

2

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Member

3

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Member

4

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Member

5

Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman

Member

6

Mr. Abdul Samad

Member

7

Syed Asif Shah

Member
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OKeyperational Highl

ights

Figures as of june 3

0, 2018

Total Numb

er of Shares

In Billion

In Million

In Million

38

in CDS

Total Marke

t Capitalizati
on
of Shares in
CDS

Percentage
of Shares in
CDS with
reference to
Share Capita
l*
Units of Ope
n-End
Funds in CD
S
Units of TFC
s, Sukuks
& Bonds in C
DS
Number of S

ub-Accounts

Number of In

vestor Accou

nts

P holding

In Billion

* excluding Go

132
5,266
86
129
87
248,230
53,094

76

Total Numb

er of Securit

In Billion

2,938
169
183
170
787
Rs. In Billion

In Billion

ies in IAS

Total Marke

t Capitalizati
on
of Securities
in IAS

Number of S

ecurities in S
hare
Registrar Se
rvices

Number of F

unds under
Trusteeship

Number of D

iscretionary
Portfolio
Clients unde
r Trusteeship

Net Assets o
f Funds / Dis
cretionary
Portfolio Clie
nts Under C
ustody
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Central Depository System (cds)
As of June 30, 2018

Eligible Pledgees
94

872
Securities (Issuer)

CDS Elements
Participants / Account Holders
631

Bonds
1
15
Preference Shares
35
Open End Mutual Funds

107
Sukuk & Term Finance
Certiﬁcates

40

714
Ordinary Shares

Breakup of
securities in cds
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Transactions handled through CDS
During the Year 2017 - 18

No. of Transaction
Volume (in billion)

634,322

210,491

40,031

40.02

4.46
Deposit

Free Delivery

19.89

0.30

Pledge

612

Withdrawal

Investor AcCounts
As of June 30, 2018

No. of Accounts
No. of Securities (in Billion)
Market Capitalization of Securities
(Rs. in Billion)
51,472
2,013.41

1,622
17.77

Individual

924.18

57.82

Corporate
41

Six Years Operational Data
As of June 30, 2018
FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30
2018
Participants / Account holders

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

631

643

657

651

575

690

94

94

94

95

97

97

872

845

822

819

811

801

131.82

133.94

128.68

117.73

110.35

107.12

5,266.28

5,992.68

4,938.23

4,649.56

3,852.07

2,706.37

Units of TFCs, Sukuks, Bonds & Open-End Funds in
CDS (in million)

216.66

211.63

238.98

268.92

368.98

272.48

Investor Accounts (individual and corporate)

53,094

51,022

50,144

51,262

50,681

48,848

Number of Securities in IAS (in billion)

75.59

79.47

74.15

50.02

43.93

41.31

Market Capitalization of Securities in IAS (Rs. in billion)

2,938

3,305

2,681

2,234

1,776

1,223

Number of Sub Accounts (indiviual & corporate)

248,230

282,651

267,906

260,792

240,441

242,019

Number of Securities in Share Registrar Services

169

144

126

109

102

82

Number of Funds under Trusteeship

353

303

254

224

180

148

Eligible Pledgees
CDS Live Securities
Number of Shares in CDS (in billion)
Market Capitalization of Shares in CDS (Rs. in billion)

Activations
As of June 30, 2018
Number of Accounts
Activation of SMS
Activation of IVR / Web

for IAS Clients
53,094
45,045

for Sub Accounts
248,230
199,465

30,786

83,898
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Human Resources
As of June 30, 2018

Total Number of Employees (410)
Islamabad
8

385
Karachi

Location-wise
Distribution

17
Lahore

Year-wise strength
500

400

358
306

380
342

346

327

341

381

400

403

410

336

283

300
239
211
200

170
116

100

165

186

135

56 62

0
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30
2018

2017

BALANCE SHEET

2015

2014

2013

Rupees in Million

Shareholders Equity

4,131.01

3,671.52

2,833.82

2,606.40

2,356.54

2,233.34

Fixed Assets

1,431.39

1,321.74

988.01

970.98

970.47

975.43

166.37

153.71

149.03

117.67

662.67

86.42

3,344.88

2,982.73

2,307.26

2,096.13

1,180.37

1,573.19

Non-Current Liabilities

234.69

228.58

182.94

197.69

183.26

186.86

Current Liabilities

576.95

558.08

427.54

380.70

273.71

214.83

Other Non-Current Assets
Current Assets

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Rupees in Million

Total Income

2,126.06

1,987.62

1,658.95

1,534.06

1,232.84

1,059.22

Total Expenses

1,124.45

1,069.43

953.49

868.72

755.80

691.87

Proﬁt Before Taxation

1,001.61

918.19

705.46

665.34

477.04

367.35

668.98

608.71

459.46

431.74

329.03

244.11

195.00

195.00

Proﬁt After Taxation

DIVIDEND

44

2016

Rupees in Million

Cash

159.14

183.00

20.00

Bonus

439.10

60.90

350.00

211.25
-

-

-
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SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

ASSETS

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

3500

5000

Rupees in Million

Rupees in Million

3000

4000

2500
2000

3000

1500
2000

1000
500

1000

0
2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

4,131.01

3,671.52

2,833.82

2,606.40

2,356.54

2,233.34

Liabilities

2018

2017

1,431.39 1,321.74

Fixed Assets

0

Other Non-Current Assets

166.37

153.71

2016

2015

2014

2013

988.01

970.98

970.47

975.43

149.03

117.67

662.67

86.42

3,344.88 2,982.73 2,307.26 2,096.13 1,180.37 1,573.19

Current Assets

TOTAL INCOME-TOTAL EXPENSES

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

600

2500

Rupees in Million

500

Rupees in Million

2000

400

1500

300
1000

200

500

100
0

0

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Non-Current Liabilities

234.69

228.58

182.94

197.69

183.26

186.86

Total Income

2,126.06 1,987.62 1,658.95 1,534.06 1,232.84 1,059.22

2018

2017

2016

Current Liabilities

576.95

558.08

427.54

380.70

273.71

214.83

Total Expenses

1,124.45 1,069.43

953.49

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

NET PROFIT MARGIN

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

10

Rupees

868.72

2014
755.80

2013
691.87

Percentages

35
30

8

25

6

20

4

15

2

10

0

2015

5
2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Earnings (pre tax)

9.44

8.65

6.65

6.27

4.50

3.46

Earnings (post tax)

6.31

5.74

4.33

4.07

3.10

2.30

0

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

31.47%

30.63%

27.70%

28.14%

26.69%

23.05%
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BREAK-UP VALUE

PROFITS

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

1200

Rupees

50

Rupees in Million

1000

40

800
30

600

20

400
200

10

0

0

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Proﬁt Before Taxation

38.94

36.72

43.59

40.11

36.25

34.36

Proﬁt After Taxation

SHORT TERM SOLVENCY RATIO

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

918.19

705.46

665.34

477.04

367.35

668.98

608.71

459.46

431.74

329.03

244.11

RETURN ON EQUITY

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

In Times

8

2018
1,001.61

Percentages

20

7
6

15

5
4

10

3
2

5

1
0

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Current Ratio

5.80

5.34

5.40

5.51

4.31

7.32

Quick/Acid test ratio

5.76

5.31

5.34

5.43

4.23

7.22

0

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

17.15%

18.71%

16.89%

17.40%

14.34%

11.02%

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

RETURN ON ASSETS

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June
In Times

0.08

Percentages

20

0.07
0.06

15

0.05
0.04

10

0.03
0.02

5

0.01
0.00
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2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

0.06

0.06

0.06

0.08

0.08

0.08

0

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

14.23%

15.41%

13.86%

14.40%

12.08%

9.35%
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SOURCES OF REVENUE EARNED
Year ended 30 June, 2018

176

99

Other Income

Share Registrar Fee

Rupees in
Million

637

Trustee & Custodiel Services

1,132
CDS Operations

82
Investor Account Services

Application OF REVENUE EARNED
Year ended 30 June, 2018

669
Net Proﬁt

333

Tax Expense

Rupees in
Million

154

Depreciation & Amortization

2,126

Revenue

971

Expenses other than
Depreciation & Amortization

% CHANGE IN INCOME SINCE 2012

% CHANGE IN EXPENSE SINCE 2012

Years ended 30 June

Years ended 30 June

120%

80%
70%

100%

60%
80%

50%

60%

40%
30%

40%

20%
20%
0%

10%
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

9%

26%

57%

70%

104%

118%

0%

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

9%

19%

37%

51%

69%

77%
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Six YearS Financial Summary
Proﬁtability Ratios

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

Proﬁt before tax as a %age of revenue

47.11%

46.20%

42.52%

43.37%

38.69%

34.68%

Net Proﬁt to Sales %

31.47%

30.63%

27.70%

28.14%

26.69%

23.05%

EBITDA Margin to Sales

59.24%

57.13%

55.49%

56.37%

54.10%

53.48%

Debtors turnover ratio (times per year)

7.61

7.93

8.23

9.29

8.47

9.33

Operating Leverage Ratio

1.55

1.28

0.65

1.54

1.52

0.65

Return on Equity

17.15%

18.71%

16.89%

17.40%

14.34%

11.02%

Return on Capital Employed

16.19%

17.60%

15.79%

16.16%

13.27%

10.13%

47.95

46.04

44.36

39.31

43.09

39.13

52.89%

53.80%

57.48%

55.74%

60.52%

64.61%

Current Ratio

5.80

5.34

5.40

5.51

4.31

7.32

Quick/Acid test ratio

5.76

5.31

5.34

5.43

4.23

7.22

Cash to Current Liabilities

5.25

4.63

4.64

4.87

3.48

4.24

Cash ﬂow from operation to Sales

0.45

0.40

0.34

0.41

0.39

0.35

14.23%

15.41%

13.86%

14.40%

12.08%

9.35%

Earning per share (before tax)

9.44

8.65

6.65

6.27

4.50

3.46

Earning per share (after tax)

6.31

5.74

4.33

4.07

3.10

2.30

24

30

4

49

59

80

Cash Dividend Per Share

1.50

1.72

0.19

1.99

1.84

1.84

Stock Dividend per Share

4.14

0.57

3.30

Dividend Cover Ratio

4.20

3.33

22.97

2.04

1.69

1.25

32.23

27.83

22.32

20.09

17.65

16.41

Net Assets Per Share

38.94

34.61

26.71

24.57

22.21

21.05

Debt to Equity Ratio

0.06

0.06

0.06

0.08

0.08

0.08

Debtors collection period (Days)
Expense as a %age of revenue expense including
depriciation & excluding tax & WWF
Liquidity Ratios

Return on assets
Investment / Market Ratio

Dividend Payout ratio

Breakup Value per share without surplus
on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

-

-

-

Capital Structure Ratio
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Directors

REPORT

The Directors of Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited are pleased to present the Company’s
Annual Report and Annual Audited Unconsolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018
along with Auditors’ Report thereon.
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE
Pakistan’s macros have relatively improved, showing a GDP
growth of 5.8% in FY2018 which is highest in a decade, uptick in
credit rating to B3 (Moody’s), inﬂation was also moderate for
this FY. The economy is expected to grow considering the
ongoing infrastructure projects under CPEC, improvement in
energy availability, higher consumption pattern and stimulus
measures and stability in law and order situation. However,
adverse balance of payment, placement on FATF’s grey list and
expected recovery of crude oil price are major challenges.

2017-18 is Rs. 2,126 million against Rs. 1,988 million of previous
year showing a growth of 7%. The proﬁt before and after tax is
Rs. 1,002 million and Rs. 669 million respectively showing the
growth of 9% and 10% respectively compared to the previous
year’s results.
The market performance was lower than the budgeted
expectation, however, the performance of diversiﬁed
operations exceeds the budgetary target.

Revenue

2500

CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW

Expenses

Pakistan upgraded to the MSCI Emerging Market index in June
2017 where an increase in foreign visibility was expected.
However, the performance of capital market was on declining
trend since touching its record high in May 2017; it is currently
down 21% with a signiﬁcant discount in P/E multiple as
compared to regional peers. Going forward, Amnesty Scheme
and timely General Elections are the expected positive triggers
that will pave the way for the market’s rebound. Following the
conclusion of both these events, along with the market’s
attractive valuation, the upward trajectory is expected to
continue once the political headwinds subside.

Proﬁt Before Tax
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
We are pleased to announce that CDC had another successful
year of operations where CDC continued to achieve all time
high revenue and proﬁts. The company’s revenue for the year

0
2018

2017

2016

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

(Rupees in ‘000’)
Operating income

1,950,195

1,842,514

1,492,076

Less: Operating and administrative expenses

1,089,517

1,045,745

935,253

Operating proﬁt

860,678

796,769

556,823

Other income

175,869

145,110

166,868

34,933

23,685

18,234

1,001,614

918,194

705,457

Less: Other expenses
Proﬁt before income tax
Less: Income tax expense

332,629

309,480

246,000

Proﬁt for the year

668,985

608,714

459,457

6.31

5.74

4.33

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rs.)

A tabular presentation reﬂecting revenue growth of its main segments over the years is as follows:
Revenue Sources

CAGR

2018

%

2017

2016

2015

2014

(Rupees in million)

Depository Services

13%

1,222

1,204

996

934

738

Trustee & Custodial services

18%

637

581

462

403

326

Share Registrar services

38%

99

65

40

34

27

51

Other Income
8%

5%
Share Registar Services

30%
Trustee and Custodial Services

Revenue
mix

57%
Depository Services

MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS

eDividend Repository

Continued Investor Protection and
Awareness

IBAN Validation and Title Fetching
Mechanism at the time of
Account Opening
CDC CEO appointed as Vice Chairman
of Executive Committee of Asia Paciﬁc
Central Securities Depository Group

ISAE 3402 Certiﬁcation
Co-Hosting of 14th World Forum of
Depositories (WFC) Conference
I.T. Infrastructure Upgrade
Increasing Outreach of Depository
through banks
Number 1 R/TA Service Provider
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Growth in Central Depository Services
CDC has changed the face of the Capital Market in the country
with Central Depository System which brought unprecedented
eﬃciency and transparency to the market processes. With
advancements and new products, it is continuing to improve
investors’ faith in the market processes and ushering the
Capital Market into a new phase of development which is
evident from the continuous increase of number of shares in
CDS as exhibit below.

Increasing Outreach of Depository through
banks

An exclusive emphasis is being placed on increasing the
outreach and for this purpose CDC worked closely with Banks
to make it easier for them to start oﬀering Custodial Services.
We persuaded SECP to come-up with a simple and lean
Account Opening form for Banks. As a result of this eﬀort, 4
Banks have already started oﬀering Custodial Services.

Investor Protection and Awareness related
activities

130%

CDC has always been proactively working on various initiatives
to promote awareness as well as to provide tools to investors
for safeguarding their interests.

125%

Investor Protection

135%

CDC has always given paramount importance to safety and
security of client’s assets. In this regard, it carries out various
inspections of Participants with enhanced scope and coverage
of 100% sub-accounts which includes on-site and oﬀ-site
inspections. As per Joint Inspection Regulation 2015, CDC is
entrusted with the leading role of inspection. CDC also
performs periodic activities to ensure investor protection
which include Circularization of Account Balance Statement to
all Sub Account Holders, active surveillance and monitoring
activities.

120%
115%
110%
105%
100%
95%
90%

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Technological
I.T. Infrastructure Upgrade

The technology infrastructure at CDC serves as the backbone
for all its entire business services. In order to provide highly
reliable and secure services to its diversiﬁed clientele, CDC
continuously upgrades and enhances its technology
infrastructure using state-of-the-art products and services.
This technology upgrade includes network infrastructure,
virtualization for servers and services, migration to tier 3 data
center facility, database platform, performance optimization of
core business application and internet portals.

International Certiﬁcations

CDC successfully achieved ISAE 3402 certiﬁcation as part of
regulatory requirement to demonstrate eﬀectiveness of
internal control. ISO 27001 and ISO 22301 certiﬁcations’
surveillance audits for CDC’s Information Security and Business
Continuity Management Programs were successfully executed
with SGS Pakistan.

Investors Facilitation
IBAN Validation and Title Fetching Mechanism

To facilitate clients in reference to the mandatory requirement
of input of International Bank Account Number (IBAN) in the
CDS Account, CDC partnered with 1Link (which operates the
largest ePayment network in Pakistan) for an arrangement to
automatically display the account title on entering the relevant
IBAN number in CDS Account Setup Detail. This facilitates the
synchronization of account title of investor in the banking
system and CDS.

Element Training Program (ETP) 2018

CDC conducted its ﬂagship Element Training Program in
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad. This biennial training aimed at
providing CDS Elements information about the latest
developments in the system as well as the procedures and
regulations to be followed in respect of CDS operations. The
sessions also oﬀered our valued clients an opportunity to
refresh their understanding about the roles and
responsibilities that result from their association with CDS and
direct access to CDC personnel for resolution of any queries or
concerns.

Awareness Programs

As part of CDC’s endeavors to spread awareness about the
risks and opportunities regarding investment in Pakistan
Capital Market, CDC representatives visit diﬀerent cities across
Pakistan and conduct investor education seminars once a
month. This year, Investor Education Seminars were held in the
cities of Karachi, Lahore, Faisalabad and Rawalpindi /
Islamabad which were attended by Sub Account and Investor
Account Holders who lauded this initiative for investor
awareness. The events were extremely interactive and
discussed the latest developments in Capital Market processes
and regulations as well as CDC’s role in ensuring investor
protection.

Support in Investor cultivation

A series of Investor Awareness Seminars was conducted as
part of CDC’s collaborative eﬀorts with Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX) and Al Meezan Investment
Management Limited. These seminars were organized for
residents of Sialkot, Gujranwala, and Karachi to provide
in-depth understanding about Islamic investment options
available in Pakistan Capital Market.
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Capital Market Expo

In line with its initiatives of Investor Awareness and Education,
CDC organized ‘Pakistan Capital Market Expo’ in the city of
Hyderabad. The said event helped educate both the current
and potential investors with respect to the investment
opportunities available in the Pakistan Capital Market. The
event comprised of an exhibition by stock brokers and Asset
Management Companies (AMCs) and awareness presentations
by representatives of PSX, MUFAP, CDC and SECP. The
Jamshoro Chamber of Commerce and Industry and Kotri
Association of Trade and Industry supported this event. CDC
has organized similar successful events in Multan, Faisalabad,
Sialkot, Abbottabad and Peshawar in the past which were
attended by professionals, businessmen, members of the local
chambers of commerce and students.

Financial Literacy Workshops

CDC understands the value and need of spreading ﬁnancial
education and works with experts of the ﬁeld to ensure sound
knowledge reaches the general public. CDC regularly organizes
sessions to oﬀer awareness about diverse investment
opportunities and avenues available in the capital market. One
of such initiatives is a comprehensive Orientation on Mutual
Funds which aims at clearing the misconceptions of general
public about investing in Mutual Funds and provides them
detailed understanding of how Mutual Funds actually work.
Another one of CDC’s ﬁnancial literacy initiatives, the Money
Management Workshop targets to alter the attitude of people
towards money by encouraging them to save and make
educated investments.

Business Innovation / Reforms
eIPO

In 2017, CDC launched the eIPO system wherein investors can
directly submit IPO applications electronically and can make
subscription payments, without visiting any bank branch. At
initial stage, banks were reluctant to join CDC eIPO portal but
with continuous engagement with SECP, SBP and banks, more
and more banks joined our system. Today, through our
eﬀorts,10 leading banks have already joined CES and more are
seriously considering the same. Now with 10 banks onboard
and some system related changes, the system is getting
popular among investors and the usage of CES is also
increasing. Initially during our 1st IPO, we processed only 0.2%
of the total subscriptions, however, in the last IPO, we
processed more than 37% of the total subscriptions.

eDividend Repository

CDC has recently launched an eDividend Repository by
develeping a Centralized Cash Dividend Register. This is a
free-of-cost service for investors through an internet based
web portal and can be accessed from anywhere in the world. It
provides investors consolidated data of all their cash beneﬁts
due and credited by issuers, and in case their dividends have
not been credited, the reason for non-disbursement will also
be available.
As an additional facilitation, CDC has also arranged to send the
Dividend/Zakat & Tax Deduction report (counterfoil) via email
attachment to all the shareholders of the companies whose
information has been entered in our repository. CDC also
provides a consolidated report to the shareholders of all cash
disbursement in a ﬁnancial year such as dividend rates, net
dividend paid, tax and Zakat deductions etc. With all details
available through a single source, this newly developed facility
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will enable shareholders to keep track of withheld dividends (if
any), and maintain history of all cash beneﬁts availed besides
many other features.

Regulatory Reform

In order to strengthen the investor protection measures and to
keep in line with the needs and requirements of the changing
business environment, CDC regularly revamps its Regulations.
We have also aligned CDC Regulations in line with the Central
Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2016
(“Licensing Regulations”) issued under the Securities Act, 2015.
With the changing state of aﬀairs in the working boundaries of
the depository and other related institutions as well as to cater
to market demands for more value added services, a number
of amendments in the Central Depository Act have been
proposed by CDC and submitted to SECP for review.

International
Vice Chairmanship of Executive Committee of
Asia Paciﬁc Central Securities Depository
Group (ACG)

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Diwan, CEO – CDC was selected Vice
Chairman of Asia Paciﬁc Central Securities Depository Group
(ACG). This honor came to Pakistan in the 14th World Forum of
CSDs (WFC 2017) Conference held in Hong Kong from
November 14 - 17, 2017. ACG is a representative forum of all
the depositories and clearing houses of the Asia-Paciﬁc region.
The group comprises of 34 CSDs from 23 countries. ACG is also
one of the ﬁve members of World Forum of Central Securities
Depositories (WFC), which is the global body of depositories
and clearing houses, representing all the ﬁve regions, namely
Asia, Europe, Middle East & Africa, Americas and CIS states. As
Vice Chairman of ACG, Mr. Diwan also represent the Asian
region on WFC Board. This recognition is an honor for Pakistan,
as only two depositories from Asian region are present on the
World Forum, which are CDC Pakistan and KSD Korea.

CDC organized 14th WFC Conference

The World Forum of Central Securities Depositories (WFC)
Conference is the global forum of Depositories. CDC was one of
the organizers of the WFC2017 Conference held in Hong Kong.
The WFC conference is a global biennial event that oﬀers an
information sharing and networking platform for leaders of
central securities depositories and clearing houses, regulators
and custodians including international banks from across the
globe. CDC organized this conference along with CSDs of China,
India and Hong Kong. CDC was also responsible for agenda
setting of the conference. More than 250 delegates from 58
countries and region participated in the event.

Other Businesses
Trustee and Custodial Services - Net Assets
under Custody reach at PKR 787 billion as on
June 30, 2018

The overall momentum of Trustee & Custodial Business
remained on positive side despite the fact that in last ﬁscal
year, capital market often faced declining trend in KSE 100
Index which also impacted the size of Mutual Fund Industry.
However, CDC in the capacity of Trustee & Custodial, oﬀering
below services to the market segments, maintained market
leadership:
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•

Trustee Services to the Collective Investment Schemes
(CIS) including Voluntary Pension Schemes (VPS): The
market share of CDC remained 96% on which Assets under
our Trusteeship including VPS reached to Rs. 647 billion
with number of funds increased to 181 as against 171 as at
June 30, 2017.

•

Trustee Services to the Real Investment Trust (REITs):
We are the only trustee of rental REITs in Pakistan having
Net Assets of Rs. 41 billion under trusteeship.

•

Custody Services to Discretionary Portfolio (DP) clients:
The Custodian business for DP clients has shown
tremendous growth wherein our clientele have reached to
170 as against 130 as at June 30, 2017. On the same lines,
Net Assets under custodianship have also increased by 17
billion and reached to Rs. 46 billion as at current ﬁnancial
year end.

•

Trustee to Punjab Government Pension Fund: We are
the only trusteeship provider to the Government backed
Fund whose relevant size is increasing day by day and have
reached to Rs. 53 billion as at June 30, 2018.

2014
148

2015
162

2016
167

Since its launch in 2008, CDC has been successful in redeﬁning
the Share Registrar service standards for the industry and now
caters to 169 securities, including various listed public sector
entities, making it the number one R/TA service provider in the
market within 10 year times. CDC Share Registrar Services have
deeply penetrated in banking sector of Pakistan and acquired
70% listed banks on its clients list. Apart from this, CDC as
Share Registrar is also the Share Registrar of major listed
companies of KSE100 list.
Number of Clients
2013
82

2014
102

2015
109

2016
126

2017
144

2018
169

190%
170%
150%
130%

Number of Funds
2013
132

Share Registrar Services

2017
173

2018
183

110%
90%

185%
70%

180%
175%
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150%
145%
140%
135%
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2018

Number of DP
2013
16

2014
32

2015
62

2016
87

2017
130

2018
170

170
150

2015

2016

2017

2018

ITMinds has been steadily consolidating and augmenting its
client portfolio for its BPO service lines. At the beginning of the
ﬁnancial year 2017-18, ITMinds signed an agreement with Pak
Oman Asset Management Company Limited for its entire
portfolio which also includes all the funds of Askari Investments
which has now been taken over by Pak Oman Asset
Management Company Limited. Successful induction of these
funds has led to the further improvement and propagation of
ITMinds’ brand image in Pakistan’s Mutual Fund industry. At the
close of the ﬁnancial year, ITMinds has a total of 22 funds under
administration with a fund size of Rs 41.5 billion.
The ﬁnancial year 2017-18 also marked the successful
induction and on-boarding of ICI Pakistan Limited, Crescent
Steel & Allied Products Limited and Pakistan Petroleum Limited
into ITMinds’ client portfolio for the accounting function of
their retirement funds.
ITMinds is also actively looking into other areas for further
diversiﬁcation in its service portfolio which includes back oﬃce
accounting for investment advisory for Separately Managed
Accounts.
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FUTURE PLAN
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ITMinds Limited (Wholly owned
subsidiary)

170%

130%
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CDC ﬁrmly believes in the use of latest technologies to upgrade
the mechanisms of Pakistan Capital Market for the purpose of
introducing eﬃciency and transparency and reducing the
manpower and time involved. A number of endeavors in this
regard are in pipeline such as Online Account Opening Form,
ePayment for IAS clients, eVoting for Issuers and Platform for
Awami Pension Scheme.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CDC fully recognizes the importance of an eﬀective risk
management function and has employed various levels of
security mechanisms to protect its information assets and
technology infrastructure from potential risks and hazards.
Regular guidelines are issued encompassing risk policies, risk
management methodologies and tools for increasing
employee awareness.
CDC maintained its strong emphasis on internal controls and
third party veriﬁcations. Besides continuous IT Audits by the
Internal Audit team, CDC successfully conducted Annual
Review, penetration testing and source code reviews by
external Auditors / Consultants. CDC is the ﬁrst SRO in Capital
Market to adopt ISAE 3402 and develop the comprehensive
Enterprise Risk Registers which will assist in re-characterization
of risk sensitivity, applied controls and its mitigation. During
the year we closely reviewed and monitored the risk of various
business activities mainly focusing on operational, legal and
reputational risk. In order to further protect the Company from
any monetary loss, CDC has also obtained risk insurance policy
covering computer crimes, professional indemnity and
employee inﬁdelity from reputed insurance company.
In order to streamline the risk management function &
processes in a more formal and organized manner across the
organization, CDC is also working on the implementation of the
Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERM).

In 2017 the SECP issued Code of Corporate Governance
Regulations 2017 for listed companies, revising the previous
regulations. The Board and management of the Company are
committed to good corporate governance and complying with
the best practices.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST CORPORATE
PRACTICES

Over the years, CDC has positioned itself to surpass the legal
requirements and adhere to global best practices and
standards of governance. Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017
and the review report by the Company’s Auditors are
presented on page no. 80 and 84 respectively.

Directors’ Compliance Statement

Pursuant to and in compliance with Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 the Directors are
pleased to report that:
a)

The ﬁnancial statements present fairly its state of aﬀairs,
the results of its operations, cash ﬂows and changes in
equity.

b)

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been
maintained.

c)

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
applied in preparation of ﬁnancial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

d)

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of ﬁnancial
statements and any departure therefrom has been
adequately disclosed.

e)

The system of internal control is sound in design and has
been eﬀectively implemented and monitored. The Audit
Committee comprises of ﬁve members and all the
members of the Audit Committee are non-executive
directors.

f)

The directors are well aware of their duties and
responsibilities as outlined by corporate laws.

g)

There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

h)

There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance.

i)

The Pattern of Shareholding is given on page no. 168.

j)

The key operating and ﬁnancial data of the past six years
are given on page nos. 42 & 44.

k)

Note 33 of Financial Statements on staﬀ retirement
beneﬁts provide information on the value of gratuity fund
and were recorded as liability.

l)

Note 26.5 and 33 of Financial Statements provide
information regarding the value of investment of
provident fund and gratuity fund.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

CDC has become an approved employer for Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan i.e. Training Organization
Outside Practice (TOOP) - ICAP’s newly launched program to
facilitate students by giving them a choice to get exposure of
corporate sector along with audit ﬁrms.
CDC ensured resiliency for its critical operations by internal
rotation of staﬀ and assignment of cross functional projects
and arranged local/international trainings to its various staﬀ to
maintain its leadership position

COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS

CDC contributes 2.5% of proﬁt before tax to support
philanthropic activities. We support a broad range of initiatives
in the area of health, education, and environment protection as
we believe they provide the fundamental building blocks for
the development of society. CDC sponsored the construction
of a school in collaboration with The Citizens Foundation (TCF)
in Tapo Azeem Shah, Mirpur Khas, Sindh, targeting an
underprivileged area. The construction has been completed
and the school is now functional with 259 (2017: 234) students.
CDC is also contributing for the school’s yearly operational
cost. Our aim is to make signiﬁcant infrastructural investment
and arrange for qualiﬁed teachers.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good Governance lies at the core of our values and ethical
standards. The Board is aware of its responsibilities towards
the shareholders, value of inputs from our stakeholders,
besides upholding the reputation of CDC.
The Company ﬁrmly believes in the importance of good
governance and best practices, and the mechanism for good
governance encompasses the highest standards of
professionalism, ethical practices, accountability and
transparency,

56

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited | Annual Report 2018
Composition of Board of Directors

Apart from regulatory requirements, execution of the
Company’s current and future strategic objectives deﬁne the
parameters for the qualiﬁcation and composition of the Board
of Directors. This enables the Company to achieve highest
levels of good governance, transparency, awareness of Board’s
responsibilities in achieving Company’s objectives, besides
ensuring smooth business operations.
CDC’s board comprises of a mixture of individuals representing
shareholding institutions as well as independent directors.
Precisely, the Board comprises of seven individuals
representing shareholding institutions, four independent
directors and the Chief Executive Oﬃcer by virtue of position as
per statute. All the Directors of the Company meet the
eligibility criteria laid down under the Companies Act, 2017,
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017.
The tenure of oﬃce of a director is three years. Upon expiry of
which, elections are held to appoint a new Board in accordance
with the statute. Directors representing respective
shareholding institutions have no direct interest in the
Company’s business.
The Board of Directors remained actively involved during the
year in performing its duties and functions as speciﬁed under
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017. CDC has availed the services of Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) for the evaluation of
the Board’s own performance and contribution towards
eﬀectiveness.

achieving Company’s objectives.
Notices / agendas of the meetings were circulated in advance,
in a timely manner and in compliance of applicable laws. The
quorum of all the meetings also exceeded the minimum
requirements as prescribed by the Companies Act 2017, with
the Chief Financial Oﬃcer and Company Secretary also in
attendance. The Company Secretary meticulously noted the
proceedings and maintained minutes of the meetings
encompassing details regarding all decisions taken by the
Board and explanations provided by the management. The
minutes were circulated to the Directors within the prescribed
time and were approved in the subsequent Board meetings.
The Board’s attendance status is mentioned as under:
Name of Directors
Mr. Moin M. Fudda
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Syed Majid Ali
Mr. Ahmed Chinoy
Mr. Abid Ali Habib
Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood
Mr. Farid Malik
Dr. Aamir Matin
Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi
Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir
Mr. Muhammad Tariq Raﬁ
Mr. Shehzad Chamdia
Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar
Mr. Muhammad Yasin Lakhani
Mr. Husain Lawai
Mr. Richard Morin
Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Attendance
11/11
11/11
9/10
1/1
11/11
11/11
11/11
7/9
4/5
5/5
3/11
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
1/1
5/5

PICG along with its team of consultants has been leading Board
Evaluation services since 2013 for companies and banks. The
evaluation consists of various components of the performance
of board including but not limited to Board’s role, Committees,
Board Procedures, Strategy, Board Interaction and Board &
CEO eﬀectiveness.

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not
attend some of the meetings.

Changes in the Board

Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Directors completed their
tenure in oﬃce. Election of directors was held on December 22,
2017 and seven directors representing shareholding
institutions were elected
in accordance with Licensing
Regulations.

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of ﬁve members,
all of whom have extensive ﬁnancial management, business
and economics experience. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee is an independent non-executive director, whereas
the remaining members are non-executive directors.

Subsequently, in accordance with the requirements of the
Licensing Regulations Mr. Moin M. Fudda, Syed Masoud Ali
Naqvi, Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir and Syed Majid Ali were
appointed as independent Directors and Mr. Moin M. Fudda
was unanimously elected as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company. After the Completion of the Board,
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan was re-appointed as Chief Executive
Oﬃcer of the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Board continued to perform its
duties and responsibilities eﬀectively as per its approved terms
of reference. The Committee met 6 times during the year and
also held a meeting with the external auditors without the
presence of Chief Finance Oﬃcer and Head of Internal Audit.
The attendance status of the Audit Committee is mentioned as
under:

In addition, casual vacancies incurred during the year were
ﬁlled in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. The Board
places on record its appreciation for the valuable contribution
made by the outgoing Directors.

Board & Committee Meetings

As prescribed by the regulatory framework, the Board is
required to meet at least once every quarter to monitor
achievements of the Company’s objectives. CDC’s Board met
eleven times in the year 2017-18 to discuss routine and special
matters besides providing guidance to the management on

Name of Directors
Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi (Chairman)
Syed Majid Ali
Mr. Ahmed Chinoy
Mr. Moin M. Fudda
Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood
Mr. Farid Malik
Mr. Shehzad Chamdia
Mr. Richard Morin
Mr. Ahsan Muhammad Saleem

Attendance
3/3
6/6
0/0
3/3
3/3
6/6
2/2
1/1
2/3
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Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee

Directors’ Training

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee reviews
the human resource architecture of the Company and ensures
that the human resource strategy is aligned to the overall
corporate strategy. The Chairman of the Committee is an
independent non-executive Director and all the members of
the Committee excluding the Chief Executive Oﬃcer are
non-executive Director. The Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee met seven times during the year and its attendance
status is mentioned as under:
Name of Directors

Attendance

Mr. Moin M. Fudda (Chairman)
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Syed Majid Ali
Mr. Abid Ali Habib
Mr. Farid Malik
Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar
Mr. Husain Lawai

7/7
7/7
6/7
4/4
5/7
3/3
3/3

Risk & Regulatory Aﬀairs Committee (“RRAC”)

The RRAC oversees the matters relating to Regulations,
Compliances, and Enforcement actions and other related
functions as prescribed in the Licensing Regulations and
related work performed by the Chief Compliance and Risk
Oﬃce (“CCRO”) and makes recommendations to the Board for
further improvements in the functions and consider and
evaluate that the role and responsibilities assigned to the
CCRO are eﬃciently and eﬀectively performed.
The RRAC met seven times during the year and its attendance
status is mentioned as under:
Name of Directors

Attendance

Syed Majid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Mr. Moin M. Fudda
Mr. Abid Ali Habib
Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood
Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

7/7
6/7
4/4
3/3
7/7
3/3

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has a policy for ascertaining Directors’
remuneration with review of external consultant every three
years.
The process is in compliance with legal requirements and
remuneration includes fee for attending Board and Committee
meetings, boarding and lodging expenses and separate beneﬁt
for Chairman of the Board in view of additional roles and
responsibilities. Details of aggregate amount of remuneration
separately of executive and non-executive directors is
presented on page no. 44.

FORMAL ORIENTATION AT INDUCTION

CDC has detailed an orientation plan for new Board members
apprising them on the Company’s long term strategy, business
operations and environment, besides encouraging cohesion
among the Board members.
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The Company is committed to arrange orientation course and
training programs for its directors to apprise them of their
duties and responsibilities. Six directors of the Company have
completed formal directors training program and for the
remaining directors, training will be scheduled accordingly or
exemption will be sought from the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, as the case may be.

REVIEW OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As per the requirements of the regulatory framework, the
Audit Committee reviews details of all related party
transactions, before approval by the Board in view of
recommendations made by the Audit Committee.

Pattern of Shareholding

The Pattern of shareholding and categories of shareholders of
the Company as at June 30, 2018 is presented on page no. 168.

Ethics and Compliance

Code of Conduct has been disseminated to all employees and
Directors of the Company in addition to being available on the
Company’s website in compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017.

Capital Structure and Liquidity Management

The Company’s strategy is to maintain a strong capital base
which is built on reserves so as to maintain investors’, creditors’
and market conﬁdence and to sustain future development of
the business. This has resulted in Company’s ability to operate
in an eﬃcient manner to enable it to provide healthy returns
for shareholders and beneﬁts for other stakeholders.
During the year an amount of Rs. 880 million was generated
from operating activities of the Company.
At the year end, the Company had a liquid fund position
comprising of cash/bank balances and short term investments
amounting to Rs. 3,030 million.
To ensure suﬃcient availability of funds at all times whilst
generating optimum returns through placement of surplus
liquidity in various available investment avenues, the Company
has developed and implemented a cash ﬂow monitoring
mechanism whereby cash inﬂows and outﬂows are projected
and monitored on regular basis.
The Company is now subjected to comply with ﬁnancial
resource requirements as envisaged in the Central
Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations after its
promulgation in February 2016.

Materiality Approach

The management has adopted a materiality approach which is
based on a combination of stakeholder engagement,
under-standing of environmental limits and strategic
alignment. It has made the process, assumptions and evidence
the base for identifying material issues for more transparent,
credible and amenable disclosures to have more transparency
on risk and opportunities.
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Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in conformity with
approved accounting standards requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aﬀect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses as deﬁned in note 2 of
Financial Statements.

Appropriations

The directors in their meeting held on August 09, 2018 have
proposed bonus shares @ 41.3894% i.e. 43.91 million shares
(2017: 6.09% i.e. 6.09 million shares) and cash dividend of Rs.
1.50 per share (2017: Rs. 1.83 per share) of Rs. 10 each i.e. 15%
of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended
June 30, 2018.
The unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2018 do not include the eﬀect of these appropriations
which will be accounted for in the period in which it is approved
by shareholders.

Financial Highlights

Key operating and ﬁnancial data of previous years has been
summarized on page nos. 42 & 44.

Contribution to National Exchequer and
Economy

An amount of PKR 340 Million (2017: PKR 308 Million) was
contributed during the year in respect of Income tax. As a
responsible citizen of our country your Company contributed
15.98% (2017: 15.49%) of total revenue back to the Economy.

Statement as to the Value of Investment of
Provident Fund

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function is eﬀectively operating within the
framework set out in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 and the charter deﬁned by the
Audit Committee of the Board. The Board relies on the inputs
and recommendations of the Internal Audit function through
its Audit Committee on the adequacy and eﬀectiveness of
internal controls in the organization and takes appropriate
measures.
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appreciates and acknowledges the valuable assistance,
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and also extended to the company.
For and on behalf of the Board

-sdAftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Oﬃcer

-sdMoin M. Fudda
Chairman

Karachi, dated: Thursday, August 09, 2018

The value of the investment of the provident fund is PKR 54
Million.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments aﬀecting the ﬁnancial
position of the Company have occurred between the end of the
ﬁnancial year of the company and the date of this report.

External Auditors

The present auditors of the company M/s. Grant Thornton
Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, audited the ﬁnancial
statements of the Company and have issued unqualiﬁed report
to the members. The auditors will retire at the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting. Being legible they have oﬀered
themselves
for
re-appointment.
The
Board
have
recommended the appointment of M/s. Grant Thornton
Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants as auditor for the
ensuing year, as suggested by the Audit Committee, subject to
approval by members in the 26th Annual General Meeting.
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2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

(Rupees in million)

CAGR
%

738

934

996

1,204

1,222

13%

326

403

462

581

637

18%

27

34

40

65

99

38%

Other Income
8%
5%
Share Registar Services
30%
Trustee and Custodial Services

Revenue
mix

57%
Depository Services
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1,492,076

1,842,514

1,950,195

935,253

1,045,745

1,089,517

556,823

796,769

860,678

166,868

145,110

175,869

18,234

23,685

34,933

705,457

918,194

1,001,614

246,000

309,480

332,629

459,457

608,714

668,985

4.33

5.74

6.31
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Notice of 26th Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 26th Annual General Meeting of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited will be held
on Tuesday, September 25, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. at its registered oﬃce situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S, Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to transact the following business:
1.

To receive and adopt the annual audited standalone and consolidated Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2018, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon and Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017.

2.

To consider and declare cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 15% and bonus shares @ 41.3894% to the
shareholders as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

3.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2019 and ﬁx their remuneration.

Special Business:
1.

Increase in Authorized Share Capital
To consider and approve increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 1.50 Billion to Rs. 2.50 Billion and to
approve the amendments in the Memorandum of Association of the Company resulting from this increase and, if deemed
appropriate, to pass, with or without modiﬁcation, the following resolution as Special Resolution:
Special Resolution
“Resolved that the Authorized Share Capital of the Company be increased from existing Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees One
Billion Five Hundred Million) to Rs. 2,500,000,000 (Rupees Two Billion Five Hundred Million only) (i.e. an increase in the
authorized number of shares from 150 Million ordinary shares to 250 Million ordinary shares having a face value of Rs. 10
each).
Resolved further that Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company is be and hereby amended as follows:
V. The authorised shares capital of the company is Rs. 2,500,000,000/- (Rupees Two Billion Five Hundred Million) divided into
250,000,000 (Two Hundred Fifty Million) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each. The company shall have powers to increase,
reduce or reorganize the capital of the company and divide shares in the capital for the time being into several classes
constituting ordinary shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.
Resolved further that all legal and ancillary formalities shall be carried out by the Company in accordance of the law, and
that the Chief Executive Oﬃcer and the Company Secretary be and are hereby jointly and severally authorized to fulﬁl all legal,
corporate and procedural formalities in the regard.”

2.

Alteration of Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association:
To consider and if deemed appropriate, to pass, with or without modiﬁcations, a special resolution to amend the
Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company as follows:
Special Resolution
“RESOLVED THAT the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association be replaced in its entirety with the new
Memorandum & Articles of Association (as circulated to the Members)
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Oﬃcer and the CFO & Company Secretary be and are hereby authorised
singly to fulﬁl all legal, corporate and procedural formalities and to take all steps and actions necessary and ancillary for the
amendment to the memorandum of association and to do all acts, matters, deeds and ﬁlings with the SECP along with all
requisite documents, aﬃdavits, statements, etc. for recording of the alteration of Memorandum and Articles of Association.”

(Attached to this Notice is a Statement of Material Facts covering the above-mentioned special business, as required under Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017).
By order of the Board,
___________________
Shariq Jafrani
CFO & Company Secretary
Karachi, Dated: Tuesday, September 04 , 2018
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Notes:
1.

A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Act 2017/ Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such
Corporation or such other Company, is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its
oﬃcials or any other person to act as its authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the
person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other Company if
he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote
instead of him / her.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised in
writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the
form.

5.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the shareholder (where applicable) and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy
form. In case of corporate entity, the Board’s resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

6.

The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting if requested.

7.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a
notarially certiﬁed copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Oﬃce of the Company not less than
forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.

8.

Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.

Book Closure:
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on September 24, and September 25, 2018. Transfer received in
order at the Registered Oﬃce of the Company located at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400
before the said date shall be treated in time, subject to Article 26 of Company’s Articles of Association, for any corporate
entitlements approved by the members.
Payment of Cash Dividend through the Chosen Mode:
In terms of Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through the mode
chosen by the respective shareholder via its mandate.
If any shareholder wishes to change the mandate provided, it shall do so in writing during the year, which shall become applicable
and eﬀective for any future cash dividend pay-outs.
Deduction of Income tax from Dividend at Revised Rates:
Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2018, eﬀective 01 July, 2018, the deduction of income tax from dividend payments shall
be made on the basis of ﬁlers and non-ﬁlers.
Income Tax will be deducted on the basis of Active Tax Payers List posted on the Federal Board of Revenue website.
Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit
a valid tax certiﬁcate or necessary documentary evidence, as the case maybe.
The Shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by ﬁlers and non-ﬁlers shall be dealt with separately and in such particular
situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer or a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his shareholding.
If the share is not ascertainable, then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the deduction
will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint account holders are requested to
provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of the Company.

Folio /CDC
Account No

Name of
Shareholder

CNIC

Shareholding

Total
Shares

Principal /Joint
Shareholder

Unclaimed Dividend:
Shareholders who by any reason could not collect their dividend are advised to contact the Company to collect / enquire about their
unclaimed dividend, if any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated
procedure, all such dividends outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due shall be deposited to the credit of
Federal Government.
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Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017
This statement sets out material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on September 25, 2018.
1. Increase in Authorized Share Capital
Reason for change:
The Board in its 200th meeting held on August 09, 2018, recommended issuance of bonus shares @ 41.3894% subject to approval
of the shareholders, which shall consequently increase the paid-up capital to Rs. 1.5 Billion (post the issuance of bonus shares)
which is the current Authorized Share Capital of the Company.
The Board, therefore, recommended to increase the Authorized Share Capital to Rs. 2.50 Billion to cater the future requirements of
increase in paid-up capital of the Company in accordance with the Central Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2016.
This would eﬀectively mean an increase in the authorized number of shares from 150 Million ordinary shares to 250 Million
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each.
2. Amendments in the Memorandum & Articles of Association
Reason for change
With the promulgation of the Central Depositories (Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2016 (“the Licensing Regulations”) certain
conditions of licensing were prescribed in the Licensing Regulations, in addition to the requirements prescribed under the
Securities Act, 2015 (“the Securities Act”), which needs to be complied with by a Central Depository. Among these conditions, one of
the condition is to align Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A”) of the Central Depository with the Securities Act and the
Licensing Regulations. Relevant excerpts of the Licensing Regulations are as under:
“Regulation 5(1)(i)

ensure that its memorandum and articles of association contain no provision inconsistent with the provisions of
the Act and these regulations and that no change is made in its memorandum and articles of association except
with the prior written approval of the Commission.”

Moreover, with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 (Act No. XIX of 2017) (“the Act”) on May 30, 2017, various reforms have
been made in the law relating to companies and for matters connected therewith which were subsequently augmented with the
promulgation of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“CCG”)
In view of the above, consequential changes are required in the Company’s M&A. In light of the Act, the entire M&A is proposed to
be replaced with the simpliﬁed format for the purposes of eﬃciency and ease.
Statutory provisions relating to format of Memorandum and Articles of Association
As per Section 41 of the Act, format of Memorandum of Association of a company limited by shares shall be as provided in Table B
in the First Schedule of the Companies Act or as near thereto.
As per Section 36 of the Act, the Articles of Association of a company limited by shares may adopt all or any of the regulations
contained in Table A in the First Schedule of the Act, which is a simpliﬁed version.
Market practice:
It has been observed that some companies have started to adopt simpliﬁed version of M&A as provided in the ﬁrst schedule of the
Act.
Changes Proposed
All the superﬂuous and inconsistent clauses are removed from the existing Memorandum and the simpliﬁed memorandum (i.e.
single object one page memorandum) is proposed to be adopted.
Synopsis of major amendments are made there under for perusal of the Members:
1.

Memorandum and Articles of Association contains no provision inconsistent with the provisions of the Securities Act and the
Licensing Regulations.

2.

The principal line of business of the Company continues to remain the same, i.e. a depository company.

3.

Insertion of a general clause where the Company may carry out any lawful business other than the business excluded in the
memorandum i.e. Banking Company, Non-Banking Finance Company, Insurance Business, Modaraba Business etc.
Eﬀectively, all the ancillary and tertiary clauses have been deleted.

4.

Appointment of Directors, Independent Directors and Chief Executive Oﬃcer in accordance with the conditions, criteria and
manner prescribed under the Act and the Licensing Regulations.

5.

Selection of Chairman for the General Meeting among the Independent Directors and in case of absence or unwillingness,
selection of Chairman among the Elected Director who are not TRE certiﬁcate holders.
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6.

For the purpose of selecting the names of persons meeting Fit & Proper Criteria to be appointed as Independent Directors
with the approval of the Commission, Board shall meet immediately following an Election Meeting to be chaired by any
elected Director who is not a TRE certiﬁcate holder.

7.

Selection of Chairman for the Board Meeting among the Independent Directors.

8.

Fixing of the number of Directors in accordance with the Act, whereas Independent Directors to be appointed by the Board in
accordance with the manner prescribed in the Licensing Regulations.

9.

Manner for election of Directors in the general meeting.

10.

New Provision prescribed in the Act where the members of the Company may pass a resolution (ordinary or special) by
circulation (except certain matters) signed by all the members for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting.
Resolution passed by Directors through circulation shall be noted at a subsequent meeting of the board and made part of the
minutes of such meeting.

11.

Distribution of Dividend to the shareholders in accordance with the Section 242 of the Act and Regulations made thereunder.

12.

Attendance of members and Directors in the Meetings through Video-Link.

13.

Provisions where the company shall transact such businesses as may be notiﬁed by the Commission, only through postal
ballot.

14.

A new Article that the Company shall, to the extent applicable, comply with the CCG.

The amended Memorandum & Articles of Association have been prepared in consultation with our Legal Adviser and the same
were reviewed and recommended by the Board for the approval of the members as special business in its 198th meeting held on
April 16, 2018.
Statement by the Board of Directors:
“The proposed alterations are in line with the applicable provisions of the law and regulatory framework”.
Comparative statement and copies of the existing Memorandum & Articles of Association and as may appear after the proposed
alterations have been kept at the Registered Oﬃce of the Company and may be inspected during business hours of the Company
on any working day from the date of publication of this notice till the conclusion of the general meeting.
The Directors of the Company are not directly interested with the aﬀairs of the Special Business (except to the extent of their
directorships and shareholdings in the Company) which nevertheless is intended to bring the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company in conformity with the applicable law.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017
for the year ending June 30, 2018

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1.

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive Directors on its Board of Directors. At present the
Board comprises of following male directors:

Category

Names

Independent Directors

Mr. Moin M. Fudda
Syed Majid Ali
Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi
Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy
Mr. Abid Ali Habib
Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood
Mr. Farid Malik
Dr. Aamir Matin
Mr. Muhammad Tariq Raﬁ

Executive Director (CEO)
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Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

2.

The directors have conﬁrmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than ﬁve listed companies, including this
company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

3.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

4.

Casual vacancies occurred in the Board during the year were ﬁlled up by the directors in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association except one casual vacancy which is expected to be ﬁlled in prescribed time.

5.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and signiﬁcant policies of the Company. A
complete record of particulars of signiﬁcant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.

6.

The management has adopted a materiality approach which is based on a combination of stakeholder engagement,
under-standing of environmental limits and strategic alignment. It has made the process, assumptions and evidence the base
for identifying material issues for more transparent, credible and amenable disclosures to have more transparency on risk
and opportunities.

7.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

8.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board for this
purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of board.

9.

The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations.
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10.

The Company is committed to arrange orientation courses and training programs for its directors to apprise them of their
duties and responsibilities. Six directors of the Company have completed formal directors training program whereas one
director is exempted from the mandatory requirement under CCG for acquiring DTP certiﬁcation. For the remaining directors,
training will be scheduled accordingly or exemption will be sought from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
as the case may be.

11.

There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Oﬃcer (“CFO”), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the
year. The board has approved remuneration of CFO & Company Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor.

12.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the ﬁnancial statements before approval of the board.

13.

The board has formed statutory committees comprising of members given below:
a. Audit Committee:
Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi

Chairman (Independent Director)

Syed Majid Ali

Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy

Member

Mr. Farid Malik

Member

b. Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

c.

Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Chairman (Independent Director)

Syed Majid Ali

Member

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Member

Mr. Farid Malik

Member

(Independent Director)

Nomination & Compensation Committee
Mr. Moin M. Fudda

Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

Mr. Farid Malik

Member

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi

Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

Member (Independent Director)

d. Risk & Regulatory Aﬀairs Committee
Syed Majid Ali

Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Member

Mr. Abid Ali Habib

Member

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Member

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

Member (Independent Director)

14.

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for
compliance.

15.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as per following:
a) Audit Committee
The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and ﬁnal results of
the Company as required by the CCG.
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b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
The meetings of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee were held at least once every quarter.
c) Nomination & Compensation Committee:
The meetings of the Nomination & Compensation Committee were held on need basis.
d) Risk and Regulatory Aﬀairs Committee
The meetings of the Risk and Regulatory Aﬀairs Committee were held at least once every quarter.
16.

The board has set up an eﬀective internal audit function.

17.

The statutory auditors of the company have conﬁrmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of
the ﬁrm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the ﬁrm and all its partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

18.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have conﬁrmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

19.

We conﬁrm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

-sdMoin M. Fudda
Chairman

Karachi, dated: Thursday, August 09, 2018
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-sdAftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Oﬃcer

Review Report to the Members on the
Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
1st & 3rd Floor,
Modern Motors House
Beaumont Road,
Karachi 75530
T +92 021 3567 2952-56
F +92 021 3568 8834
www.gtpak.com

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) for
the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations as mandated under the Central
Depositories (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016.
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulation is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to
review whether the Statement of Compliance reﬂects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of Regulations
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with Regulations.
As a part of our audit of ﬁnancial statements we are required to obtain and understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems suﬃcient to plan the audit and develop an eﬀective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the eﬀectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.
The Regulations requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place before the board Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the
requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement
to the extent of the approval of the related party transaction by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identiﬁcation of related
parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reﬂect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2018

Karachi
August 09, 2018

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Oﬃces in Islamabad, Lahore
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TO THE MEMBER OF THE CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
1st & 3rd Floor,
Modern Motors House
Beaumont Road,
Karachi 75530
T +92 021 3567 2952-56
F +92 021 3568 8834
www.gtpak.com

Opinion
We have audited the annexed ﬁnancial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of ﬁnancial position as at June 30, 2018, and proﬁt or loss account and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash ﬂows for the year then ended, and notes to the ﬁnancial statements,
including a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of ﬁnancial position,
proﬁt or loss account and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash ﬂows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and
fair view of the state of the Company’s aﬀair as at June 30, 2018 and of the proﬁt or loss and other comprehensive income or loss ,
the changes in equity and its cash ﬂows for the year then ended.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulﬁlled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is suﬃcient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnancial statements in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of ﬁnancial statements that are free form material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the ﬁnancial statement, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing of Company’s ﬁnancial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsiblities for the Audit of the Finanical Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁnancial statement as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud an error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that and audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inﬂuence the economics decisions of users taken on the basis
of these ﬁnancial statements.

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Oﬃces in Islamabad, Lahore
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As a part of and audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suﬃcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatements resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in circumstances, but not of the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eﬀectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

.

Evalute the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosure made by management.

.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signiﬁcant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the ﬁnancial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the ﬁnancial statements represent the underlying transaction and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
signiﬁcant audit ﬁndings, including any signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the board of directors with the statement that we have compiled with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to hear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that is our opinion:
a) proper books of account have kept by the Company is required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
b) the statement of ﬁnancial position, proﬁt or loss account and other comprehensive income, that statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash ﬂows together with the notes there on have been drawn up in conformity with the
companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
c) investment made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and
d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khaliq-ur-Rahman.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
August 09, 2018

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Oﬃces in Islamabad, Lahore
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Unconsolidated

Financial

statements

Unconsolidated Statement of financial position
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Rupees

June 30, 2017
(Restated)
Rupees

June 30, 2016
(Restated)
Rupees

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,060,900,000

1,000,000,000

650,000,000

100,000,000
2,258,962,946
(216,254)
711,360,913
3,070,107,605
4,131,007,605

100,000,000
1,851,972,791
10,031
719,539,436
2,671,522,258
3,671,522,258

100,000,000
1,613,024,405
4,934,808
465,862,802
2,183,822,015
2,833,822,015

7
8

123,373,500
111,316,286
234,689,786

118,575,500
110,004,839
228,580,339

116,225,000
66,710,364
182,935,364

9
10
11
12

518,147,026
46,917,167
11,888,335
576,952,528
811,642,314

475,006,181
460,500
44,365,622
38,247,031
558,079,334
786,659,673

357,038,351
660,498
39,767,248
30,075,712
427,541,809
610,477,173

13

4,942,649,920

4,458,181,931

3,444,299,188

14.1
14.2

1,293,880,479
137,513,529
1,431,394,008

1,198,298,550
123,439,648
1,321,738,198

887,706,254
100,306,953
988,013,207

15
16
17

100,000,000
59,357,334
7,015,328
1,597,766,670

100,000,000
42,511,600
11,200,385
1,475,450,183

100,000,000
37,207,757
11,820,837
1,137,041,801

18
19
20
21
22
23
24

265,653,638
12,908,374
23,010,839
13,753,448
2,976,249,077
53,307,874
3,344,883,250

343,504,382
13,350,518
18,322,964
5,331,570
17,587,282
2,517,418,533
67,216,499
2,982,731,748

241,224,441
8,826,458
25,457,385
40,635,772
7,047,071
1,917,633,419
66,432,841
2,307,257,387

4,942,649,920

4,458,181,931

3,444,299,188

Note

Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital
150,000,000 (2017: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
106,090,000 (2017: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Reserves
Reserve fund
Unappropriated proﬁt
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

5

6

Total shareholders' equity
Non-current liabilities
Long term deposits
Deferred taxation - net
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fee
Taxation - net
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments
Total equity and liabilities
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Long term investments
Long term loans
Long term deposits and prepayments
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances
Total current assets
Total assets

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Operating income - net

25

1,950,195,177

1,842,513,700

Operating and administrative expenses

26

(1,089,516,739)

(1,045,744,754)

860,678,438

796,768,946

Operating proﬁt
Other income

27

175,868,758

145,109,937

Other expenses

28

(34,754,295)

(23,543,440)

Financial charges

29

(178,938)
140,935,525

(141,275)
121,425,222

1,001,613,963

918,194,168

(332,629,420)

(309,479,517)

668,984,543

608,714,651

6.31

(Restated)
5.74

Proﬁt before income tax
Income tax expense

30

Proﬁt for the year
Earnings per share - basic and diluted

31

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
(Restated)
Rupees

668,984,543

608,714,651

(323,264)
96,979
(226,285)

(7,261,063)
2,336,286
(4,924,777)

(44,096,000)
14,551,680
(29,544,320)

(15,795,000)
4,896,450
(10,898,550)

3,271,409
3,271,409

321,819,035
(57,010,116)
264,808,919

Total other comprehensive (loss) / proﬁt

(26,499,196)

248,985,592

Total comprehensive income for the year

642,485,347

857,700,243

Proﬁt for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that may be reclassiﬁed to unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account subsequently
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of available for sale investments
Impact of deferred tax
Items that will never be reclassiﬁed to unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account
Loss on remeasurement of retirement beneﬁt obligation
Impact of current tax
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment
Impact of deferred tax

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proﬁt before income tax
Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds
Depreciation on property and equipment
Amortization of intangibles
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Proﬁt on bank deposits
Financial charges
Provision for retirement beneﬁt plan

14.1.1
14.2.1
27
27
29
33.3

Operating proﬁt before working capital changes

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,001,613,963

918,194,168

111,504,419
42,227,342
(1,865,585)
(4,609,312)
178,938
28,954,000
176,389,802
1,178,003,765

100,668,594
33,845,601
(415,387)
(4,465,925)
141,275
27,533,000
157,307,158
1,075,501,326

77,850,744
442,144
(4,687,875)
3,833,834
77,438,847

(102,279,941)
(4,524,060)
7,134,421
(10,540,211)
(110,209,791)

2,426,845
(460,500)
2,551,545
4,517,890

102,835,882
(199,998)
4,598,374
107,234,258

(16,845,734)
4,185,057
4,798,000
(7,862,677)
1,252,097,825

(5,303,843)
620,452
2,350,500
(2,332,891)
1,070,192,902

(32,336,000)
(178,938)
(339,756,600)
(372,271,538)
879,826,288

(28,196,000)
(141,275)
(307,791,155)
(336,128,430)
734,064,471

(264,058,234)
2,536,248
9,940,882
(323,264)
(251,904,368)

(148,110,716)
2,105,952
39,770,127
(7,261,063)
(113,495,700)

(183,000,000)
(183,000,000)
444,921,920

(20,000,000)
(20,000,000)
600,568,771

2,584,635,032
3,029,556,951

1,984,066,260
2,584,635,032

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Other receivables
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fees
Increase in loans (assets)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments (assets)
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)
Cash generated from operations
Contribution paid to retirement beneﬁt plan
Financial charges paid
Income tax paid

33.2

Net cash from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred-net
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Mark-up received
Investments - net
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

32

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.

-sd-

-sd-

Chairman

Chief Executive Oﬃcer
91

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Note
Balance as at July 1, 2016 - previously reported
Eﬀect of change in accounting policy
Balance as at July 1, 2016 - Restated

4.2.1

Issued,
* Reserve
Unappropriated
Surplus on
Surplus on
Total
subscribed
fund
proﬁt
revaluation of
revaluation of
shareholders'
and paid-up
Available for sale
property and
equity
share capital
investments - net equipment - net
…………………………………………………………………………………...Rupees…………………………………………………………………………………...
650,000,000

100,000,000

1,613,024,405

4,934,808

-

2,367,959,213

650,000,000

100,000,000

1,613,024,405

4,934,808

465,862,802
465,862,802

465,862,802
2,833,822,015

(4,924,777)
(4,924,777)

264,808,919
264,808,919

608,714,651
248,985,592
857,700,243

Comprehensive income for the year
- Proﬁt after income tax
- Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

608,714,651
(10,898,550)
597,816,101

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend @ 3.077% (i.e. Re. 0.3077 per share)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

(350,000,000)
(370,000,000)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

11,132,285

-

Bonus shares @ 53.846% (i.e. 35 million shares)
Total transactions with owners
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed
assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net oﬀ deferred tax

350,000,000
350,000,000

6

-

(11,132,285)

-

Balance as at June 30, 2017 - Restated

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

1,851,972,791

10,031

719,539,436

3,671,522,258

Balance as at July 1, 2017 - Restated

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

1,851,972,791

10,031

719,539,436

3,671,522,258

(226,285)
(226,285)

3,271,409
3,271,409

668,984,543
(26,499,196)
642,485,347

Comprehensive income for the year
- Proﬁt after income tax
- Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

668,984,543
(29,544,320)
639,440,223

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend @ 18.3% (i.e. Rs. 1.83 per share)

-

-

(183,000,000)

-

-

(183,000,000)

-

(60,900,000)
(243,900,000)

-

-

(183,000,000)

-

11,449,932

-

Bonus shares @ 6.09% (i.e. 6.09 million shares)
Total transactions with owners
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of
ﬁxed assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net oﬀ deferred tax
Balance as at June 30, 2018

60,900,000
60,900,000

6

1,060,900,000

100,000,000

2,258,962,946

(216,254)

(11,449,932)
711,360,913

4,131,007,605

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company.
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018
1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public Company with its liability
limited by shares on January 21, 1993 and received certiﬁcate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994. The
principal business activities of the Company are to act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a
registrar to the issuer of securities. The registered oﬃce of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S.
Karachi, Pakistan.
The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non
Banking Finance Companies and Notiﬁed Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds
formed under the said regulations.
The Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and is also
managing Centralized Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).
The Company has three wholly owned subsidiaries with names and styles of ITMinds Limited (ITML), CDC Trustee Company
Limited (CTCL) and eClear Services Limited (ESL).

2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1

Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notiﬁed under the Companies
Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. Wherever the requirements of Companies Act,
2017 or directives issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) diﬀer with the requirements of IFRS, the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.
These unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements comprise unconsolidated statement of ﬁnancial position, unconsolidated proﬁt
and loss account, unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash ﬂows and
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof.

2.1.1 Promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017
The Companies Act, 2017 applicable for periods ending after December 31, 2017 which results in additional disclosures and
certain changes in ﬁnancial statements presentation including changes of fourth schedule, and treatment of surplus on
revaluation of property and equipment which have been incorporated in these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
2.2

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

2.2.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Company and
adopted in the current year
The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs
which became eﬀective during the current year.
Standard or Interpretation

Eﬀective Date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)

January 1, 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
(Amendments to IAS 12)

January 1, 2017

IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016

January 1, 2017

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no signiﬁcant eﬀect on the
amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2018.
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For the year ended June 30, 2018

2.2.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are eﬀective but not relevant
The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the ﬁnancial year
beginning on July 01, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any signiﬁcant eﬀect on the Company's ﬁnancial
reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here.
2.2.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet eﬀective and
not early adopted by the Company
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be eﬀective from the dates
mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.
Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

Eﬀective Date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)
Postponed

IFRS 2 - Classiﬁcation and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction
(Amendements to IFRS 2)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

January 1, 2018

IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

July 1, 2018

IFRS 9 - Financial Instrumnets

July 1, 2018

IFRS 16 - Leases

January 1, 2019

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

January 1, 2019

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28)

January 1, 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

January 1, 2019

Amendments regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

January 1, 2019

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)

January 1, 2019

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19)

January 1, 2019

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the
published standards on the ﬁnancial statements of the Company.
2.2.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notiﬁed by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be
notiﬁed by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
Standard or Interpretation
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IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

January 1, 2016

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

January 1, 2021
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018
2.3

Basis of measurement

2.3.1 These unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition
of staﬀ retirement beneﬁts at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount
and measurement of certain investments at fair value and amortised cost.
2.3.2 These unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash ﬂow
statement.
2.3.3 The preparation of unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aﬀect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may diﬀer from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision aﬀects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision aﬀects both current and future periods. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are signiﬁcant to the
unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements are as follows:
a) Staﬀ retirement beneﬁts
b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets
c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts
d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation
e) Revaluation of land and building
f) Investments

Note
4.1
4.2
4.6
4.10
4.2 & 14
4.5

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that
changes in outcome of estimates will not have material eﬀect on the unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
2.4

General
The ﬁgures have been rounded oﬀ to the nearest rupee.

3

PRESENTATION AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY
The unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements are set out below.
These policies and methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented except as disclosed
otherwise.

4.1

Staﬀ retirement beneﬁts

4.1.1 Deﬁned beneﬁt plan
The Company operates a deﬁned beneﬁt plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its conﬁrmed employees who have completed
minimum qualifying period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made
monthly to this fund on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are
recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial position immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the
periods in which they occur. The signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 33.
4.1.2 Deﬁned contribution plan
The Company also operates two deﬁned contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a deﬁned contribution gratuity fund.
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Provident fund
The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate
of 10% of basic salary are made to the fund both by the Company and the employees.
Deﬁned Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund
The Company has established a deﬁned contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or
after January 1, 2014. Contributions are made by the Company to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.
4.1.3 Other beneﬁts
Compensated absences
The Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with
respective entitlement on cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognised in the unconsolidated
ﬁnancial statements on the basis of best management estimates.
4.2

Property and equipment

4.2.1 Change in accounting policies
The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed through the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017. However, as described
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vid circular number 23 dated October 4, 2017, the ﬁnancial reporting
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018.
Consequently the Company has changed its policy for accounting for surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed assets. The Company's
accounting policy (as disclosed in Note 4.2 unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017), in
accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Companies Act, 2017 removed the speciﬁc provisions
allowing the previous treatment. A surplus arising on revaluation of particular property is now to be accounted for in
accordance witn IFRS.
Owned
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and
building which are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period cost.
Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.3.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14.1 and is charged to in proﬁt or loss.
Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the
month of retirement/disposal.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each ﬁnancial year end.
Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to proﬁt and loss in the period of their occurrence, while major
renovations and improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently.
Revaluation of assets
Revaluation is carried out with suﬃcient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not diﬀer materially
from the fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed assets
account.
Leased
The Company accounts for assets acquired under ﬁnance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These
amounts are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of
minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant
rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to proﬁt or loss applying the same basis as for owned
assets.
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Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identiﬁed impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital
work in progress account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the speciﬁc assets incurred during installation
and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to speciﬁc assets as and when
assets are available for use.
4.2.2 Intangibles
Costs that are directly associated with identiﬁable software products controlled by the Company and have probable
economic beneﬁt beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using
the straight line method reﬂecting the pattern in which the economic beneﬁts of the assets are consumed by the Company.
Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal, and the
amortization period for software is ﬁve years.
4.2.3 Impairment of non-ﬁnancial assets
The carrying amounts of non ﬁnancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised, as an expense in the unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash ﬂows using a discount rate that
reﬂects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk speciﬁc to the assets. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which there are generating separately identiﬁable cash
ﬂows (cash generating units).
4.3

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
cost that is directly attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

4.4

Investment in subsidiary companies
Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In arriving at the
impairment in respect of any diminution in the value of these investments, consideration is given only if there is a permanent
impairment in the value of these investments.

4.5

Financial instruments
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the ﬁnancial instrument.
Initial recognition
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised initially at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given for it,
including associated transaction costs except that are incurred on ﬁnancial assets and liabilities at fair value through proﬁt
or loss in which case transaction costs are recorded in the unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account.
Subsequent measurement
The ﬁnancial assets are measured subsequently as described below:

4.5.1 Financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, ﬁnancial assets are classiﬁed into four categories upon initial recognition;
namely loans and receivables, held to maturity, available for sale and held for trading investments.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ﬁnancial assets with ﬁxed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial recognition these are carried at amortized cost.
Held to maturity
Held to maturity investments are ﬁnancial assets with ﬁxed or determinable payments and ﬁxed maturity and the Company
has a positive intent and ability to hold these investments till maturity. After Initial recognition, these are carried at amortized
cost.
Available for sale investment
Investments intended to be held for indeﬁnite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or
changes in equity prices, are classiﬁed as 'available for sale investment'. Financial assets at 'available for sale' are those
non-derivative ﬁnancial assets that are designated as available for sale ﬁnancial asset, or are not classiﬁed as (a) loans and
receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for trading investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the unconsolidated statement of
ﬁnancial position at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus
on revaluation of 'available for sale' investment through other comprehensive income until the investments are
derecognized and then the surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment is transferred to unconsolidated
proﬁt and loss account.
Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating proﬁt from short term ﬂuctuations in prices are
classiﬁed as 'at fair value through proﬁt or loss' or held for trading.
Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in unconsolidated proﬁt and loss
account. These investments are marked to market and are carried on the unconsolidated statement of ﬁnancial position at
fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to the unconsolidated proﬁt
and loss account for the year.
Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
A ﬁnancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired.
A ﬁnancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative
eﬀect on the estimated future cash ﬂows of that asset.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
4.5.2 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the eﬀective interest method except for those which
are designated at fair value through unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with
remeasurement gains or losses recognised in unconsolidated proﬁt and loss.
All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's fair value are reported in unconsolidated proﬁt or
loss account are included within ﬁnance costs or ﬁnance income.
4.5.3 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the
ﬁnancial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation
speciﬁed in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of ﬁnancial assets and
ﬁnancial liabilities are taken to the unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account immediately.
4.5.4 Oﬀ setting
Financial assets and liabilities are oﬀ set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated statement of ﬁnancial
position if the Company has a legal right to set-oﬀ the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.6

Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

4.7

Provisions, contingencies and commitments
A provision is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of ﬁnancial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
No liability is recognised if an outﬂow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such
situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the outﬂow of resources is remote.
Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements at
committed amounts.

4.8

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for
services.

4.9

Foreign currency translations
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the unconsolidated statement of ﬁnancial position date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani
rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to income currently.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

4.10

Taxation

4.10.1 Current
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available
tax credit and rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of
tax laws.
4.10.2 Deferred
Deferred tax is provided for, using the statement of ﬁnancial position liability method, providing the temporary diﬀerences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for ﬁnancial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the statement of ﬁnancial position date. Deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable proﬁts will be available and credits can be utilized.
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the diﬀerences reverse, based on tax
rates that have been enacted. The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the
taxation authorities.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account, except in the case of items credited or
charged to other comprehensive income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.
4.11

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the statement of ﬁnancial position at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the
purpose of unconsolidated statement of cash ﬂows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and
only those short term investments which are highly liquid and maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition, that
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of change in value.

99

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018
4.12

Revenue recognition
Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full
upon settlement in CDS on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and
recognized on per trade basis.
Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading
session of every trading day of the month at Pakistan Stock Exchange. Custody fee on government securities is recognized
daily on cost.
Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.
Other fees are recognized when the Company renders the related services.
Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.
Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they
are incidental to the sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.
Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise.
Return on ﬁxed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis.

4.13

Interest and dividend income
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the eﬀective interest method. Dividends, other than
those from investments in associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is
established.

4.14

Dividend and appropriation
Dividend distribution to the shareholders' of the Company is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated ﬁnancial
statements in the period in which such dividends are approved.

4.15

Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm's length prices using the comparable
uncontrolled valuation method.

4.16

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the proﬁt or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the proﬁt or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the eﬀects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.17

Segment reporting
Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Management, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of internal
reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment, however certain information about
Company's revenue streams as required by the approved accounting standards, are presented in note 25 of these
unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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5

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Number of shares
10,000,000

90,000,000
6,090,000
96,090,000
106,090,000

10,000,000

55,000,000
35,000,000
90,000,000
100,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares
- Beginning of the year
- During the year
Total bonus shares

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

100,000,000

100,000,000

900,000,000
60,900,000
960,900,000
1,060,900,000

550,000,000
350,000,000
900,000,000
1,000,000,000

5.1

Associated companies held 74,059,305 (2017: 67,557,997) shares in the Company as at year end.

6

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment
Transferred to accumulated proﬁt:
- surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to unappropriated
proﬁt during the year - net oﬀ deferred tax
- related deferred tax liability

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

6.1

817,681,712
-

511,765,889
321,819,035

(11,449,932)
(4,743,543)
(16,193,527)

(11,132,285)
(4,770,979)
(15,903,264)

801,488,237

817,681,712

(98,142,276)

(45,903,087)

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year
Less: related deferred tax liability on:
- surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year

-

- surplus on revaluation of property and equipment during the year
- remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate
- incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to
unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account
Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment
at the end of the year
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

8

(59,879,111)

3,271,409

2,868,943

4,743,543

4,770,979

(90,127,324)
711,360,913

(98,142,276)
719,539,436

6.1

Land and building had been revalued on June 30, 2017 which resulted in further revaluation surplus of Rs. 321,819,035.

7

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Due to:
- Participants
- Institutions
- Pledgees
- Issuers

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

7.1

40,813,139
32,022,861
1,600,000
48,937,500
123,373,500

41,251,500
29,824,000
1,600,000
45,900,000
118,575,500

7.1

These represent security deposits received from diﬀerent categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their
admission in the CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such
deposits may be utilized by the Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of
admission to the CDS.

7.2

It includes long term deposits amounting to Rs. 3 million (2017: Rs. 6.025 million) from related parties.
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8

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

(336,150)
(93,750)

(347,741)
4,320

21,618,862

12,205,984

90,127,324

98,142,276

111,316,286

110,004,839

7,258,374
266,058,386
129,090,480
84,893,299
13,745,902
16,181,417
919,168
518,147,026

33,227,911
238,593,257
82,190,514
78,535,433
13,745,902
19,420,856
9,292,309
475,006,181

92,505,535
36,584,945
129,090,480

51,791,535
30,398,979
82,190,514

30,398,979
8,261,962
(2,075,996)
36,584,945

32,735,775
4,709,802
(7,046,598)
30,398,979

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary diﬀerences on:
- Provision for doubtful debts
- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments
Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary diﬀerences on:
- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model
over tax written down value of property and equipment
- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

9

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Payable to suppliers
Accrued expenses
Employees’ retirement beneﬁts and other obligations
Investor account services - current account
Workers' welfare fund
Sales tax payable
Others

9.1

161,639
298,861
460,500

3,715,541
7,023,554

2,920,012
10,175,044

6,260,016
22,438
29,895,618
46,917,167

4,760,004
23,096
26,487,466
44,365,622

11,888,335

38,247,031

TAXATION - NET
Provision for taxation - net
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UNEARNED FEE
Annual fee:
- Issuers
- Investor Account Services (IAS)
- Centralised Information Sharing Solution for Insurance
Industry (CISSII) Participants
- Investment Portfolio Services (IPS)
Sub-account maintenance fee

12

26.1

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
Due to:
- Participants
- Institutions

11

33.2
9.2

Accumulated compensated absences
Opening balance
Provision for the year
Payments / transfers made during the year
Closing balance

10

9.1

Employees’ retirement beneﬁts and other obligations
Net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
Accumulated compensated absences

9.2

6
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13

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1

Contingencies
During 2014-2015, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 up
to June 2013 with regards to chargeability of Sindh Sales Tax amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. Subsequently,
the penalty amounting to Rs. 15 million was removed and the revised demand restricted to Rs. 282 million. SRB was of the
opinion that services rendered by the Company were falling under the ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC). Not
agreeing with the SRB’s contention, Company pursued the matter in appeal and through the order dated February 28, 2018,
the Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB has decided the case in favour of the Company and has vacated the above referred
tax demand.
Apart from the above, the SRB has also issued a notice for the periods from July 2013 through June 2015, requiring the
Company to show-cause as to why SST of Rs. 344.6 million including penalty may not be recovered from the Company on
alleged failure to charge SST on its services. The management on the basis of above-referred judgement of Hon’able
Appellate Tribunal – SRB have ﬁled the application in the Honorable Sindh High Court for vacation of the same and is
conﬁdent that the matter will be resolved in Company’s favour and therefore no provision has been recognised in these
ﬁnancial statements.
Note

13.2

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

5,119,964

15,560,301

Commitments
Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition of software,
hardware and oﬃce equipments
Investment in eClear Services Limited

13.2.1

-

250,000,000

13.2.1 During the year, the board authorized the management to proceed for winding-up / amalgamation of eClear Services
Limited with the Central Depository Company of Pakistan and authorized the management to proceed for necessary action
for best option.
14

FIXED ASSETS

14.1

Property and equipment
Operating assets
Capital work-in-progress

Note

14.1.1
14.1.5

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,291,297,530
2,582,949
1,293,880,479

1,170,854,713
27,443,837
1,198,298,550
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14.1.1 Operating assets

Year ended June 30, 2018

Leasehold land

Furniture,
ﬁxtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

OWNED
Vehicles

Oﬃce
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

549,999,000
-

445,322,662
106,527,147
-

-

-

24,543,667
8,925,562
-

38,430,388
20,443,146
-

34,062,022
12,838,197
-

78,496,975
83,883,846
-

1,170,854,713
232,617,898
-

(10,303,660)
10,198,433
(105,227)

(8,269,108)
8,256,564
(12,544)

(10,797,884)
10,278,144
(519,740)

(46,698,588)
46,665,436
(33,152)

(76,069,240)
75,398,577
(670,663)

549,999,000

(30,369,812)
521,479,997

(8,572,730)
24,791,272

(16,463,035)
42,397,955

(13,028,207)
33,352,272

(43,070,635)
119,277,034

(111,504,419)
1,291,297,530

549,999,000
549,999,000

551,849,809
(30,369,812)
521,479,997

168,217,886
(143,426,614)
24,791,272

88,755,869
(46,357,914)
42,397,955

198,969,238
(165,616,966)
33,352,272

440,290,782
(321,013,748)
119,277,034

1,998,082,584
(706,785,054)
1,291,297,530

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

As at June 30, 2018
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year
Depreciation rate

Year ended June 30, 2017

Leasehold land

Furniture,
ﬁxtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

OWNED
Vehicles

Oﬃce
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

427,777,000
122,222,000

269,182,466
3,326,919
199,597,035

27,218,197
5,489,372
-

40,476,008
14,549,162
-

32,392,719
13,314,704
-

87,728,160
29,940,131
-

884,774,550
66,620,288
321,819,035

(207,000)
106,957
(100,043)

(2,546,474)
2,291,334
(255,140)

(20,395,296)
19,374,821
(1,020,475)

(3,889,742)
3,658,676
(231,066)

(42,082,322)
41,998,481
(83,841)

(69,120,834)
67,430,269
(1,690,565)

549,999,000

(26,683,715)
445,322,662

(7,908,762)
24,543,667

(15,574,307)
38,430,388

(11,414,335)
34,062,022

(39,087,475)
78,496,976

(100,668,594)
1,170,854,713

549,999,000
549,999,000

445,322,662
445,322,662

169,597,431
(145,053,764)
24,543,667

76,581,823
(38,151,435)
38,430,388

196,952,406
(162,890,384)
34,062,022

403,095,862
(324,598,888)
78,496,975

1,841,549,184
(670,694,471)
1,170,854,713

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

-

As at June 30, 2017
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year
Depreciation rate
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14.1.2 Land - lease hold and building had previously been revalued on June 30, 2012.
The Company as on June 30, 2017 again revalued its land - lease hold and building. The revaluation exercise was carried out
by independent valuer - MYK Associates (Private.) Limited, (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks' Association and Leasing
Association of Pakistan) I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The valuer has estimated the remaining life of the buildings to be 20
years. Land- lease hold was revalued on the basis of current market price whereas buildings was revalued on the basis of
depreciated market value.
The diﬀerence levels have been deﬁned in IFRS 13 as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and
- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs e.g. estimated
future) (level 3).
The appraisal surplus arisen on last revaluation exercise aggregating Rs. 261.939 million has been incorporated in the books
of the Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Addition in building includes Rs. 93.105 million (2017: Nil) paid to LSE Financial Services Limited (Related party) for the
purchase of oﬃce.
14.1.3 Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and written down values would have been as follows:
Net book value under cost model
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees

Cost
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees
Land- lease hold
Building

59,458,250
324,731,558

59,458,250
218,204,411

59,458,250
210,696,131

59,458,250
118,181,752

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

27,443,837

2,931,704

1,514,361
115,066,871
69,323,082
21,852,696
207,757,010
235,200,847
(232,617,898)
2,582,949

5,521,766
3,128,912
69,720,081
12,761,662
91,132,421
94,064,125
(66,620,288)
27,443,837

136,336,096
1,177,433
137,513,529

107,631,201
15,808,447
123,439,648

14.1.4 Forced sale value of assets at revalued model is Rs. 796.2 million.
‘
Note
14.1.5 Capital work in progress
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
- Furniture, ﬁxtures an d electrical equipment
- Building
- Computers and oﬃce equipment
- Vehicles
Transferred to operating assets
Balance at the end of the year
14.2

14.1.1

Intangibles
Softwares
Softwares under implementation

14.2.1
14.2.2
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14.2.1 Softwares
Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions
Amortization charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

Note

26

As at June 30,
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value at the end of the year
Amortization rate

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

107,631,201
70,932,237
(42,227,342)
136,336,096

94,175,563
48,259,067
(957,828)
(33,845,601)
107,631,201

447,244,894
(310,908,798)
136,336,096

376,474,690
(268,843,489)
107,631,201

20%

20%

15,808,447
56,301,223
72,109,670
(70,932,237)
1,177,433

6,131,390
57,936,124
64,067,514
(48,259,067)
15,808,447

14.2.2 Softwares under implementation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Transferred to softwares
Balance at the end of the year
14.3

During the year, the Company did not dispose any asset having net book value of Rs. 500,000 or above (2017:Nil)

15

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment in related parties
Investment in subsidiaries - at cost
- ITMinds Limited
- CDC Trustee Company Limited

15.1

16

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

15.1

50,000,000
50,000,000
100,000,000

50,000,000
50,000,000
100,000,000

This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiaries for IT services and Business process outsourcing (BPO) oﬃce under
the name of ITMinds Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2017: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each and for trustee and custodial
services under the name of CDC Trustee Company Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (2017: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each.

LONG TERM LOANS
Considered good - secured:
- House loans
- Car loans
- Transferred to current maturity
Loan outstanding for period:
- More than one year but less than three years
- More than three years
Movement of loan to executives:
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursement during the year
less: Recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year
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14.2.1

Note

16.1
16.2
19

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

55,530,485
13,015,860
68,546,345
(9,189,011)
59,357,334

38,235,243
12,251,047
50,486,290
(7,974,690)
42,511,600

17,183,348
42,173,986
59,357,334

11,962,911
30,548,689
42,511,600

34,670,374
22,462,800
57,133,174
(13,121,145)
44,012,029

33,598,698
9,395,000
42,993,698
(8,323,324)
34,670,374
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16.1

Interest ranging from 3% to 5% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on house loans and taken to
unconsolidated proﬁt and loss account. Maximum repayment period for house loan is ﬁfteen years.

16.2

Interest at 3% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to unconsolidated proﬁt and
loss account. However, no interest is recovered from employees who have surrendered interest on their provident fund.
Maximum repayment period for car loan is ﬁve years.

16.3

The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 72.78 million (2017: Rs. 52.59
million). The loans are secured against the underlying assets.

17

Note

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

4,937,414
1,060,001
5,997,415
1,017,913
7,015,328

5,586,969
1,872,000
7,458,969
3,741,416
11,200,385

202,981,239
62,672,399
265,653,638
1,159,136
266,812,774
(1,159,136)
265,653,638

221,132,345
122,372,037
343,504,382
1,159,136
344,663,518
(1,159,136)
343,504,382

Deposits
- Utilities
- Rented premises
Prepayments
18

TRADE DEBTS - NET
Considered good:
- secured
- unsecured

18.1

Considered doubtful, unsecured

18.1

Provision for impairment

18.2

The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Gross
Impaired
Net
Gross
Impaired
Net
Within 45 days
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total

216,656,778
8,664,979
41,491,017
266,812,774

1,159,136
1,159,136

216,656,778
8,664,979
40,331,881
265,653,638

290,806,269
11,388,888
42,468,361
344,663,518

1,159,136
1,159,136

290,806,269
11,388,888
41,309,225
343,504,382

18.1.1 The running balance from IAS account holders have been included in ﬁrst bucket of the above againg.
18.2

The Company reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been
made consequently opening balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and
investor account holders amounting to Rs. 0.4 million (2017: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2017: 0.7 million) respectively
and are valid till year end.

18.3

Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 7.8 million (2017:
Rs. 12.6 million).
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18.3.1 The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Gross
Impaired
Net
Gross
Impaired
Net
Within 45 days
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total
18.4

19

3,740,644
584,207
3,453,207
7,778,058

-

3,740,644
584,207
3,453,207
7,778,058

8,356,649
898,126
3,334,068
12,588,843

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

16

9,189,011

7,974,690

3,130,703
588,660
3,719,363
12,908,374

3,685,201
1,690,627
5,375,828
13,350,518

LOANS AND ADVANCES

- Advance to employees
- Advance for expenses

All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.
Note

20

8,224,402
12,746,659
92,610
1,947,168
23,010,839

4,963,952
79,428
11,659,393
513,832
1,106,359
18,322,964

-

5,331,570

OTHER RECEIVABLES
From related parties:
- ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary
- CDC Trustee Company Limited - Subsidiary
- eClear Services Limited - Subsidiary
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - Associated Company
From other parties

108

June 30, 2017
Rupees

MARK-UP ACCRUED
Mark-up accrued on PIBs

22

June 30, 2018
Rupees

PREPAYMENTS
Insurance
Rent
Software maintenance
Servers & other hardware maintainance
Others

21

8,356,649
898,126
3,334,068
12,588,843

The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 39.3 million (2017: Rs. 44.3 million).

Current maturity of long term loans

19.1

-

22.1 & 13.2.1

4,682,951
135,000
1,390,550
7,544,947
13,753,448

2,898,820
130,240
8,872,527
903,815
4,781,880
17,587,282

9,115,221
(9,115,221)
-

8,872,527
8,872,527

22.1

Receivable from eClear Services Limited
Less: Written oﬀ

22.2

All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.
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23

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

23.1 & 37.2 1,159,133,555
23.2 & 37.2 1,817,115,522
2,976,249,077

1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
148,498,327
2,517,418,533

Note

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Available for sale investments
- Term Deposit Certiﬁcates
- Treasury Bills
- Pakistan Investment Bonds

23.1

This represents investment in ﬁxed Term Deposit Certiﬁcates. The rate of proﬁt on these certiﬁcates is 6.00% to 6.45% per
annum (2017: 5.90% to 6.00% per annum).

23.2

This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of proﬁt on these certiﬁcates is 6.22% to 6.76% per annum (2017:
5.84% to 5.99% per annum).

24

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Bank balances:
- in saving accounts
- in current accounts
Amount held on behalf of clients
Net bank balance

Note

24.1
24.3

Cash in hand

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

47,030,104
11,538,487
(5,410,721)
53,157,870

60,311,800
161,207,919
(154,435,809)
67,083,910

150,004
53,307,874

132,589
67,216,499

24.1

The rate of proﬁt varies from 3.5% to 4.75% (2017: 4.75% to 6.00%) per annum.

24.2

Bank balances include Rs. 5.99 million (2017: Rs. 12.30 million) held with related parties.

24.3

This amount is held by the Company in the current account maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan on behalf of clients
under trustee and custodialship for settlement purposes.
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees
Note

25

OPERATING INCOME - NET

25.1

Depository services - net
Trusteeship and custodial services - net
Share registrar services - net
Miscellaneous income - net

25.1
25.2
25.3
25.4

SECP supervision fee

25.5

1,222,437,358
637,123,926
99,063,810
4,816,173
1,963,441,267
(13,246,090)
1,950,195,177

1,204,329,111
580,748,891
64,982,802
5,186,369
1,855,247,173
(12,733,473)
1,842,513,700

1,380,606,671
(158,169,313)
1,222,437,358

1,362,285,848
(157,956,737)
1,204,329,111

Depository services - net
Depository services
Less: Sales tax
25.1.1
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25.1.1 Depository services - net
Transaction fee
Custody fee
Sub-account maintenance fee
CDS connection fee
Security induction fee
Annual fee
Cancellation fee
Withdrawal fee
Vasco service charges
eDividend

Note
25.1.2

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

145,918,824
361,043,792
76,540,098
44,067,000
346,232,328
212,360,522
15,476,427
8,444,753
2,265,600
10,088,014
1,222,437,358

231,897,856
432,824,442
66,629,195
46,322,000
227,683,942
172,387,468
17,461,721
6,698,487
2,424,000
1,204,329,111

173,932,065
(28,013,241)
145,918,824

278,963,170
(47,065,314)
231,897,856

25.1.2 Transaction fee - net
Transaction fee
Less: SECP levy

25.1.3

25.1.3 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2017: 0.000405) paisa per share as
transaction fee which is borne by the Company.
Note
25.2

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

759,027,786
(30,758,391)
(91,145,469)
637,123,926

692,892,493
(28,916,101)
(83,227,501)
580,748,891

Trusteeship and custodial services - net
Trusteeship and custodial businesses
Less: SECP levy
Less: Sales tax

25.2.1

25.2.1 SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2017: 0.005%) of average annual assets of open end scheme and closed end scheme
under its trusteeship.

25.3

110

114,670,188
(15,606,378)
99,063,810

72,129,393
(7,146,591)
64,982,802

5,523,898
(707,725)
4,816,173

5,917,107
(730,738)
5,186,369

Miscellaneous income - net
Miscellaneous income
Less: Sales tax

25.5

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Share registrar services - net
Share registrar services
Less: Sales tax

25.4

June 30, 2018
Rupees

SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2017: 1%) of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository
service fee.
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26

Note

OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other beneﬁts
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Training and development
Communication
Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Legal and professional charges
Fee and subscription
Advertisement and publicity
Oﬃce supplies
Meeting expenses
Wide-area-network line rent
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation
Amortization
Fuel and electricity
Finance outsourcing
Security services
Cafeteria
Miscellaneous

26.1

26.1 & 26.2

26.3
26.4
14.1.1
14.2.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

607,428,675
7,084,562
15,934,404
7,634,412
12,688,609
8,914,674
14,295,235
25,315,117
76,045,206
21,506,102
8,760,781
28,192,497
4,951,100
12,870,963
8,949,859
4,769,069
111,504,419
42,227,342
34,518,738
15,231,996
8,624,080
7,083,926
4,984,973
1,089,516,739

567,580,333
7,730,675
14,006,884
6,621,747
11,874,546
9,778,866
17,810,515
23,737,574
75,932,734
19,129,906
7,304,617
53,264,990
4,357,065
10,782,247
10,025,364
4,551,695
100,668,594
33,845,601
31,383,484
14,687,999
10,340,134
5,563,411
4,765,773
1,045,744,754

Salaries and other beneﬁts include:
- Compensated absences

9.2

8,261,962

4,709,802

- Deﬁned beneﬁt gratuity fund

33.3

28,954,000

27,533,000

5,045,346

4,991,646

22,986,523

20,621,754

- Deﬁned contribution gratuity fund
- Contribution to provident fund
26.2

June 30, 2018
Rupees

Remuneration of Chief Executive Oﬃcer (CEO) and Executives:
June 30, 2018
Executives

June 30, 2017
Executives
Restated
-------------------------------------Rupees -------------------------------------

CEO

Managerial `
Bonus
Gratuity fund
Provident fund
Deﬁned contribution gratuity fund
Number of Person

CEO

21,758,755
16,237,500
1,948,500
1,217,813
41,162,568

118,246,648
41,964,571
9,278,305
6,641,831
1,348,625
177,479,980

22,265,650
15,265,000
1,759,559
1,173,038
40,463,247

99,884,092
34,996,000
7,287,324
5,585,988
1,091,688
148,845,092

1

25

2

25

26.2.1 The CEO and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also
entitled for other beneﬁts in accordance with the terms of employment.
26.3

The aggregate amount charged in the ﬁnancial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 10.36
million (2017: Rs. 8.93 million).

26.3.1 The Chairman of the board has been provided with Company maintained car along with fuel and chauﬀeur.
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26.4

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fees
Half year review
Others

26.5

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,843,269
525,800
2,400,000
4,769,069

1,706,731
469,309
2,375,655
4,551,695

59,516,526
398
44,017,810
74%
54,448,503

54,569,206
391
43,525,426
80%
46,194,743

Employees provident fund
- Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)
- Number of members
- Cost of investments made (Rupees)
- Percentage of investments made to size of the fund
- Fair value of investments (Rupees)

26.5.1 These ﬁgures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2018. The audited ﬁnancial statements of the fund has not been ﬁnalized
for the current year. Investments out of provident fund has been made in accordance with the provision of the section 218
of the Companies Act 2017.

Note
27

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

4,609,312
1,558,526
160,517,071
166,684,909

4,465,925
1,127,467
133,248,173
138,841,565

1,865,585
1,368,800
5,949,464
9,183,849
175,868,758

415,387
860,200
4,992,785
6,268,372
145,109,937

25,639,074
9,115,221
34,754,295

23,543,440
23,543,440

OTHER INCOME
Income from ﬁnancial assets:
- Return on bank deposits
- Interest on loans to employees
- Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investments
Income from non-ﬁnancial assets:
- Gain on disposal of property and equipment - net
- Penalties and ﬁnes
- Others

28

OTHER EXPENSES
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expense
Written oﬀ receivable from eClear Services Limited

28.1

112

28.1
22.1

CSR expense has not been made (2017: 6.3 million) to an institution in which a director has common directorship. No
director and their spouses had any interest in any institution to which this amount has been allocated during the year.
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28.2

During the year, the Company has made the following donations exceeding Rs. 500,000 as follows:
Name of Donee

Rupees

SIUT
Fatima Kidney Care
Kharadar General Hospital
Memon Medical Institute
The Indus Hospital
Patients' Welfare Association (DMC)
Patients' Aid Foundation (JPMC) (Cyber Knife)
The Patients' Behbud Society- AKUH
Ibrahim Eye Trust
The Citizen Foundation (TCF)
The Garage School
The Deaf Reach School (FESF)
Memon Industrial & Technical Institute (WMO)
The Hunar Foundation
Pakistan Sweet Homes

29

1,500,000
1,400,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
2,500,000
1,000,000
2,300,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
June 30, 2017
Rupees

178,938

141,275

327,941,839
7,740
4,679,841
332,629,420

317,400,000
(1,471,087)
(6,449,396)
309,479,517

FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges

30

June 30, 2018
Rupees

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
Prior
Deferred

30.1

The income tax assessments of the Company have been ﬁnalised up to and including tax year 2017.

30.2

As per management's assessmet, suﬃcent tax provision has been made in the ﬁnancial statements. Following are the details
of tax provision as per accounts and tax assessment for last 3 years:
Tax year

30.3

2017
2016
2015
-------------------------Rupees -------------------------

Tax provsion in the accounts

317,400,000

251,574,556

239,200,000

Tax assessment

317,407,740

250,182,124

240,826,389

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,001,613,963

918,194,168

30%

31%

300,484,189
28,954,766
3,190,465
332,629,420

284,640,192
28,400,000
(3,560,676)
309,479,517

Reconciliation of eﬀective tax rate
Proﬁt before income tax
Enacted tax rate
Tax charge at enacted rate
Super tax
Others
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31

EARNINGS PER SHARE

31.1

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic
Proﬁt after income tax

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

668,984,543

608,714,651

Number of shares
(Restated)
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares
Note
Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

31.1.1

106,090,000

106,090,000

Rupees

Rupees
(Restated)

6.31

5.74

31.1.1 These annual unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements have been restated to account for the eﬀect of bonus shares issued on
EPS in order to fairly present the result of year ended June 30, 2017.
31.2

Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted
Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
as at June 30, 2018 and 2017 which would have any eﬀect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable.
Note

32

June 30, 2017
Rupees

53,307,874
2,976,249,077
3,029,556,951

67,216,499
2,517,418,533
2,584,635,032

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments

33

June 30, 2018
Rupees

24
23

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance
with the rules of the gratuity fund. The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using
projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial assumptions used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2018 are
as follows:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
-------------Rate per annum---------9.00%
7.75%

9.25%
8.00%

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

33.4
33.5
33.2

391,761,142
(299,255,607)
92,505,535

306,649,142
(254,857,607)
51,791,535

Discount rate per annum (compound rate)
Salary increase rate

33.1

Statement of ﬁnancial position item
The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:
Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Movement in net deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
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33.2

Movement in net deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expense for the year
Payment to fund during the year
Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

33.3

Note

33.3
9.1

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

51,791,535
28,954,000
(32,336,000)
44,096,000
92,505,535

36,659,535
27,533,000
(28,196,000)
15,795,000
51,791,535

Amounts recognized in the proﬁt and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)
The following amounts have been charged in the proﬁt and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in
respect of these beneﬁts:
Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

26.1

24,067,000
27,778,000
(22,891,000)
28,954,000

24,842,000
22,812,000
(20,121,000)
27,533,000

Remeasurement loss on obligation
Remeasurement loss / (gain) on plan assets
Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI

40,139,000
3,957,000
44,096,000

19,144,000
(3,349,000)
15,795,000

Balance at the end of the year

73,050,000

43,328,000

306,649,142
24,067,000
27,778,000
(6,872,000)
40,139,000
391,761,142

314,213,142
(5,322,000)
24,842,000
22,812,000
(69,040,000)
19,144,000
306,649,142

254,857,607
22,891,000
32,336,000
(6,872,000)
(3,957,000)
299,255,607

277,553,607
(5,322,000)
20,121,000
28,196,000
(69,040,000)
3,349,000
254,857,607

391,761,142
391,761,142

306,649,000
306,649,000

202,327,000
189,434,142
391,761,142

148,657,000
157,992,000
306,649,000

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net interest

33.4

Movement in the present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfer to Subsidiary - ITMinds Limited
Current service cost
Interest cost
Beneﬁt paid
Actuarial loss on obligation
Balance at the end of the year

33.5

Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year
Transfer to subsidiary - ITMinds Limited
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions
Beneﬁts paid
Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets
Balance at the end of the year
Analysis of Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Split by Vested / Non-Vested
(i) Vested beneﬁts
(ii) Non-vested beneﬁts
Split by Beneﬁts earned to date
(i) Present value of guaranteed beneﬁts
(ii) Present value of beneﬁts attributable to future salary increase
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Maturity proﬁle of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

9.24

9.95

16,583,000
73,162,000
23,874,000
36,254,000
24,672,000
178,194,000

37,051,000
14,904,000
19,486,000
22,450,000
32,882,000
166,943,000

76,626,000
142,910,000
76,411,000
3,309,000
299,256,000

48,948,000
134,919,000
68,512,000
2,479,000
254,858,000

358,072,000
430,838,000
432,930,000
355,751,000

278,352,000
339,725,000
341,376,000
276,513,000

Weighted average duration of the Present value of deﬁned
beneﬁt obligation (time in years)
Distribution of timing of beneﬁt payments
Time in years
Within ﬁrst year from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within second years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within third years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within fourth years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within ﬁve years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within six to ten years from the end of ﬁnancial year
33.6

Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows:
Treasury Bills
Special Saving Certiﬁcates
Defense Saving Certiﬁcate
Bank balance
Total fair value of plan assets
Sensitivity analysis on signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions on present
value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation:
Discount Rate +1%
Discount Rate -1%
Expected rate of salary increase +1%
Expected rate of salary increase -1%

These ﬁgures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2018. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit
method.
33.7

The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2019 works out to be Rs. 37 million.

34

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence over
the other party in making ﬁnancial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or
without common directors, retirement beneﬁt funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members.
Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective
notes are as follows:
June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

6,083,178
788,568
6,871,746

6,566,676
924,124
7,490,800

6,083,178
788,568
6,871,746

6,566,676
924,124
7,490,800

291,896

294,370

Rent expense:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company
- LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company
Rent of premises paid to:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company
- LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company
Mark-up earned - Associated companies
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The shareholders and directors of the Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total
revenue from transactions in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:
June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

92,776,350

67,286,554

1,171,550

1,120,284

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue
of common directorship

15,332,423

27,440,463

Contributions to retirement plans

60,028,031

58,063,130

590,000

335,000

Shareholders
Directors

Transactions with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) Annual subscription, Director's Training Program and others
Transactions with The Citizens Foundation - Donation / Sponsorship

-

6,300,000

Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) Advertisement, parking & intercom

237,557

1,241,724

Transactions with LSE Financial Services Limited Directors travelling, Electricity & Generator Charges

717,492

583,371

Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - utilities

2,459,545

2,346,324

Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges

9,687,699

10,271,424

2,898,819
31,784,132
(30,000,000)
4,682,951

2,721,771
12,677,048
(12,500,000)
2,898,819

12,500

12,500

130,240
528,203
(523,443)
135,000

1,622,367
(1,492,127)
130,240

12,500

12,500

8,872,527
242,694
(9,115,221)
-

8,872,527
8,872,527

Transaction / Balance with ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary
Opening balance
Transactions - net
Payment received
Closing balance
Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary's CDS eligibility
Transaction / Balance with CDC Trustee Company Limited - Subsidiary
Opening balance
Transactions - net
Payment received
Closing balance
Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary's CDS eligibility
Transaction / Balance with eClear Services Limited - Subsidiary
Opening balance
Transactions - net
Written oﬀ receivable from eClear Services Limited
Closing balance
34.1

The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm's length prices
using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

34.2

The Company has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Company's
policies and terms of employment.
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35

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

35.1

Financial risk management
The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework.
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of ﬁnancial instruments:
- Market risk
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
- Capital risk
- Liquidity risk

35.1.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the ﬁnancial instrument may ﬂuctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates
or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest
rate risk.
(a) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of ﬁnancial asset or a liability will ﬂuctuate due to a change in foreign exchange
rates. The Company is not signiﬁcantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Company are carried
out in the local currency.
(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company is not signiﬁcantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any
interest bearing liabilities. However, the Company has ﬁxed interest based investments and loans to employees. These
investments are classiﬁed as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of the interest rates and
management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not aﬀected by volatility of market
interest rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Company does not expose the Company to interest rate risk substantially.
The Company has investments in the following securities having ﬁxed rate of return:
Note
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)
Treasury Bills ( T-Bills)
Term Deposit Certiﬁcates (TDCs)

21 & 23
23
23

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,817,115,522
1,159,133,555
2,976,249,077

153,829,897
1,309,881,578
1,059,038,628
2,522,750,103

Investments in PIBs & TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and
treasury bills are for a period of 3 months. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not aﬀect the cash ﬂows of the
Company.
(c) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money
due to a fall in the market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market
ﬁnancial instruments. Currently entity has no security designated as held for trading therefore there is no implications of
price risks.
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35.2

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the eﬀective rates on its ﬁnancial assets and liabilities are summarized as
follows:
Mark-up Bearing
Eﬀective
Over one
Non
Less than
Over ﬁve
June 30, 2018
yield / interest
year to
Markup
Total
years
one year
rates (%)
ﬁve years
bearing
Financial assets
Investments
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Note

-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------

15, 21 & 23
16 & 19
17
18
21
22
24

6.0 - 6.76
0.00 - 3.00

3.5 - 4.75

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Trade and other payables

Investments
Loans
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

59,357,334
-

-

100,000,000
3,130,703
5,997,415
265,653,638
13,753,448
6,277,770

3,076,249,077
71,677,048
5,997,415
265,653,638
13,753,448
53,307,874

3,032,468,192

59,357,334

-

394,812,974

3,486,638,500

7 & 10
9

Eﬀective
yield / interest
rates (%)

June 30, 2017
Financial assets

2,976,249,077
9,189,011
47,030,104

Note
15, 21 & 23
16 & 19
17
18
21
22
24

-

-

-

123,373,500
375,310,644

123,373,500
375,310,644

-

-

-

498,684,144

498,684,144

Non
Markup
bearing

Total

Mark-up Bearing
Over one
year to
ﬁve years

Less than
one year

Over ﬁve
years

-------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------5.84 - 12.25
0.00 - 3.00

4.75 - 6.00

2,522,750,103
7,974,690
61,199,437

42,511,600
-

-

100,000,000
3,685,201
7,458,969
343,504,382
5,331,570
17,587,282
161,340,508

2,622,750,103
54,171,491
7,458,969
343,504,382
5,331,570
17,587,282
222,539,945

2,591,924,230

42,511,600

-

638,907,912

3,273,343,742

-

119,036,000
377,247,428
496,283,428

119,036,000
377,247,428
496,283,428

Financial liabilities
Deposit
Trade and other payables

35.3

7 & 10
9

-

-

Fair values of ﬁnancial instruments
Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. The Company prepares its unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements under the historical cost
convention except for measurement of available for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at
amortised cost and recognition of staﬀ retirement beneﬁts on the actuarial valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all
ﬁnancial instruments are not signiﬁcantly diﬀerent from their carrying values on June 30, 2018.
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35.4

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a ﬁnancial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to
incur a ﬁnancial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk at very low level.
Rating
Short Term
Long Term

Highest

Lowest

A-1+
AAA

A-1+
AA

The aging analysis of trade debts is provided in note 18.1.
35.5

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reﬂects the Company's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the
Company's liquidity and cash ﬂow position. This includes maintenance of statement of ﬁnancial position liquidity ratios, debtors
and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.
As at June 30, 2018 the Company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6
months
Note
Deposits
Trade and other payables

Non Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

7 & 10
9

375,310,644
375,310,644

-

-

123,373,500
123,373,500

123,373,500
375,310,644
498,684,144

As at June 30, 2017 the company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6
months
Note
Deposits
Trade and other payables

36

7 & 10
9

460,500
377,247,428
377,707,928

Current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

120

later than
5 years

Total

-

-

118,575,500
118,575,500

119,036,000
377,247,428
496,283,428

June 30, 2018

Loan and
receivables
Note

1 to 5
years

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

Financial assets
Non current assets
Long term investments
Long term loans
Long term deposits

Non Current

within 6-12
months

Held for
trading

Available
for sale

Held to
maturity

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

15
16
17

100,000,000
59,357,334
5,997,415
165,354,749

-

18
19
21
22
23
24

265,653,638
12,908,374
13,753,448
53,307,874
345,623,334
510,978,083

-

2,976,249,077
2,976,249,077
2,976,249,077

-

100,000,000
59,357,334
5,997,415
165,354,749

-

265,653,638
12,908,374
13,753,448
2,976,249,077
53,307,874
3,321,872,411
3,487,227,160
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June 30, 2018
Amortized
Cost
Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

Note

Held for
trading

Total

--------------------Rupees--------------------

7

123,373,500

-

123,373,500

9
10

375,310,644
375,310,644
498,684,144

-

375,310,644
375,310,644
498,684,144

June 30, 2017
Loan and
receivables
Financial assets
Non current Assets
Long term investments
long term loans
Long term deposits
Current Assets
Trade debts - net
Loan and advances
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Note

Held for
trading

Available
for sale

Held to
maturity

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

15
16
17

100,000,000
42,511,600
7,458,969
149,970,569

-

18
19
21
22
23
24

343,504,382
13,350,518
5,331,570
17,587,282
67,216,499
446,990,251
596,960,820

-

2,517,418,533
2,517,418,533
2,517,418,533

-

100,000,000
42,511,600
7,458,969
149,970,569

-

343,504,382
13,350,518
5,331,570
17,587,282
2,517,418,533
67,216,499
2,964,408,784
3,114,379,353

June 30, 2017
Amortized
Cost
Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

37

Held for
trading

Total

--------------------Rupees-------------------7

118,575,500

-

118,575,500

9
10

377,247,428
460,500
377,707,928
496,283,428

-

377,247,428
460,500
377,707,928
496,283,428

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or the most advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
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37.1

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of ﬁnancial instruments:

37.2

Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Financial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of the ﬁnancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.
June 30, 2018
Carrying
value
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale securities
- Term Deposit Certiﬁcates
- Treasury Bills
- Pakistan Investment Bonds

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
-

-

1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
-

-

1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
-

72,265,708
5,997,415
265,653,638
13,753,448
53,307,874
3,387,227,160

-

2,976,249,077

-

72,265,708
5,997,415
265,653,638
13,753,448
53,307,874
3,387,227,160

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Deposits
123,373,500
Trade and other payables
375,310,644
498,684,144

-

-

123,373,500
375,310,644
498,684,144

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

June 30, 2017

Carrying
value
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale investments
- Term Deposit Certiﬁcates
- Treasury Bills
- Pakistan Investment Bonds
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Deposits
Trade and other payables

122

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
153,829,897

-

1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
153,829,897

-

1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
153,829,897

55,862,118
7,458,969
343,504,382
5,331,570
17,587,282
67,216,499
3,019,710,923

-

2,522,750,103

-

55,862,118
7,458,969
343,504,382
5,331,570
17,587,282
67,216,499
3,019,710,923

119,036,000
377,247,428
496,283,428

-

-

119,036,000
377,247,428
496,283,428

-

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited | Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018
37.3

37.4

Information about valuation technique and inputs used
Item

Valuation technique and inputs used

Term Deposit Certiﬁcates

A deposit at a bank or other ﬁnancial institution that has a ﬁxed return (usually via an
interest rate) and a set maturity. That is, the depositor does not have access to the funds
until maturity; in exchange, he/she is usually entitled to a higher interest rate. One of the
most common examples of a term deposit is a certiﬁcate of deposit. Term deposit
certiﬁcates are valued at amortized cost.

Pakistan Investment Bonds
and Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates
(Reuters page)

Non-ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-ﬁnancial assets measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.
June 30, 2018
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------Land-lease hold
Building

549,999,000
521,479,997
1,071,478,997

-

-

549,999,000
521,479,997
1,071,478,997

549,999,000
521,479,997
1,071,478,997

June 30, 2017
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------Land-lease hold
Building

38

549,999,000
445,322,662
995,321,662

-

-

549,999,000
269,182,466
819,181,466

549,999,000
269,182,466
819,181,466

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and
market conﬁdence and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company's ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and beneﬁt for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Company deﬁnes as
proﬁt after income tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to
ordinary shareholders.
The Company ﬁnances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of
capital risk management comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments and
unappropriated proﬁt.

39

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The directors in their meeting held on August 09, 2018 have proposed bonus shares @ 41.3894% i.e. 43.91 million shares
(2017: 6.09% i.e. 6.09 million shares) and cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share (2017: Rs. 1.83 per share) of Rs. 10 each i.e. 15%
(2017: 18.30%) of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2018. The unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018 do not include the eﬀect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in which
it is approved by shareholders.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

40

41

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

Number of employees at the end of the year

410

402

Average number of employees during the year

404

394

EMPLOYEES

DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 200th meeting held
on August 09, 2018.
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Directors’ Report on Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL) are pleased to present their report together with audited
consolidated ﬁnancial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its Subsidiary Companies for the year
ended June 30, 2018.
The consolidated results comprise of ﬁnancial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries ITMinds Limited, CDC Trustee Company Limited and eClear Services Limited. The
Holding Company has annexed its consolidated ﬁnancial statements along with its separate ﬁnancial statements, in accordance
with the requirement of International Accounting Standard 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The standalone
Directors’ Report, giving a commentary on the performance of Central Depository Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 has
been presented separately.
Rupees in million
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Proﬁt for the year before tax

1,003

919

Taxation

333

311

Proﬁt after tax

670

608

Earnings per share (Rs.)

6.32

5.73

Internal control structure of the group is the same as that of Holding Company which is also covered in standalone Directors’
Report.
The subsidiary eClear Services Limited was formed solely to provide Professional Clearing Member (“PCM”) services. However, in
view of advice of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”), further eﬀorts in relation to PCM have been
discontinued and, as also advised by the SECP, CDC has focused on brining innovation in already available products such as Direct
Settlement Services, to further the objective of protection of Investors’ assets. Given that the said subsidiary was not in operations,
the management is in the process of striking its name oﬀ the register of companies in accordance with Section 426 of the
Companies Act, 2017. Risk and uncertainties relating to the Holding Company has been disclosed in the standalone Directors’
Report whereas no major risk and uncertainty has been identiﬁed relating to CDC Trustee Company Limited and ITMinds Limited.
The Company has a policy for reviewing Directors’ remuneration at regular intervals. Details of aggregate amount of remuneration
separately of executive and non-executive directors is presented on page no. ____.
Detail relating to Directors of Holding Company has been mentioned in the standalone Directors’ Report. The name of the Directors
in oﬃce at any time during the year of Subsidiary Companies are as follows:
Directors of ITMinds Limited

Directors of CDC Trustee
Company Limited

Directors of eClear
Services Limited

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani

Mr. Farid Malik

Mr. Shariq Naseem

Syed Veqar-ul-Islam

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

Dr. Aamir Matin

Mr. Abdul Samad

Mr. Badiuddin Akber

Mr. Muhammad Junaid Shekha

Mr. Atiqur Rehman

Syed Asif Shah

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed (R)

Mr. Shariq Jafrani

Mr. Muhammad Junaid Shekha

Mr. Moin M. Fudda (R)
Mr. Shehzad Chamdia (R)
R = Resigned
All Subsidiary Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of CDCPL and pattern of shareholding relating to Holding Company has
been disclosed in the standalone Directors’ Report.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
-sd__________________________
Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Oﬃcer
Karachi, dated: Thursday, August 09, 2018
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Rupees in million
June 30, 2017

June 30, 2018

919

1,003

311

333

608

670

5.73

6.32
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
1st & 3rd Floor,
Modern Motors House
Beaumont Road,
Karachi 75530
T +92 021 3567 2952-56
F +92 021 3568 8834
www.gtpak.com

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the annexed consolidated ﬁnancial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of ﬁnancial position as at June 30, 2018, and consolidated
proﬁt and loss account and consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash ﬂows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, including a
summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, consolidated ﬁnancial statements give true and fair view of the consolidated ﬁnancial position of the Group as at
June 30, 2018, and its consolidated proﬁt and loss account and its consolidated cash ﬂows for the year then ended in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulﬁlled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines in necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated ﬁnancial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using to going concern basis of accounting, unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the group’s ﬁnancial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Oﬃces in Islamabad, Lahore
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suﬃcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher then for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eﬀectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signiﬁcant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated ﬁnancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

.

Obtain suﬃcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the ﬁnancial information of the entities our business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
signiﬁcant audit ﬁndings, including any signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khaliq-ur-Rahman.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahaman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
August 09, 2018

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Oﬃces in Islamabad, Lahore
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Consolidated Statement of financial position
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Rupees

June 30, 2017
(Restated)
Rupees

June 30, 2016
(Restated)
Rupees

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,060,900,000

1,000,000,000

650,000,000

100,000,000
2,235,046,101
(216,254)
711,360,913
3,046,190,760
4,107,090,760

100,000,000
1,829,034,790
10,031
719,539,436
2,648,584,257
3,648,584,257

100,000,000
1,591,301,368
4,934,808
465,862,802
2,162,098,978
2,812,098,978

7
8

123,348,500
103,727,074
227,075,574

118,550,500
107,868,097
226,418,597

116,200,000
66,710,364
182,910,364

9
10
11
12

532,658,196
51,897,337
3,828,548
588,384,083
815,459,655

485,635,471
460,500
47,561,822
30,394,533
564,052,326
790,470,923

359,418,116
660,498
42,601,748
22,882,421
425,562,783
608,473,147

13

4,922,550,415

4,439,055,180

3,420,572,125

14.1
14.2

1,297,565,027
137,513,529
1,435,078,556

1,203,381,743
128,764,648
1,332,146,391

891,704,038
100,306,953
992,010,991

15
16

60,596,006
7,015,328
1,502,689,890

43,988,976
15,292,938
1,391,428,305

37,207,757
13,020,838
1,042,239,586

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

272,553,929
13,476,577
23,379,174
10,102,402
3,040,481,436
59,867,007
3,419,860,525

346,730,379
14,069,011
18,417,375
5,331,570
6,681,733
2,579,311,193
77,085,614
3,047,626,875

246,010,424
8,826,458
25,562,728
40,635,772
5,141,511
1,976,992,615
75,163,031
2,378,332,539

4,922,550,415

4,439,055,180

3,420,572,125

Note

Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital
150,000,000 (2017: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
106,090,000 (2017: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Reserves
Reserve fund
Unappropriated proﬁt
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net

5

6

Total shareholders' equity
Non-current liabilities
Long term deposits
Deferred taxation - net
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fee
Taxation - net
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments
Total equity and liabilities
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Long term loans
Long term deposits and prepayments
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances
Total current assets
Total assets

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Operating income - net

24

1,989,696,361

1,869,367,659

Operating and administrative expenses

25

(1,134,727,159)

(1,071,599,054)

854,969,202

797,768,605

Operating proﬁt
Other income

26

173,635,983

144,904,489

Other expenses

27

(25,639,074)

(23,543,440)

Financial charges

28

(272,996)
147,723,913

(195,919)
121,165,130

1,002,693,115

918,933,735

(332,630,417)

(310,755,996)

670,062,698

608,177,739

6.32

(Restated)
5.73

Proﬁt before income tax
Income tax expense

29

Proﬁt for the year
Earnings per share - basic and diluted

30

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
(Restated)
Rupees

670,062,698

608,177,739

Unrealised loss on remeasurement of available for sale investments

(323,264)

(7,261,063)

Impact of deferred tax

96,979
(226,285)

2,336,286
(4,924,777)

(46,153,000)
14,551,680
(31,601,320)

(16,473,000)
4,896,450
(11,576,550)

3,271,409
3,271,409

321,819,035
(57,010,168)
264,808,867

Total other comprehensive (loss) / proﬁt

(28,556,196)

248,307,540

Total comprehensive income for the year

641,506,502

856,485,279

Proﬁt for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items that may be reclassiﬁed to consolidated proﬁt and loss account subsequently

Items that will never be reclassiﬁed to consolidated proﬁt and loss account
Loss on remeasurement of retirement beneﬁt obligation
Impact of current tax
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment
Impact of deferred tax

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proﬁt before income tax
Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds
Depreciation on property and equipment
Amortization on intangibles
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property and equipment
Return on bank deposits
Return on investment - available for sale investment
eClear Software Written oﬀ
Dividend income
Financial charges
Provision for retirement beneﬁt plan

14.1.1
14.2.1
26
26
26
14.2.2
28
32.3

Operating proﬁt before working capital changes

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,002,693,115

918,933,735

112,802,979
42,227,342
(1,765,501)
(4,955,825)
(160,517,071)
5,325,000
272,996
30,712,000
24,101,920
1,026,795,035

101,973,231
33,845,601
597,613
(4,787,274)
(133,248,173)
(4,723,482)
195,919
29,152,000
23,005,435
941,939,170

74,176,450
592,434
(4,961,799)
(3,420,669)
66,386,416

(100,719,955)
(5,242,553)
7,145,353
(1,540,222)
(100,357,377)

4,596,725
(460,500)
4,335,515
8,471,740

110,607,355
(199,998)
4,960,074
115,367,431

(16,607,030)
8,277,610
4,798,000
(3,531,420)
1,098,121,771

(6,781,219)
(2,272,100)
2,350,500
(6,702,819)
950,246,405

(34,439,000)
(272,996)
(345,417,357)
(380,129,352)
717,992,419

(30,015,000)
(195,919)
(311,863,583)
(342,074,502)
608,171,903

(264,058,233)
2,536,248
10,287,395
160,193,807
(91,040,783)

(157,198,262)
2,465,452
40,091,476
125,987,110
4,723,482
16,069,258

(183,000,000)
(183,000,000)
443,951,636

(20,000,000)
(20,000,000)
604,241,161

2,656,396,807
3,100,348,443

2,052,155,646
2,656,396,807

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Prepayments
Other receivables
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
Unearned fees
Increase in loans (assets)
Decrease / (Increase) in deposits and prepayments (assets)
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)
Cash generated from operations
Contribution paid to retirement beneﬁt plan
Financial charges paid
Income tax paid

32.2
28

Net cash from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Mark-up received
Investments - net
Dividend received
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Net cash used in ﬁnancing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

31

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Note
Balance as at July 1, 2016 - previously reported
Eﬀect of change in accounting policy
Balance as at July 1, 2016 - Restated

4.3.1

Issued,
* Reserve
Unappropriated
Surplus on
Surplus on
Total
subscribed
fund
proﬁt
revaluation of
revaluation of
shareholders'
and paid-up
Available for sale
property and
equity
share capital
investments - net equipment - net
…………………………………………………………………………………...Rupees…………………………………………………………………………………...
650,000,000

100,000,000

1,591,301,368

4,934,808

-

2,346,236,176

650,000,000

100,000,000

1,591,301,368

4,934,808

465,862,802
465,862,802

465,862,802
2,812,098,978

(4,924,777)
(4,924,777)

264,808,867
264,808,867

608,177,739
248,307,540
856,485,279

Comprehensive income for the year
- Proﬁt after income tax
- Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

608,177,739
(11,576,550)
596,601,189

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend paid @ 3.077% ( i.e. Re. 0.3077 per share )

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

(350,000,000)
(370,000,000)

-

-

(20,000,000)

-

11,132,233

-

Bonus Shares @ 53.846% ( i.e. Rs. 35 million share )
Total transaction with owners
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed
assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net oﬀ deferred tax

350,000,000
350,000,000

6

-

(11,132,233)

-

Balance as at June 30, 2017 - Restated

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

1,829,034,790

10,031

719,539,436

3,648,584,257

Balance as at July 1, 2017 - Restated

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

1,829,034,790

10,031

719,539,436

3,648,584,257

(226,285)
(226,285)

3,271,409
3,271,409

670,062,698
(28,556,196)
641,506,502

Comprehensive income for the year
- Proﬁt after income tax
- Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

670,062,698
(31,601,320)
638,461,378

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend @ 18.3% (i.e. Rs. 1.83 per share)

-

-

(183,000,000)

-

-

(183,000,000)

-

(60,900,000)
(243,900,000)

-

-

(183,000,000)

-

11,449,932

-

Bonus shares @ 6.09% (i.e. 6.09 million shares)
Total transactions with owners
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed
assets on account of incremental
depreciation - net oﬀ deferred tax
Balance as at June 30, 2018

60,900,000
60,900,000

6

1,060,900,000

100,000,000

2,235,046,101

(216,254)

(11,449,932)
711,360,913

4,107,090,760

* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Holding Company.
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018
1

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
The 'Group' consists of :

1.1

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company), and its subsidiaries namely ITMinds Limited (ITML),
CDC Trustee Company Limited (CTCL) and eClear Services Limited (ESL).
Holding Company
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Holding Company was incorporated, as a public company with its liability limited by shares, on January 21, 1993 and received
certiﬁcate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994. The principal business activity of the Holding Company is to
act as a depository for securities and to open securities account. The holding Company also acts as a registrar to the issuer
of securities.
Holding Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non
Banking Finance Companies and Notiﬁed Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds
formed under the said regulations.
Holding Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and Centralized
Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).
The registered oﬃce of the holding Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. The
Holding Company has other branch oﬃces in Lahore and Islamabad.
Subsidiary Companies
ITMinds Limited
ITMinds Limited (ITML) was incorporated as public limited company on December 8, 2011 and received certiﬁcate of
commencement of business on January 30, 2012. The registered oﬃce of the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block
B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. The principal activities of the Company is to provide Information Technology and Business
Process Outsourcing (BPO) services. The holding Company's controlling interest is 100% (2017: 100%).
ITML has been consolidated in these consolidated ﬁnancial statements on the basis of audited ﬁnancial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018.
CDC Trustee Company Limited
CDC Trustee Company Limited (CTCL) was incorporated as public limited unlisted Company on September 07, 2012 and
received certiﬁcate of commencement of business on December 17, 2012. The registered oﬃce of the Company is situated
at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The company was formed with an objective to act as trustee for
open-end funds & closed-end schemes, voluntary pension schemes and to provide custodial services to closed end funds,
discretionary/non-discretionary portfolios. The holding Company's controlling interest is 100% (2017: 100%).
CTCL has been consolidated in these consolidated ﬁnancial statements on the basis of audited ﬁnancial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018.
eClear Services Limited
eClear Services Limited (ESL) is incorporated during the year as public limited on January 20, 2017. The registered oﬃce of
the Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The company was formed with an
objective to act as Professional Clearing Member as per Professional Clearing Member Regulations.
ESL has been consolidated in these consolidated ﬁnancial statements on the basis of un-audited ﬁnancial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018.
During the year, the board of the Holding Company authorized the management to proceed for winding-up / amalgamation
of eClear Services Limited with the Central Depository Company of Pakistan and authorized the management to proceed for
necessary action for best option.
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2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

2.1

Statement of compliance
These consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notiﬁed under the Companies
Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. Wherever the requirements of Companies Act,
2017 or directives issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) diﬀer with the requirements of IFRS, the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.
Subsidiaries are following approved accounting standard comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards for Small
and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 or directives issued by the SECP shall prevail.

2.1.1 Promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017
The Companies Act, 2017 applicable for periods ending after December 31, 2017 which results in additional disclosures and
certain changes in ﬁnancial statements presentation including changes of fourth schedule, and treatment of surplus on
revaluation of property and equipment which have been incorporated in these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
2.2

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements comprise ﬁnancial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
"the Group". The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis
and the carrying value of the investment held by the Holding Company has been eliminated against corresponding holding
in subsidiaries' shareholders' equity in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses have been eliminated.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the group are prepared for the same reporting year as the unconsolidated ﬁnancial
statements of the Holding Company and the subsidiaries, using same accounting policies being consistently applied.

2.3

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

2.3.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Group and adopted
in the current year
The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs
which became eﬀective during the current year.
Standard or Interpretation

Eﬀective Date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)

January 1, 2017

IAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
(Amendments to IAS 12)

January 1, 2017

IFRS 12 - Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016

January 1, 2017

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no signiﬁcant eﬀect on the
amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2018.
2.3.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are eﬀective but not relevant
The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the ﬁnancial year
beginning on July 01, 2017 are considered not to be relevant or to have any signiﬁcant eﬀect on the Group's ﬁnancial
reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here.
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2.3.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet eﬀective and
not early adopted by the Group
The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be eﬀective from the dates
mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.
Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

Eﬀective Date
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)
Postponed

IFRS 2 - Classiﬁcation and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transaction (Amendements to IFRS 2)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

January 1, 2018

IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

January 1, 2018

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

July 1, 2018

IFRS 9 - Financial Instrumnets

July 1, 2018

IFRS 16 - Leases

January 1, 2019

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

January 1, 2019

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28)

January 1, 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

January 1, 2019

Amendments regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

January 1, 2019

IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)

January 1, 2019

IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19)

January 1, 2019

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published
standards on the ﬁnancial statements of the Group.
2.3.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notiﬁed by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be
notiﬁed by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
IASB eﬀective date

2.4

Standard or Interpretation
(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

January 1, 2016

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

January 1, 2021

Basis of measurement

2.4.1 These consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of
staﬀ retirement beneﬁts at present value based on actuarial valuation, land- lease hold and building at revalued amount and
measurement of certain investments at fair value and amortised cost.
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2.4.2 These consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash ﬂow
statement.
2.4.3 Items included in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Holding Company operates.
2.5

Presentation and functional currency
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency.

2.6

General
The ﬁgures have been rounded oﬀ to the nearest rupee.

3

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of consolidated ﬁnancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that aﬀect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may diﬀer from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision aﬀects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision aﬀects both current and future periods. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are signiﬁcant to the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements are as follows:
a) Staﬀ retirement beneﬁts
b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets
c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts
d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation
e) Revaluation of land and building
f) Investments

Note
4.2
4.3
4.6
4.10
4.3 & 14
4.5.1

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that
changes in outcome of estimates will not have material eﬀect on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements are set out below.
These policies and methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

4.1

Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the
Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising
from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.
The Group recognises identiﬁable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether
they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s ﬁnancial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

4.2

Staﬀ retirement beneﬁts

4.2.1 Deﬁned beneﬁt plan
The Group operates a deﬁned beneﬁt plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its conﬁrmed employees who have completed
minimum qualifying period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made
monthly to this fund on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are
recognised in the statement of ﬁnancial position immediately, with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the
periods in which they occur. The signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions are stated in note 32.
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4.2.2 Deﬁned contribution plan
The Group also operates two deﬁned contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a deﬁned contribution gratuity fund.
Provident fund
The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of
10% of basic salary are made to the fund both by the Group and the employees.
Deﬁned Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund
The Group has established a deﬁned contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after
January 1, 2014. Contributions are made by the Group to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary.
4.2.3 Other beneﬁts
Compensated absences
The Group has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective
entitlement on cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognised in the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements on the basis of best management estimates.
4.3

Property and equipment

4.3.1 Change in accounting policies
The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed through the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017. However, as described
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vid circular number 23 dated October 4, 2017, the ﬁnancial reporting
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018.
Consequently the Company has changed its policy for accounting for surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed assets. The Company's
accounting policy (as disclosed in Note 4.2 unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017), in
accordance with the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Companies Act, 2017 removed the speciﬁc provisions
allowing the previous treatment. A surplus arising on revaluation of particular property is now to be accounted for in
accordance witn IFRS.
Owned
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and
building which are stated at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Individual items costing Rs. 5,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period cost.
Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.3.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 14 and is charged to income. Depreciation on
additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of
retirement/disposal.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each ﬁnancial year end.
Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to proﬁt and loss account in the period of their occurrence, while major
renovations and improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to proﬁt and loss account currently.
Revaluation of assets
Revaluation is carried out with suﬃcient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not diﬀer materially
from the fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of ﬁxed assets
account.
Leased
The Group accounts for assets acquired under ﬁnance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts
are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease
payments. Financial charges are allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge
on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged to proﬁt and loss account applying the same basis as for owned assets.
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Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identiﬁed impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital
work in progress account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the speciﬁc assets incurred during installation
and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to speciﬁc assets as and when
assets are available for use.
4.3.2 Intangibles
Costs that are directly associated with identiﬁable software products controlled by the Group and have probable economic
beneﬁt beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using
the straight line method reﬂecting the pattern in which the economic beneﬁts of the assets are consumed by the Group.
Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal. The
amortization period for software is ﬁve years.
4.3.3 Impairment of non-ﬁnancial assets
The carrying amounts of non ﬁnancial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised, as an expense in the proﬁt and loss account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in
use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash ﬂows using a discount rate that reﬂects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk speciﬁc to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels at which these are generating separately identiﬁable cash ﬂows (cash generating units).
4.4

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost
that is directly attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to proﬁt and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

4.5

Financial instruments
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
ﬁnancial instrument.
Initial recognition
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised initially at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given for it,
including associated transaction costs except that are incurred on ﬁnancial assets and liabilities at fair value through
consolidated proﬁt or loss account in which case transaction costs are recorded in the consolidated proﬁt and loss account.
Subsequent measurement
The ﬁnancial assets are measured subsequently as described below:

4.5.1 Financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, ﬁnancial assets are classiﬁed into four categories upon initial recognition;
namely loans and receivables, held to maturity, available for sale and held for trading investments.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ﬁnancial assets with ﬁxed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial recognition these are carried at amortized cost.
Held to maturity
Held to maturity investments are ﬁnancial assets with ﬁxed or determinable payments and ﬁxed maturity and the Group has
a positive intent and ability to hold these investments till maturity. After Initial recognition, these are carried at amortized
cost.
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Available for sale investment
Investments intended to be held for indeﬁnite period of time, which may be sold on response to needs for liquidity or
changes in equity prices, are classiﬁed as 'available for sale investment'. Financial assets at 'available for sale' are those
non-derivative ﬁnancial assets that are designated as available for sale ﬁnancial asset, or are not classiﬁed as (a) loans and
receivables (b) held to maturity investments (c) held for trading investment. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
investments are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried on the consolidated statement of ﬁnancial
position at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to surplus on
revaluation of 'available for sale' investment through other consolidated comprehensive income until the investments are
derecognized and then the surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment is transferred to consolidated proﬁt
and loss account.
Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss
Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating proﬁt from short term ﬂuctuations in prices are
classiﬁed as 'at fair value through proﬁt or loss' or held for trading.
Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in consolidated proﬁt and loss
account. These investments are marked to market and are carried on the consolidated statement of ﬁnancial position at fair
value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of these investments are taken to the consolidated proﬁt and loss
account for the year.
Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
A ﬁnancial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired.
A ﬁnancial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative
eﬀect on the estimated future cash ﬂows of that asset.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
4.5.2 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the eﬀective interest method except for those which
are designated at fair value through consolidated proﬁt and loss account, which are carried subsequently at fair value with
remeasurement gains or losses recognised in consolidated proﬁt and loss account.
All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument's fair value are reported in consolidated proﬁt and
loss account are included within ﬁnance costs or ﬁnance income.
4.5.3 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognized at the time when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the
ﬁnancial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation
speciﬁed in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any gains or losses on derecognition of ﬁnancial assets and
ﬁnancial liabilities are taken to the consolidated proﬁt and loss account immediately.
4.5.4 Oﬀ setting
Financial assets and liabilities are oﬀ set and the net amount is reported in the statement of ﬁnancial position if the Group
has a legal right to set-oﬀ the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
4.6

Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

4.7

Provisions, contingencies and commitments
A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of ﬁnancial position when as a result of past events, the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic
beneﬁts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
No liability is recognised if an outﬂow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such
situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the outﬂow of resources is remote.
Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these consolidated ﬁnancial statements at
committed amounts.
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4.8

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for
services.

4.9

Foreign currency translations
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to income currently.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

4.10

Taxation

4.10.1 Current
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available
tax credit and rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of
tax laws.
4.10.2 Deferred
Deferred tax is provided for, using the statement of ﬁnancial position liability method, providing the temporary diﬀerences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for ﬁnancial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the statement of ﬁnancial position date. Deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable proﬁts will be available and credits can be utilized.
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the diﬀerences reverse, based on tax
rates that have been enacted. The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated proﬁt and loss account, except in the case of items credited or
charged to other comprehensive income in which case it is included in other comprehensive income.
4.11

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the statement of ﬁnancial position at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the
purpose of consolidated statement of cash ﬂows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only
those short term investments which are highly liquid and maturing within three months from the date of acquisition, that
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigniﬁcant risk of change in value.

4.12

Revenue recognition
Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full
upon settlement in CDS on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and
recognized on per trade basis.
Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading
session of every trading day of the month at the Pakistan Stock Exchange. Custody fee on government securities is
recognized daily on cost.
Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation.
Other fees are recognized when the Group renders the related services.
Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds.
Income form IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they
are incidental to the sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.
Revenue from Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services are recognised as the related services performed, in accordance
with speciﬁc terms of the contract with customers.
Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise.
Return on ﬁxed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis.
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4.13

Interest and dividends income
Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the eﬀective interest method. Dividends, other than
those from investments in associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is
established.

4.14

Dividend and appropriation
Dividend distribution to the Group shareholders' of the Holding Company is recognized as a liability in the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements in the period in which such dividends are approved.

4.15

Related party transactions
All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Holding Company at arm's length prices using the comparable
uncontrolled valuation method.

4.16

Earnings per share

4.17

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
proﬁt or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the proﬁt or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the eﬀects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
Segment reporting
Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Management, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of internal
reporting structure, the Holding Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment whereas subsidiaries are
separate segments. Infoirmation about assets, liabilities, operating income and proﬁt of segments are presented in note 35
of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements. The Holding Company and subsidiaries report separate results in their
unconsolidated ﬁnancial statements.

5

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Number of shares
10,000,000

10,000,000

90,000,000
6,090,000
96,090,000

55,000,000
35,000,000
90,000,000

106,090,000

100,000,000

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares
- Beginning of the year
- During the year
Total bonus shares

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

100,000,000

100,000,000

900,000,000
60,900,000
960,900,000

550,000,000
350,000,000
900,000,000

1,060,900,000

1,000,000,000

5.1 Associated companies held 74,059,305 (2017: 67,557,997) shares in the Holding Company as at year end.
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6

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at
the beginning of the year
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

6.1

817,681,712
-

511,765,889
321,819,035

(11,449,932)

(11,132,233)

(4,743,543)
(16,193,527)

(4,770,979)
(15,903,212)

801,488,237

817,681,712

(98,142,276)
3,271,409

(45,903,087)
(59,879,111)
2,868,943

4,743,543

4,770,979

(90,127,324)

(98,142,276)

711,360,913

719,539,436

Transferred to accumulated proﬁt:
- surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to
unappropriated proﬁt during the year - net oﬀ deferred tax
- related deferred tax liability
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at
the end of the year
Less: related deferred tax liability on:
-

surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year
surplus on revaluation of property and equipment during the year
remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate
incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to
proﬁt and loss account

Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of
property and equipment at the end of the year

8

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net
6.1

Land and building has been revalued on June 30, 2017 which resulted in further revaluation surplus of Rs. 321,819,035.

7

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Due to:
- Participants
- Institutions
- Pledgees
- Issuers

Note

7.1&7.2

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

40,813,139
32,022,861
1,600,000
48,912,500
123,348,500

41,251,500
29,824,000
1,600,000
45,875,000
118,550,500

7.1

These represent security deposits received from diﬀerent categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their
admission in the CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such
deposits may be utilized by the Holding Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of
termination of admission to the CDS.

7.2

It includes long term deposits amounting to Rs. 3 million (2017: Rs. 6.025 million) from related parties.

8

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

(336,150)
(93,750)
(7,670,457)

(347,741)
4,320
(2,217,987)

21,700,107

12,287,229

90,127,324

98,142,276

103,727,074

107,868,097

Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary diﬀerences on:
- Provision for doubtful debts
- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments
- Deferred tax arising in respect of minimum tax
Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary
diﬀerences on:
- Excess of accounting written down value under cost model
over tax written down value of property and equipment
- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

6
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9

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Payable to suppliers
Accrued expenses
Employees’ retirement beneﬁts and other obligations
Investor account services - current account
Workers' welfare fund
Sales tax payable
Others

9.1

UNEARNED FEE
Annual fee
- Issuers
- Investor Account Services (IAS)
- Centralised Information Sharing Solution for
Insurance Industry (CISSII) Partcipants
Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee
Sub account maintenance fee
Others

12

25.1

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

7,650,597
276,428,943
132,351,233
84,893,299
13,745,902
16,622,083
966,138
532,658,196

34,457,739
245,437,538
83,333,632
78,535,433
13,745,902
20,688,923
9,436,304
485,635,471

93,046,550
39,304,683
132,351,233

50,620,550
32,713,082
83,333,632

32,713,082
8,676,330
(2,084,729)
39,304,683

32,735,775
4,932,699
(4,955,392)
32,713,082

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
Due to:
- Participants
- Institutions

11

32.2
9.2

Accumulated compensated absences
Opening balance
Provision for the year
Payments during the year
Closing balance

10

9.1

Employees’ retirement beneﬁts and other obligations
Net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
Accumulated compensated absences

9.2

Note

TAXATION - NET
Provision for taxation - net

13

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13.1

Contingencies

-

161,639
298,861
460,500

3,715,541
7,023,554

2,920,012
10,175,044

6,260,016
22,438
29,895,618
4,980,170
51,897,337

4,760,004
23,096
26,487,466
3,196,200
47,561,822

3,828,548

30,394,533

13.1.1 During 2014-2015, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 up
to June 2013 with regards to chargeability of Sindh Sales Tax amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. Subsequently,
the penalty amounting to Rs. 15 million was removed and the revised demand restricted to Rs. 282 million. SRB was of the
opinion that services rendered by the Holding Company were falling under the ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies
(NBFC). Not agreeing with the SRB’s contention, Holding Company pursued the matter in appeal and through the order dated
February 28, 2018, the Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB has decided the case in favour of the Holding Company and has
vacated the above referred tax demand.
Apart from the above, the SRB has also issued a notice for the periods from July 2013 through June 2015, requiring the
Holding Company to show-cause as to why SST of Rs. 344.6 million including penalty may not be recovered from the Holding
Company on alleged failure to charge SST on its services. The management on the basis of above-referred judgement of
Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB have ﬁled the application in the Honorable Sindh High Court for vacation of the same and
is conﬁdent that the matter will be resolved in Holding Company’s favour and therefore no provision has been recognised in
these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
13.2

Commitments
Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition of software,
hardware and oﬃce equipments
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June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

5,119,964

15,560,301
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FIXED ASSETS

14.1

Property and equipment
Operating assets
Capital work-in-progress

14.1.1
14.1.5

14.1.1 Operating assets

Year ended June 30, 2018

Leasehold land

Furniture,
ﬁxtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,294,982,078
2,582,949
1,297,565,027

1,175,937,906
27,443,837
1,203,381,743

OWNED
Vehicles

Oﬃce
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost
Depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

549,999,000
-

445,322,662
106,527,147
-

-

-

24,543,667
8,925,562
-

43,195,607
20,443,146
-

34,076,098
12,838,197
-

78,800,872
83,883,846
-

1,175,937,906
232,617,898
-

(10,303,660)
10,198,433
(105,227)

(8,269,108)
8,256,564
(12,544)

(10,797,884)
10,278,144
(519,740)

(46,853,558)
46,720,322
(133,236)

(76,224,210)
75,453,463
(770,747)

549,999,000

(30,369,812)
521,479,997

(8,572,730)
24,791,272

(17,618,731)
46,007,478

(13,043,207)
33,351,348

(43,198,499)
119,352,983

(112,802,979)
1,294,982,078

549,999,000
549,999,000

551,849,809
(30,369,812)
521,479,997

168,219,333
(143,428,061)
24,791,272

94,983,014
(48,975,536)
46,007,478

199,003,471
(165,652,123)
33,351,348

441,404,817
(322,051,834)
119,352,983

2,005,459,444
(710,477,366)
1,294,982,078

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

As at June 30, 2018
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year
Depreciation rate

Year ended June 30, 2017

Leasehold land

Furniture,
ﬁxtures and
electrical
equipment

Building

OWNED
Vehicles

Oﬃce
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost
Depreciation
Transferred
Cost
Depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

427,777,000
122,222,000
-

269,182,466
3,326,919
199,597,035

27,218,197
5,489,372
-

44,117,834
18,165,862
-

32,421,795
13,314,704
-

88,055,042
30,085,976
-

888,772,334
70,382,833
321,819,035

(207,000)
106,957
(100,043)

(2,546,474)
2,291,334
(255,140)

(23,430,296)
21,037,321
(2,392,975)

(3,889,742)
3,658,676
(231,066)

(42,082,322)
41,998,481
(83,841)

(72,155,834)
69,092,769
(3,063,065)

(11,429,335)
34,076,098

(39,256,305)
78,800,872

(101,973,231)
1,175,937,906

1,849,065,756
(673,127,850)
1,175,937,906

-

549,999,000

(26,683,715)
445,322,662

(7,908,762)
24,543,667

(16,695,114)
43,195,607

549,999,000
549,999,000

445,322,662
445,322,662

169,597,431
(145,053,764)
24,543,667

82,808,976
(39,613,369)
43,195,607

196,963,158
(162,887,060)
34,076,098

404,374,529
(325,573,657)
78,800,872

-

5%

20%

20%

20%

25%

As at June 30, 2017
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value at the end of the year
Depreciation rate
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14.1.2 Land - lease hold and building had previously been revalued on June 30, 2012.
The Holding Company as on June 30, 2017 again revalued its land - lease hold and building. The revaluation exercise was
carried out by independent valuer - MYK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks' Association and
Leasing Association of Pakistan) I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The valuer has estimated the remaining life of the buildings
to be 20 years. Land- lease hold was revalued on the basis of market price whereas buildings was revalued on the basis of
depreciated market value.
The diﬀerence levels have been deﬁned in IFRS 13 as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and
- Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs e.g. estimated
future) (level 3).
The appraisal surplus arisen on last revaluation exercise aggregating Rs. 261.939 million has been incorporated in the books
of the Company in accordance with the requirment of International Financial Reporting Standards.
Addition in building includes Rs. 93.105 million (2017: Nil) paid to LSE Financial Services Limited (Related party) for the
purchase of oﬃce by the Holding Company.
14.1.3 Had there been no revaluation of lease hold land and building, the cost and written down values would have been as follows:
Net book value under cost model
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees

Cost
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees
Land - lease hold
Building

59,458,250
324,731,558

59,458,250
218,204,411

59,458,250
210,696,131

59,458,250
118,181,752

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

27,443,837

2,931,704

1,514,361
115,066,871
69,323,082
21,852,696
207,757,010
235,200,847
(232,617,898)
2,582,949

5,521,766
3,128,912
69,865,926
16,378,362
94,894,966
97,826,670
(70,382,833)
27,443,837

136,336,096
1,177,433
137,513,529

107,631,201
21,133,447
128,764,648

14.1.4 Forced sale value of assets at revalued model is Rs. 796.2 million.
Note
14.1.5 Capital work in progress
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
- Furniture, ﬁxtures and electrical equipment
- Building
- Computers and oﬃce equipment
- Vehicles
Transferred to operating assets
Balance at the end of the year
14.2

Intangibles
Softwares
Softwares under implementation
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14.1.1

14.2.1
14.2.2
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14.2.1 Softwares
Net book value at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions
Amortization charge for the year
Net book value at the end of the year

Note

14.2.2
25

Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value at the end of the year
Amortization rate

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

107,631,201
70,932,237
(42,227,342)
136,336,096

94,175,563
48,259,067
(957,828)
(33,845,601)
107,631,201

447,244,894
(310,908,798)
136,336,096

376,474,690
(268,843,489)
107,631,201

20%

20%

21,133,447
56,301,223
77,434,670
(70,932,237)
(5,325,000)
1,177,433

6,131,390
63,261,124
69,392,514
(48,259,067)
21,133,447

14.2.2 Softwares under implementation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Transferred to softwares
eClear software written oﬀ
Balance at the end of the year
14.3

15

14.2.1

During the year, the Holding Company did not dispose oﬀ any asset having net book value of Rs. 500,000 or above (2017:Nil)

LONG TERM LOANS
Considered good - secured
- Housing loans
- Car loans
- Transferred to current maturity
Loan outstanding for period:
More than one year but less than three years
More than three years

Note

15.1
15.2
18

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

55,530,485
14,790,235
70,320,720
(9,724,714)
60,596,006

38,235,243
14,357,916
52,593,159
(8,604,183)
43,988,976

18,048,400
42,547,606
60,596,006

12,911,179
31,077,797
43,988,976

34,670,374
22,462,800
57,133,174
(13,121,145)
44,012,029

33,598,698
9,395,000
42,993,698
(8,323,324)
34,670,374

Reconciliation of loan to executives
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursement/ addition during the year
less: Recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year
15.1

Interest ranging from 3% to 5% (2017: 3% to 5%) per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on house loans
and taken to consolidated proﬁt and loss account. Maximum repayment period for house loan is ﬁfteen years.

15.2

Interest at 3% (2017: 3%) per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to consolidated
proﬁt and loss account. However, no interest is recovered from employees who have surrendered interest on their provident
fund. Maximum repayment period for car loan is ﬁve years.

15.3

The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 72.78 million (2017: Rs. 52.59
million). The loans are secured against the underlying assets.
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16

Note

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

4,937,414
1,060,001
5,997,415
1,017,913
7,015,328

5,586,969
1,872,000
7,458,969
7,833,969
15,292,938

209,881,530
62,672,399
272,553,929
1,159,136
273,713,065
(1,159,136)
272,553,929

224,358,342
122,372,037
346,730,379
1,159,136
347,889,515
(1,159,136)
346,730,379

Deposits
- Utilities
- Rented premises
Prepayments
17

TRADE DEBTS - NET
Considered good:
- secured
- unsecured

17.1

Considered doubtful, unsecured

17.1

Provision for impairment

17.2

The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Gross
Impaired
Net
Gross
Impaired
Net
Within 45 days
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total

221,717,571
9,005,562
42,989,932
273,713,065

1,159,136
1,159,136

221,717,571
9,005,562
41,830,796
272,553,929

294,032,266
11,388,888
42,468,361
347,889,515

1,159,136
1,159,136

294,032,266
11,388,888
41,309,225
346,730,379

17.1.1 The running balance from IAS account holders have been included in ﬁrst bucket of the above aging.
17.2

The Group reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made
consequently opening balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and
investor account holders amounting to Rs. 0.4 million (2017: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2017: 0.7 million) respectively
and are valid till year end.

17.3

Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 7.8 million (2017:
Rs. 12.6 million).

17.3.1 The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------Gross
Impaired
Net
Gross
Impaired
Net
Within 45 days
46 to 90
Over 91 days
Total
17.4
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3,740,644
584,207
3,453,207
7,778,058

-

3,740,644
584,207
3,453,207
7,778,058

8,356,649
898,126
3,334,068
12,588,843

-

8,356,649
898,126
3,334,068
12,588,843

The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 39.3 million (2017: Rs. 44.3 million).
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18

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Current maturity of long term loans
Considered doubtful, unsecured
- Advance to employee
- Advance for expenses

18.1

19

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

15

9,724,714

8,604,183

3,163,203
588,660
3,751,863
13,476,577

3,774,201
1,690,627
5,464,828
14,069,011

All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired.

PREPAYMENTS
Insurance
Rent
Software maintenance
Servers and other hardware maintenance
Others

20

22

8,224,402
12,746,659
92,610
2,315,503
23,379,174

4,963,952
79,428
11,659,393
513,832
1,200,770
18,417,375

-

5,331,570

OTHER RECEIVABLES
1,390,550
1,075,412
7,636,440
10,102,402

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - Associated Company
Sales tax refundable
Others
21.1

June 30, 2017
Rupees

MARK-UP ACCRUED
Mark-up accrued on PIBs

21

June 30, 2018
Rupees

996,038
5,685,695
6,681,733

All other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Held for trading investments

22.4 & 31

64,232,359

61,892,660

Available for sale investments
- Term Deposit Certiﬁcates
- Treasury Bills
- Pakistan Investment Bonds

22.1 & 31
22.2 & 31
22.3 & 31

1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
3,040,481,436

1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
148,498,327
2,579,311,193

22.1

This represents investment in ﬁxed Term Deposit Certiﬁcates. The rate of proﬁt on these certiﬁcates is 6.00% to 6.45% per
annum (2017: 5.90% to 6.00% per annum).

22.2

This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of proﬁt on these certiﬁcates is 6.22% to 6.76% per annum (2017:
5.84% to 5.99% per annum).

22.3

The Holding Company had investment in Pakistan Investmemts Bonds (PIBs). These were measured at fair value using
eﬀective interest method. The eﬀecive interest rate on these securities varies from 7.89% to 12.25% (2017: 7.89% to 12.25%)
per annum.

22.4

This represents investment in open ended mutual fund.
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23

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Bank balances
- in saving accounts
- in current accounts
Amount held on behalf of clients
Net bank balance

Note

23.1
23.3

Cash in hand

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

53,579,237
11,538,487
(5,410,721)
59,707,003

70,170,915
161,207,919
(154,435,809)
76,943,025

160,004
59,867,007

142,589
77,085,614

23.1

The rate of proﬁt varies from 3.5% to 6.0% (2017: 3.75% to 6.00%) per annum.

23.2

Bank balances include Rs. 5.99 million (2017: Rs. 12.30 million) held with related parties.

23.3

This amount is held by the Holding Company in the current account maintained with State Bank of Pakistan on behalf of
clients under trustee and custodianship for settlement purpose.

24

24.1

OPERATING INCOME - NET

Note

Depository services - net
Trusteeship and custodial services - net
Share registrar services - net
Business process outsourcing services / IT services-net
Miscellaneous income - net

24.1
24.2
24.3

SECP supervision fee

24.5

24.4

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,222,380,858
637,123,926
99,063,810
39,557,683
4,816,173
2,002,942,450
(13,246,090)
1,989,696,361

1,204,272,361
580,748,891
64,982,802
26,910,709
5,186,369
1,882,101,132
(12,733,473)
1,869,367,659

1,380,550,171
(158,169,313)
1,222,380,858

1,362,229,098
(157,956,737)
1,204,272,361

145,918,824
361,043,792
76,540,098
44,067,000
346,232,328
212,304,022
15,476,427
8,444,753
2,265,600
10,088,014
1,222,380,858

231,897,856
432,824,442
66,629,195
46,322,000
227,655,442
172,359,218
17,461,721
6,698,487
2,424,000
1,204,272,361

173,932,065
(28,013,241)
145,918,824

278,963,170
(47,065,314)
231,897,856

Depository services - net
Depository services
Less: Sales tax

24.1.1

24.1.1 Depository services - net
Transaction fee
Custody fee
Sub account maintenance fee
CDS connection fee
Securities induction fee
Annual fee
Cancellation fee
Withdrawal fee
Vasco service charges
eDividend

24.1.2

24.1.2 Transaction fee - net
Transaction fee
Less: SECP levy

24.1.3

24.1.3 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2017: 0.000405) paisa per share as
transaction fee which is borne by the Holding Company.
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Note
24.2

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

759,027,786
(30,758,391)
(91,145,469)
637,123,926

692,892,493
(28,916,101)
(83,227,501)
580,748,891

Trusteeship and custodial services - net
Trusteeship and custodial businesses
Less: SECP levy
Less: Sales tax

24.2.1

24.2.1 SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2017: 0.005%) of average annual assets of open end scheme and closed end scheme
under its trusteeship.
24.3

Share Registrar Services - net
Share registrar services
Less: Sales tax

24.4

114,670,188
(15,606,378)
99,063,810

72,129,393
(7,146,591)
64,982,802

5,523,898
(707,725)
4,816,173

5,917,107
(730,738)
5,186,369

SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2017: 1%) of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository
service fee.
Note

25

June 30, 2017
Rupees

Miscellaneous Income - net
Miscellaneous income
Less: Sales tax

24.5

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

649,372,181
7,945,157
17,017,429
7,800,254
12,820,954
9,335,185
14,346,050
26,530,421
76,045,206
24,715,793
10,802,364
28,381,465
4,951,100
13,643,963
8,949,859
5,018,789
112,802,979
42,227,342
34,518,738
8,624,080
7,780,500
5,325,000
5,772,350
1,134,727,159

598,159,861
8,116,040
15,033,921
6,934,230
11,968,493
10,158,738
17,861,312
24,960,733
74,893,340
20,825,116
8,218,589
53,493,384
4,357,065
11,337,247
10,025,364
4,754,415
101,973,231
33,845,601
31,383,484
10,340,134
6,086,412
6,872,344
1,071,599,054

OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other beneﬁts
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Training and development
Communication
Printing and stationery
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Legal and professional charges
Fee and subscription
Advertisement and publicity
Oﬃce supplies
Meeting expenses
Wide-area-network line rent
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation
Amortization
Fuel and electricity
Security services
Cafeteria
Asset write oﬀ
Miscellaneous

25.1 & 25.2

25.3
25.4
14.1.1
14.2.1
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25.1

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

- Compensated absences

9.2

8,676,330

4,932,699

- Gratuity

32.3

30,712,000

29,152,000

5,633,974

5,662,437

24,855,745

22,717,292

Salaries and other beneﬁts include:

- Deﬁned contribution gratuity fund
- Contribution to provident fund
25.2

Amount charged in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements in respect of Chief Executive Oﬃcer (CEO) and Executives are:
June 30, 2018
Executives

June 30, 2017
Executives
Restated
-------------------------------------Rupees -------------------------------------

CEO

Managerial remuneration
Bonus
Gratuity
Provident fund
Deﬁned contribution gratuity fund
Number of Person

CEO

28,838,937
19,030,500
2,568,547
1,605,341
52,043,326

127,537,892
45,129,123
10,041,473
7,235,236
1,348,625
191,292,349

26,892,651
16,980,000
2,145,438
1,430,288
47,448,377

105,447,429
36,471,950
7,619,962
5,920,781
1,091,688
156,551,810

2

32

3

32

25.2.1 The CEO and executives are provided with the Group maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled
for other beneﬁts in accordance with the terms of employment.
25.3

The aggregate amount charged in the ﬁnancial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 10.79
million (2017: Rs. 8.96 million).

25.3.1 The Chairman of the Board of the Holding Company has been provided with the Company maintained car along with fuel
and chauﬀeur.

25.4

June 30, 2017
Rupees

2,061,069
525,800
2,431,920
5,018,789

1,846,731
469,309
2,438,375
4,754,415

61,065,543
436
45,163,447
74%
55,865,616

56,433,200
426
45,012,183
80%
47,772,679

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fees
Half year review
Others

25.5

June 30, 2018
Rupees

Employees Provident Fund
- Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)
- Number of members
- Cost of investments made (Rupees)
- Percentage of investments made to size of the fund
- Fair value of investments (Rupees)

25.5.1 These ﬁgures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2018. The audited ﬁnancial statements of the fund has not been ﬁnalized
for the current year. Investments out of Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of
the Companies Act 2017.
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26

OTHER INCOME

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

4,955,825
1,581,794
2,855,262
160,517,071
(36,134)
169,873,818

4,787,274
1,127,467
4,723,482
89,698
133,248,173
13,830
143,989,924

1,765,501
1,368,800
627,864
3,762,165
173,635,983

(597,613)
860,200
651,978
914,565
144,904,489

25,639,074

23,543,440

Income from ﬁnancial assets:
- Return on bank deposits
- Interest on loans to employees
- Dividend Income
- Unrealized gain on held-for-trading investments
- Return / capital gain on investment - available for sale investment
- Others
Income from non-ﬁnancial assets:
- Gain / (Loss) on disposal of property and equipment
- Penalties and ﬁnes
- Others

27

OTHER EXPENSES
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expense

27.1

27.1

CSR expense has not been made (2017: 6.3 million) to an institution in which a director has common directorship. No
director and their spouses had any interest in any institution to which this amount has been allocated during the year.

27.2

During the year, the Holding Company has made the following donations exceeding Rs. 500,000 as follows:
Name of Donee
SIUT
Fatima Kidney Care
Kharadar General Hospital
Memon Medical Institute
The Indus Hospital
Patients' Welfare Association (DMC)
Patients' Aid Foundation (JPMC) (Cyber Knife)
The Patients' Behbud Society- (AKUH)
Ibrahim Eye Trust
The Citizen Foundation (TCF)
The Garage School
The Deaf Reach School (FESF)
Memon Industrial & Technical Institute (WMO)
The Hunar Foundation
Pakistan Sweet Homes

28

FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges

29

Rupees
1,500,000
1,400,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
2,500,000
1,000,000
2,300,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

272,996

195,919

333,395,305
7,740
(772,628)
332,630,417

320,813,221
(1,471,087)
(8,586,138)
310,755,996

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current
Prior
Deferred
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29.1

The income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been ﬁnalised up to and including tax year 2017.
The income tax assessments of the ITMinds Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been ﬁnalised up to and including
tax year 2017.
The income tax assessments of the CDC Trustee Company Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been ﬁnalised up
to and including tax year 2017.

29.2

As per management's assessmet, suﬃcent tax provision has been made in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. Following
are the details of tax provision as per accounts and tax assessment for last 3 years of the Holding Company:
Tax year

2017

2016

2015

----------------------------Rupees----------------------------

29.3

Tax provsion in the accounts

317,400,000

251,574,556

239,200,000

Tax assessment

317,407,740

250,182,124

240,826,389

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,002,693,114

918,933,735

30%

31%

300,807,935
28,954,766
2,867,716
332,630,417

284,869,458
28,400,000
(2,513,462)
310,755,996

Proﬁt after income tax

670,062,697

608,177,739

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares

Number of shares
(Restated)
106,090,000
106,090,000

Reconciliation of eﬀective tax rate
Proﬁt before income tax
Enacted tax rate
Tax charge at enacted rate
Super tax
Others

30

EARNINGS PER SHARE

30.1

Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

Note
Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic

30.1.1

Rupees
6.32

Rupees
(Restated)
5.73

30.1.1 These consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been restated to account for the eﬀect of bonus shares issued on EPS in order
to fairly present the result of year ended June 30, 2017.
30.2

Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted

31

Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Holding Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary
shares in issue as at June 30, 2018 and 2017 which would have any eﬀect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is
exercisable.
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees
Note
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
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59,867,007
3,040,481,436
3,100,348,443

77,085,614
2,579,311,193
2,656,396,807
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32

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance
with the rules of the gratuity fund.
The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal
actuarial assumptions used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 are as follows:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
-------------Rate per annum---------9.00%
7.75%

9.25%
8.00%

Note

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

32.4
32.5
32.2

415,186,815
(322,140,265)
93,046,550

325,416,815
(274,796,265)
50,620,550

50,620,550
30,712,000
(34,439,000)
46,153,000
93,046,550

35,010,550
29,152,000
(30,015,000)
16,473,000
50,620,550

Discount rate per annum (compound rate)
Salary increase rate

32.1

Statement of consolidated ﬁnancial position item
The amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheet are as follows:
Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Movement in net deﬁned beneﬁt obligation

32.2

Movement in net deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expense for the year
Payment to fund during the year
Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

32.3

32.3
9.1

Amounts recognized in the consolidated proﬁt and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)
The following amounts have been charged in the consolidated proﬁt and loss account and statement of other
comprehensive income in respect of these beneﬁts:
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
Rupees
Rupees
Note
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Expense for the year
Remeasurement loss on obligation
Remeasurement loss / (gain) on plan assets
Remeasurement losses recognised in OCI

32.4

25.1

25,927,000
29,553,000
(24,768,000)
30,712,000

26,528,000
23,971,000
(21,347,000)
29,152,000

41,762,000
4,391,000
46,153,000

20,590,000
(4,117,000)
16,473,000

325,416,815
25,927,000
29,553,000
(7,472,000)
41,762,000
415,186,815

324,451,815
26,528,000
23,971,000
(70,124,000)
20,590,000
325,416,815

Movement in the present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Beneﬁt paid
Actuarial loss on obligation
Balance at the end of the year
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32.5

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

274,796,265
24,768,000
34,439,000
(7,472,000)
(4,391,000)
322,140,265

289,441,265
21,347,000
30,015,000
(70,124,000)
4,117,000
274,796,265

Split by Vested/Non-Vested
(i) Vested beneﬁts
(ii) Non-vested beneﬁts
Total

415,187,000
415,187,000

325,417,000
325,417,000

Split by Beneﬁts earned to date
(i) Present value of guaranteed beneﬁts
(ii) Present value of beneﬁts attributable to future salary increase
Total

212,705,000
202,482,000
415,187,000

156,661,000
168,756,000
325,417,000

9.35

10.04

17,752,000
74,420,000
25,237,000
37,723,000
26,271,000
188,314,000

38,050,000
15,977,000
20,642,000
23,705,000
34,237,000
176,283,000

82,486,000
153,839,000
82,253,000
3,562,000
322,140,000

52,778,000
145,475,000
73,872,000
2,672,000
274,797,000

379,080,000
457,094,000
459,315,000
376,614,000

295,127,000
360,840,000
362,595,000
293,172,000

Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions
Beneﬁts paid
Actuarial (loss) / gain on plan assets
Balance at the end of the year
Analysis of Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation

Maturity proﬁle of Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Weighted average duration of the present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation (years)
Distribution of timing of beneﬁt payments
Time in years
Within ﬁrst year from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within second years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within third years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within fourth years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within ﬁve years from the end of ﬁnancial year
Within six to ten years from the end of ﬁnancial year
32.6

Major categories/composition of plan assets are as follows:
Treasury bills
Special saving certiﬁcates
Defense saving certiﬁcate
Bank balance
Total fair value of plan assets
Sensitivity Analysis on signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions on present
value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Discount Rate +1%
Discount Rate -1%
Expected rate of salary increase +1%
Expected rate of salary increase -1%

These ﬁgures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2018. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit
method. The Group recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Beneﬁts”.
The expected gratuity expense of the Group for the year ending June 30, 2019 works out to be Rs. 38.168 million.
33

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence over
the other party in making ﬁnancial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or
without common directors, retirement beneﬁt funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members.
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Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective
notes are as follows:

Rent expense:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company
- LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

6,083,178
788,568
6,871,746

6,566,676
924,124
7,490,800

6,083,178
788,568
6,871,746

6,566,676
924,124
7,490,800

291,896

294,370

Rent of premises paid to:
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company
- LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company
Mark-up earned - Associated companies

The shareholders and directors of the Holding Company are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total
revenue from transactions in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:
June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

92,776,350

67,286,554

1,171,550

1,120,284

Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue
of common directorship

15,332,423

27,440,463

Contributions to retirement plans

60,028,031

57,531,729

590,000

335,000

Shareholders
Directors

Transaction with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) Annual subscription & Director's Training Program
Transactions with The Citizens Foundation - Donation / Sponsorship

-

6,300,000

Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange - Advertisement, parking & intercom

237,557

1,241,724

Transactions with LSE Financial Services Limited - Directors travelling

717,492

583,371

Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - Utilities

2,459,545

2,346,324

Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges

9,687,699

10,271,424

33.1

The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices
using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method.

33.2

The Group has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Group's policies
and terms of employment.
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34

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

34.1

Financial risk management
The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework.
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of ﬁnancial instruments:
- Market risk
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
- Liquidity risk

34.1.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the ﬁnancial instrument may ﬂuctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates
or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest
rate risk.
(a) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of ﬁnancial asset or a liability will ﬂuctuate due to a change in foreign exchange
rates.
The Group is not signiﬁcantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Group are carried out in the local
currency.
(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is not signiﬁcantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest
bearing liabilities. However, the Group has ﬁxed interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are
classiﬁed as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of the interest rates and management's intention.
Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not aﬀected by volatility of market interest rate. Other assets and
liabilities of the Group does not expose the Group to interest rate risk substantially.
The Group has investments in the following securities having ﬁxed rate of return:
Note
Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)
Treasury Bills ( T-bills)
Term Deposit Certiﬁcates (TDCs)

20 & 22
22
22

June 30, 2018
Rupees

June 30, 2017
Rupees

1,817,115,522
1,159,133,555
2,976,249,077

153,829,897
1,309,881,578
1,059,038,628
2,522,750,103

Investments in PIBs & T-bills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and
treasury bills are for a period of 3 months. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not aﬀect the cash ﬂows of the
Group.
(b) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money
due to a fall in the market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market
ﬁnancial instruments. Currently the Group has investment in mutual fund designated as held for trading.
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34.2

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and the eﬀective rates on its ﬁnancial assets and liabilities are summarized as
follows:
Mark-up Bearing
Eﬀective
Over one
Non
Less than
Over ﬁve
June 30, 2018
yield / interest
year to
Markup
Total
years
one year
rates (%)
ﬁve years
bearing
Financial assets

Note

Investments
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

20 & 22
15 & 18
16
17
20
21
23

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

6.00 - 6.76
0.00 - 3.00

3.5 - 6.0

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Trade and other payables

7 & 10
9

Eﬀective
yield / interest
rates (%)

June 30, 2017
Financial assets

Note

Investments
Loans
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

20 & 22
15 & 18
16
17
20
21
23

34.3

60,596,006
60,596,006

-

3,163,203
5,997,415
272,553,929
10,102,402
6,287,770
298,104,719

3,040,481,436
73,483,923
5,997,415
272,553,929
10,102,402
59,867,007
3,462,486,112

-

-

-

123,348,500
386,561,061

123,348,500
386,561,061

-

-

-

509,909,561

509,909,561

Non
Markup
bearing

Total

Mark-up Bearing
Over one
year to
ﬁve years

Less than
one year

Over ﬁve
years

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------5.84 - 12.25
0.00 - 3.00

3.75 - 6.00

Financial liabilities
Deposit
Trade and other payables

3,040,481,436
9,724,714
53,579,237
3,103,785,387

7 & 10
9

2,584,642,763
8,604,183
70,170,915

43,988,976
-

-

3,774,201
7,458,969
346,730,379
5,331,570
6,681,733
6,914,699

2,584,642,763
56,367,360
7,458,969
346,730,379
5,331,570
6,681,733
77,085,614

2,663,417,860

43,988,976

-

376,891,551

3,084,298,388

-

119,011,000
388,555,937
507,566,937

119,011,000
388,555,937
507,566,937

-

-

-

-

Fair values of ﬁnancial instruments
Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. The Group prepares its consolidated ﬁnancial statements under the historical cost convention
except for measurement of available for sale investments at the fair value, held to maturity investments at amortised cost
and recognition of staﬀ retirement beneﬁts on the actuarial valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all ﬁnancial
instruments are not signiﬁcantly diﬀerent from their carrying values on June 30, 2018.

34.4

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a ﬁnancial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to
incur a ﬁnancial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk at very low level.
Rating
Short Term
Long Term

Highest

Lowest

A-1+
AAA

A-1+
AA

The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AAA (f).

161

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2018
34.5

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reﬂects the Group's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Group's
liquidity and cash ﬂow position. This includes maintenance of statement of ﬁnancial position liquidity ratios, debtors and
creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.
As at June 30, 2018 the Group's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6
months
Note
Deposits
Trade and other payables

Non Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

7 & 10
9

386,561,061
386,561,061

-

-

123,348,500
123,348,500

123,348,500
386,561,061
509,909,561

As at June 30, 2017 the Group’s liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:
Current
within 6
months
Note
Deposits
Trade and other payables
35

Non Current

within 6-12
months

1 to 5
years

later than
5 years

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

7 & 10
9

460,500
388,555,937
389,016,437

-

-

118,550,500
118,550,500

119,011,000
388,555,937
507,566,937

OPERATING SEGMENT
For management purposes, the Group is organized into following major business segments.

35.1

CDC

To act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securitities.

ITML

To provide information technology and business process outsourcing (BPO) services.

CTCL

To act as a trustee for open-end funds and closed-end schemes, voluntary pension schemes and to provide
custodial services to closed-end funds, discretionary/ non-discretionary portfolios.

ESL

To act as a professional clearing member as per professional clearing member regulations.

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income, assets, liabilities & proﬁt and loss.
June 30, 2018

CDC

ITML

CTCL

ESL

Adjustment

Net

--------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------Operating income - net
Assets
Liabilities
Proﬁt / (loss)
June 30, 2017
Operating income - net
Assets
Liabilities
Proﬁt / (loss)

162

1,950,195,177
4,912,619,920
811,642,314
668,984,543
CDC

54,789,679
36,059,812
24,017,233
(1,273,906)

74,266,139
230,200
2,333,866

-

(15,288,495)
(100,395,456)
(20,430,092)
18,195

1,989,696,361
4,922,550,415
815,459,655
670,062,698

ITML
CTCL
ESL
Adjustment
Net
--------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------

1,842,513,700
4,458,181,931
786,659,673
608,714,651

41,550,103
33,182,378
17,808,893
(2,822,346)

61,921,312
245,140
2,273,041

8,717,557
(16,143)

(14,696,144)
(122,947,998)
(14,242,783)
28,536

1,869,367,659
4,439,055,180
790,470,923
608,177,739
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36

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
June 30, 2018
Loan and
receivables
Financial assets

Note

Held for
trading

Held to
maturity

Available
for sale

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

Non current assets
Long term loans
Long term deposits

15
16

Current assets
Trade debts - net
Loans and advances
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

60,596,006
5,997,415
66,593,421

17
18
20
21
22
23

272,553,929
13,476,577
10,102,402
59,867,007
355,999,915
422,593,336

64,232,359
64,232,359
64,232,359

2,976,249,077
2,976,249,077
2,976,249,077

-

60,596,006
5,997,415
66,593,421

-

272,553,929
13,476,577
10,102,402
3,040,481,436
59,867,007
3,396,481,351
3,463,074,772

June 30, 2018
Amortized
Cost
Financial liabilities
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits

Note

Held for
trading

Total

--------------------Rupees--------------------

7

123,348,500

-

123,348,500

9
10

386,561,061
386,561,061
509,909,561

-

386,561,061
386,561,061
509,909,561

June 30, 2017
Loan and
receivables
Financial assets

Note

Held for
trading

Held to
maturity

Available
for sale

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

Non current Assets
Long term loans
Long term deposits

15
16

Current Assets
Trade debts - net
Loan and advances
Mark-up accrued
Other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

43,988,976
7,458,969
51,447,945

17
18
20
21
22
23

346,730,379
12,378,384
5,331,570
6,681,733
77,085,614
448,207,680
499,655,625

61,892,660
61,892,660
61,892,660

2,517,418,533
2,517,418,533
2,517,418,533

-

43,988,976
7,458,969
51,447,945

-

346,730,379
12,378,384
5,331,570
6,681,733
2,579,311,193
77,085,614
3,027,518,873
3,078,966,818
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June 30, 2017
Amortized
Cost
Non current liabilities
Long term deposits

Note

Held for
trading

Total

--------------------Rupees--------------------

7

118,550,500

-

118,550,500

9
10

388,555,937
460,500
389,016,437
507,566,937

-

388,555,937
460,500
389,016,437
507,566,937

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short term deposits
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FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or the most advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

37.1

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of ﬁnancial instruments:

37.2

Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Financial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of the ﬁnancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.
June 30, 2018
Carrying
value
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale securities
- Term Deposit Certiﬁcates
- Treasury Bills
- Pakistan Investment Bonds

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
-

-

1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
-

-

1,159,133,555
1,817,115,522
-

64,232,359

-

64,232,359

-

64,232,359

73,483,923
5,997,415
272,553,929
10,102,402
59,867,007

-

-

73,483,923
5,997,415
272,553,929
10,102,402
59,867,007

3,462,486,112

-

-

3,462,486,112

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Deposits
123,348,500
Trade and other payables
386,561,061

-

-

-

123,348,500
386,561,061

509,909,561

-

-

-

509,909,561

Held for trading investments
- Open end mutual funds
Financial assets not measured at fair valu
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
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June 30, 2017
Carrying
value
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale investments
- Term Deposit Certiﬁcates
- Treasury Bills
- Pakistan Investment Bonds
Held for trading investments
- Open end mutual funds
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loan and advances
Deposits
Trade debts
Mark up Accrued
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Deposits
Trade and other payables

37.3

37.4

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
153,829,897

-

1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
153,829,897

-

1,059,038,628
1,309,881,578
153,829,897

61,892,660

-

61,892,660

-

61,892,660

56,367,360
7,458,969
346,730,379
5,331,570
6,681,733
77,085,614

-

-

56,367,360
7,458,969
346,730,379
5,331,570
6,681,733
77,085,614

3,084,298,388

-

-

3,084,298,388

119,011,000
388,555,937

-

-

-

119,011,000
388,555,937

507,566,937

-

-

-

507,566,937

2,584,642,763

Information about valuation technique and inputs used
Item

Valuation technique and inputs used

Term Deposit Certiﬁcates

A deposit at a bank or other ﬁnancial institution that has a ﬁxed return (usually via an
interest rate) and a set maturity. That is, the depositor does not have access to the funds
until maturity; in exchange, he/she is usually entitled to a higher interest rate. One of the
most common examples of a term deposit is a certiﬁcate of deposit. Term deposit
certiﬁcates are valued at amortized cost.

Units of Open-end
Mutual Funds

Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the business day.

Pakistan Investment Bonds
and Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates
(Reuters page)

Non-ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-ﬁnancial assets measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.
June 30, 2018
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------Land-lease hold
Building

549,999,000
521,479,997
1,071,478,997

-

-

549,999,000
521,479,997
1,071,478,997

549,999,000
521,479,997
1,071,478,997
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June 30, 2017
Carrying
value

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------Land-lease hold
Building

38

549,999,000
445,322,662
995,321,662

-

-

549,999,000
445,322,662
995,321,662

549,999,000
445,322,662
995,321,662

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and
market conﬁdence and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and beneﬁt for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Group deﬁnes as
proﬁt after income tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to
ordinary shareholders.
The Group ﬁnances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital
risk management comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments and
unappropriated proﬁt.

39

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The directors in their meeting held on August 09, 2018 have proposed bonus shares @ 41.3894% i.e. 43.91 million shares
(2017: 6.09% i.e. 6.09 million shares) and cash dividend of Rs. 1.50 per share (2017: Rs. 1.83 per share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 15%
(2017: 18.30%) of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2018. The consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018 do not include the eﬀect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in which
it is approved by shareholders.

40

41

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

Number of employees at the end of the year

452

438

Average number of employees during the year

443

438

EMPLOYEES

DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These consolidated ﬁnancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 200th meeting held on
August 09, 2018.
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Chairman

Chief Executive Oﬃcer

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2018
No. of Shareholders

Shareholdings

08

shareholding from 1 to 1000 shares *

01

shareholding from 1,001 to 200,000 shares

106,090

01

shareholding from 200,001 to 600,000 shares

530,450

01

shareholding from 600,001 to 900,000 shares

689,583

01

shareholding from 900,001 to 2,000,000 shares

1,060,370

01

shareholding from 2,000,001 to 2,700,000 shares

2,652,250

01

shareholding from 2,700,001 to 3,000,000 shares

2,917,474

02

shareholding from 3,000,001 to 6,000,000 shares

10,609,000

01

shareholding from 6,000,001 to 7,000,000 shares

6,732,472

01

shareholding from 7,000,001 to 11,000,000 shares

10,608,468

02

shareholding from 11,000,001 to 16,000,000 shares

27,948,881

01

shareholding from 16,000,001 to 42,232,307 shares

42,232,307

21

Total

* These are qualiﬁcation shares given to directors pursuant to Company’s Articles of Association.
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Total shares held
2,655

106,090,000
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Categories of Shareholders
Directors, Chief Executive Oﬃcer, their spouse and minor children(Note)

Shares held

Percentage

2,655

-

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
-

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

42,232,307

39.81%

-

MCB Bank Limited

15,913,500

15.00%

-

LSE Financial Services Limited

10,608,998

10.00%

-

Pak China Investment Company Limited

5,304,500

5.00%

NIT and IDBL
-

National Investment Trust Limited

6,732,472

6.35%

-

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,304,500

5.00%

Banks/DFIs/NBFIs
-

MCB Bank Limited

15,913,500

15.00%

-

Habib Bank Limited

12,036,972

11.35%

-

LSE Financial Services Limited

10,608,998

10.00%

-

National Investment Trust Limited

6,732,472

6.35%

-

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,304,500

5.00%

-

Pak China Investment Company Limited

5,304,500

5.00%

-

Allied Bank Limited

1,060,900

1.00%

-

Innovative Investment Bank Limited

530,450

0.50%

-

ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited

2,652,250

2.5%

Insurance Companies

-

-

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

-

-

Shareholders holding 5% (or more)
-

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

42,232,307

39.81%

-

MCB Bank Limited

15,913,500

15.00%

-

Habib Bank Limited

12,036,972

11.35%

-

LSE Financial Services Limited

10,608,998

10.00%

-

National Investment Trust Limited

6,732,472

6.35%

-

Pak China Investment Company Limited

5,304,500

5.00%

-

Industrial Development Bank Limited

5,304,500

5.00%

General Public
a.

Local

-

-

b.

Foreign

-

-

2,917,474

2.75%

Others
-

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

-

IGI Investments (Private) Limited

689,583

0.65%

-

Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd.

106,090

0.10%

Note: These are qualiﬁcation shares given to directors pursuant to Company’s Articles of Association.
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PROXY FORM

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
We, _______________________________________________________________________________of ________________________________________, being a
member of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited holding ________________________________________________________
ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. ____________________________ and / or CDC Account no. ____________________________
do hereby appoint Mr. _______________________________ or failing him Mr._______________________________ as our Proxy in our absence
to attend and vote for us, and on our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on September 25, 2018 or
at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ____________________________ day of ____________________________ 2018 signed by the said.

Signature of Appointer

(Revenue stamp of Rs. 5/-)

(Name & Designation)

Specimen signature of proxy

Specimen signature of proxy

WITNESS 1:

WITNESS 2:

Signature:

Signature:

Name:

Name:

Designation:

Designation:

Address:

Address:

CNIC No.:

CNIC No.:

Notes:
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1.

A Corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Act, 2017/ Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such
Corporation or such other Company, is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its
oﬃcials or any other person to act as its authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the
person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of such Corporation or such other Company if
he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote
instead of him / her.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised in
writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a
notarially certiﬁed copy of that power or authority alongwith attested CNIC copies or passport of proxy, shall be deposited at
the Registered Oﬃce of the Company not less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the
Company.

Office

Addresses
registered office:

Email:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400.
Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500
Fax: (92-21) 34326031

info@cdcpak.com

Pakistan Stock Exchange Branch:
Mezzanine Floor, Pakistan Stock Exchange
Building, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Tel: (92-21) 32416774 I Fax: (92-21) 32444491

URL:
www.cdcpakistan.com

Customer Support Services:
0800 – 23275 (CDCPL)

Lahore Branch:

For Overseas Callers:

Mezzanine Floor, South Tower, LSE Plaza, 19
Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, Lahore-54000,
Pakistan
Tel: (92-42) 36368000-3 I Fax: (92-42)
36368484-5

+92 (21) 34326038

Islamabad Branch:
Room # 410, 4th Floor, ISE Towers REIT
Management Ltd, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue
Area, Islamabad.
Tel: (92-51) 2895456-9 I Fax: (92-51) 2895454

CDCPL
central-depository-company-of-pakistan-limited
cdcoﬃcialpk
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